

# MANDENI LAND USE MANAGEMENT SCHEME

(Prepared in terms of the Spatial Planning And Land Use Management Act, 16 of 2013)

Adopted 30 June 2021

Amendment\_Vol:1

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

<b>1. GE</b>	NERAL PROVISIONS	5
1.1.	TITLE OF THE SCHEME	5
1.2.	RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITY	5
1.3.	PURPOSE OF THE SCHEME	5
1.4.	EFFECTIVE DATE	
1.5.	AREA OF SCHEME AND SCHEME MAPS	6
1.6.	MANAGEMENT OVERLAYS	7
1.6.	1. Adoption, Replacement, Amendment of Management Overlay	
1.7.	INSPECTION OF THE SCHEME	8
1.8.	AMENDMENTS TO THE SCHEME	8
2. <b>GE</b>	NERAL DEFINITIONS	8
3. L	AND USE DEFINITIONS	19
4. TH	E USE AND DEVELOPMENT OF LAND	36
4.1.	USE OF LAND	
4.2.	APPLICATION	
4.3.	ENTRY AND INSPECTION	
4.4.	CONTRAVENTION	
4.5.	SERVING OF NOTICES	
4.6.	SPECIAL CASE USES	
4.6.		
4.6.		
4.6.	0	
4.6.	8	
4.6.		
4.6.		
4.6.		
4.6.		
4.6.		
	10. Tuck Shop	
	11. Medium Density Housing	
	12. Cluster / Row housing	
	13. The zoning of unregistered land parcels using symbols	
	14. The zoning of unregistered land parcels using symbols	
4.0. 4.7.	CONSENT APPLICATION	
4.7. 4.8.	REMOVAL OF INJURIOUS CONDITIONS	
	•	
5. BU	ILDING CONTROL	
5.1.	BUILDING LINE	
<b>5.2.</b>	SIDE AND REAR SPACES	
5.3.	RELAXATION OF BUILDING LINES	
<b>5.4.</b>	COVERAGE	
5.5.	HEIGHT	_
5.6.	FLOOR AREA RATIO	
5.7.	PARKING REQUIREMENTS	
5.8.	LOADING REQUIREMENTS	55
6 I.A1	ND USE ZONES	56

7. DEVI	ELOPMENT FACILITATION TABLES	58
<b>7.1.</b>	AGRICULTURE	59
7.1.1.	Agriculture 1	59
7.1.2.	Agriculture 2	60
7.1.3.	Urban Agriculture	61
7.2.	CIVIC AND SOCIAL	62
7.2.1.	Education	62
7.2.2.	Health and Welfare	63
7.2.3.	Hospital	64
7.2.4.	Municipal and Government	
7.2.5.	Institution	
7.2.6.	Place of Worship	67
7.2.7.	Cemetery and Crematoria	68
7.3. E	NVIRONMENTAL	
7.3.1.	Environmental Services	69
7.3.2.	Active Open Space	
7.3.3.	Private Open Space	
7.3.4.	Passive Open Space	
7.3.5.	Nature Reserves	
7.3.6.	Sea Shore	_
7.3.7.	Dam	
7.3.8.	River Reserve	
	IXED USE	
7.4.1.	Core Mixed Use	
7.4.2.	Medium Impact Mixed Use	
7.4.3.	Low Impact Mixed Use	
7.4.4.	Office	
7.4.5.	Private Parking	
7.4.6.	Petrol Filling Station	
	NDUSTRY	
7.5.1.	Extractive Industry	
7.5.2.	General Industry	
7.5.3.	Light Industry	
<b>7.6.</b>	RESIDENTIAL	
	Special Residential 1: Detached	
7.6.2.	Residential Low Impact	
7.6.3.	Residential Medium Impact	
7.6.4.	Residential High Impact	
7.6.5.	Residential Small Holdings	
7.6.6.	Caravan Park	
7.6.7.	Hotel	
7.6.8.	Resort	
	FRASTRUCTURE AND SERVICE RESERVATIONS	
7.7.1.	Railways	
7.7.2.	Bus and Taxi Rank	
7.7.3.	Public Parking	
7.7.4.	Utilities and Service	
7.7.5.	Landfill Sites	
7.7.6.	Waste Transfer Station	
7.7.7.	Waterworks	
7.7.8.	Sewerage Works	
	TRANSPORT AND ACCESS	
7.8.1.	Existing Roads	
7.8.2.		
	*	

7.8.	3. Private Roads	101
7.9.	SPECIAL ZONES	102
7.9.	1. Special Zone 1	102
7.9.	2. Special Zone 2	102
7.10.	TRADITIONAL AUTHORITY AREAS	122
7.10	D.1. Traditional Authority Agriculture	122
	0.2. Traditional Authority Umuzi	
7.10	D.3. Traditional Authority Environmental	123
7.10	D.4. Traditional Authority Rural Industry	125
7.10	D.5. Traditional Authority Civic and Social	128
7.10	0.6. Traditional Authority Utilities and Services	130
8. <b>GE</b>	NERAL CONTOLS	132
8.1.	SITE DEVELOPMENT PLANS	132
8.2.	EXTERNAL APPEARANCES OF BUILDINGS	132
8.3.	DEPOSITING OF WASTE MATERIAL	133
8.4.	FLOODLINE AREAS	133
8.5.	UNSERVICED AREAS	133
8.6.	TRAFFIC GENERATING SITES	133
8.7.	PROVISION OF PUBLIC FACILITES	133
8.8.	PERMANENT CLOSURE OF STREETS AND PUBLIC PLACES	134
8.9.	WELLS AND BOREHOLES	134
8.10.	ADVERTISING	134
9. EN	VIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT	135
9.1.	ENVIRONMENTALLY SENSITIVE AREAS	135
9.2.	THE BIODOVERSITY SECTOR PLAN	137
9.3.	MARINE PROTECTED AREAS	137
9.4.	NATIONAL ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT BIODIVERSITY ACT	137
9.5.	COASTAL MANAGEMENT PLAN	138
9.6.	WETLANDS	138
9.7.	DEVELOPMENT BUFFERS	138
9.8.	LAND USE MANAGEMENT IN AREAS UNDER TRADITIONAL AUTHORIT	Y139
Annexi	ure 1	141
Registe	er of Amendments to the Mandeni Land Use Manafement Scheme.	141
Annex	ure 2	142
Registe	er of Development Applications Lodged with the Mandeni Munici	pality 142
Annexi	ure 3	143
Registe	er of Management Overlays to the Scheme	143
_		

## 1. **GENERAL PROVISIONS**

#### 1.1. TITLE OF THE SCHEME

This scheme is to be known as the Mandeni Land Use Management Scheme (Mandeni LUMS).

This Land Use Management Scheme for the Mandeni Local Municipality is established in terms of the provisions as set out in the Spatial Planning and Land Use Management Act, Act 16 of 2013 (SPLUMA) and in conjunction with the Mandeni Spatial Planning and Land Use Management By-Law (2015).

This Scheme shall be known as the Mandeni Land Use Management Scheme.

The Scheme comprises of two components:

- A Scheme map.
- Accompanying Scheme Clauses.

The Scheme shall include a schedule of:

- a) Land use scheme amendments and consents applications and
- b) A schedule of consents granted in terms thereof.

#### 1.2. RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITY

Mandeni Municipality shall be the only authority responsible for enforcing and carrying into effect the provisions of the Scheme.

The legal affect of this land use scheme is as outlined in Section 26 of SPLUMA (Act No.16 of 2013).

#### 1.3. PURPOSE OF THE SCHEME

The purpose of the Scheme is to:

- a) Enable the comprehensive land use management of all erven (both private and state owned land) within the Municipality;
- b) To promote and implement the applicable planning and development legislation and principles as adopted by the relevant National, Provincial and Local spheres of government from time to time;
- c) To give effect to the development principles as contained in the Spatial Planning and Land Use Management Act (Act 16 of 2013)- spatial justice, spatial sustainability, efficiency, spatial resilience and good administration.

- d) To promote and implement the Vision and Strategies of the Integrated Development Plan in the realization of quality environments.
- e) To manage urban growth and development.
- f) To manage conservation of the natural environment, in order to:
  - i. Achieve co-ordinated and harmonious development in a way that will
    efficiently promote public safety, health, order, convenience and to protect
    the general welfare of the inhabitants of the Municipality;
  - ii. Promote integrated and sustainable development through-out the area of jurisdiction;
  - iii. Promote sustainable environmental management.

1.4	Ĺ '	FF	FF	CTI	VF	D	ATE
		L-1 -			$\mathbf{v}$	DI	<b>11L</b>

The effective date of this Land Use Management Scheme is the

The Scheme is binding on all persons and all organs of state in terms of Section 26 of the Spatial Planning and Land Use Management Act, 2013 (Act No. 16 of 2013) read with the Mandeni Municipality Spatial Planning and Land Use Management By-laws, (as amended and/or prevailing).

#### 1.5. AREA OF SCHEME AND SCHEME MAPS

The Mandeni Scheme applies to all land within the jurisdiction of the Mandeni Local Municipality as shown on the associated Scheme Map, ref\_\_\_\_\_.

#### 1.6. MANAGEMENT OVERLAYS

The Scheme Map shall comprise of a series of zoning maps reflecting all the respective areas within the Municipal jurisdiction. This includes management overlays that provide additional guidelines of regulations pertaining to specific areas.

Additional and more detailed land use management, beyond that stipulated in the Scheme Regulations and Map/s is processed via the use of Management Overlays and Management Plans. The Management Overlay identifies the boundary of the area or precinct for which additional regulations or guidelines pertain. The Management Overlay redirects the user to the "informant" or "plan" that contains the additional information, and this is a parallel or co-ordinating plan. The Management Overlay also redirects the user to the source (date) of the plan concerned.

The Mandeni Scheme Map includes the following management overlays:

- 1) Dokodweni Local Area Plan.
- 2) iLembe Environmental Management Framework.
- 3) iLembe Bio-diversity Sector Plan.
- 4) Mandeni Urban Design Framework.
- 5) Mandeni Coastal Management Programme.
- 6) Tugela Mouth Local Area Plan.
- 7) Transnet Pipeline Conditions.

#### 1.6.1. Adoption, Replacement, Amendment of Management Overlay.

The Municipality may adopt, replace, amend, or recommend any Management Overlay providing development directives. When the relevant National or Provincial department releases any new updates or information the Municipality must update its records accordingly to ensure alignment.

The Mandeni Municipality shall maintain a register of formally adopted/incorporated Management Overlays which will be maintained as an Annexure to the Land Use Scheme.

#### 1.7. INSPECTION OF THE SCHEME

The Scheme (Regulations and Map) are public documents and open for inspection by the general public at any reasonable time at the municipal offices or on the municipal website.

A register of all applications and decisions on the Scheme Regulations and Maps shall be kept and shall be available for inspection by any person or persons at any reasonable time.

#### 1.8. AMENDMENTS TO THE SCHEME

If the Mandeni Municipality desires to amend any of the provisions of the Scheme, the Municipality shall comply with the provisions as set out in the Spatial Planning Land Use Management Act (Act No.16 of 2013), read with the provisions of the Mandeni Municipality Spatial Planning and Land Use Management By-law or any subsequent replacement legislation.

## 2. GENERAL DEFINITIONS

AMENITY	Means a natural or created feature or aspect that enhances the
	aesthetic quality, visual appeal, or makes it more attractive or
	satisfying for a particular property, place or area.
APPLICANT	Means any registered owner of the land, whether a natural
	person or juristic body, or anybody duly authorized by such
	owner, who makes an application as provided in terms of the
	Spatial Planning and Land Use Management Act (Act 16 of 2013)
	read together with the Mandeni Municipality Spatial Planning
	and Land Use Management By-laws (Municipal Notice 120 of
	2015).
AUTHORISED	Means Municipal Planning Authorised Officer, an official who
OFFICER	may consider and determine applications as contemplated in
	section 35(2) of the Spatial Planning and Land Use Management
	Act (Act 16 of 2013) and section 22 (1)(a) of the SPLUMA Bylaw,
	but also deciding to any consent application/s.

APPEAL	Means the Municipal Planning Appeal Authority which is the
AUTHORITY	Municipal Executive Committee.
AUTHORITY	Means the written authority given by the Municipality in terms of
	its statutory powers.
APPROVAL	Means the approval of the Council/Municipal Planning
	Tribunal or Authorised Officer.
AREA OF SCHEME	The area of land (including traditional authority area) and
	registered erven within the jurisdiction of the Mandeni
	Municipality as shown on the associated scheme maps.
ATTORNEYS OR	Means a person admitted to practice as an attorney in Terms
ADVOCATES	of the Attorneys Act, 1979 (Act No 53 of 1979) or as an
	advocate in terms of The Advocates Act 1964 (Act No. 74 of
	1964).
BASEMENT	Means any storey of a building or portion thereof where either
	the floor level of such storey is two metres (2m) or more below
	the mean finished ground level of the site on which such building
	or portion thereof is erected; or
	the ceiling level of such storey is below a level of one metre (1m)
	above finished ground level.
BUILDING	Means any structure with a roof and walls or construction of an
	immovable nature for whatever purpose used, including any tank,
	swimming pool, mast, wind turbine and any wall, retaining wall
	or close-boarded fence more than two metres in height at any
	point, but excluding steps, pier, ramp, fountain, statue, fish-pond,
	pergola or other garden ornament.
BUILDING LINE	Means a line parallel to any boundary of an Erf which is
	contiguous with a street, public right of way or road reservation;
	or in the case of "hatchet shaped" Erven, a line parallel to the
	boundary nearest to the street which is not a boundary of the
	access strip.
BOUNDARY	A boundary line of two properties is moved without creating
ADJUSTMENT	any new erven.
BYLAW	Means a regulation made by a local authority to enable
	the Council to give proper effect to the powers and duties
	conferred or imposed upon it.

is set aside for the use and enjoyment of all occupants of the dwelling units on that site and from which the general public may be excluded.  CONSENT USE  Buildings and uses which may be approved by the Authorised Officer/Municipal Planning Tribunal after following the consent procedure as set out in the SPLUMA Bylaw.  CONSTITUTION  Means the Constitution of the Republic of South Africa, Act (Act No. 108 of 1996).  COVERAGE  The proportion of an erf/lot that may be covered by the roofed area of all buildings, expressed as a percentage of the erf/lot area as defined. Thus 25% coverage means that buildings may cover only one quarter of the Erf/lot.  DENSITY  Means the number of dwelling units per hectare as prescribed in relation to a specific area in the development parameters of the land use scheme.  DEEDS REGISTRY  Means a deeds registry established in terms of section 1(1) (a) of the Deeds Registries Act, 1937 (Act No 47 of 1937).  DEVELOPMENT  Means the Development Facilitation Act, 1995 (Act No. 67
be excluded.  CONSENT USE  Buildings and uses which may be approved by the Authorised Officer/Municipal Planning Tribunal after following the consent procedure as set out in the SPLUMA Bylaw.  CONSTITUTION  Means the Constitution of the Republic of South Africa, Act (Act No. 108 of 1996).  COVERAGE  The proportion of an erf/lot that may be covered by the roofed area of all buildings, expressed as a percentage of the erf/lot area as defined. Thus 25% coverage means that buildings may cover only one quarter of the Erf/lot.  DENSITY  Means the number of dwelling units per hectare as prescribed in relation to a specific area in the development parameters of the land use scheme.  DEEDS REGISTRY  Means a deeds registry established in terms of section 1(1) (a) of the Deeds Registries Act, 1937 (Act No 47 of 1937).  DEVELOPMENT  Means the Development Facilitation Act, 1995 (Act No. 67
CONSENT USE  Buildings and uses which may be approved by the Authorised Officer/Municipal Planning Tribunal after following the consent procedure as set out in the SPLUMA Bylaw.  CONSTITUTION  Means the Constitution of the Republic of South Africa, Act (Act No. 108 of 1996).  COVERAGE  The proportion of an erf/lot that may be covered by the roofed area of all buildings, expressed as a percentage of the erf/lot area as defined. Thus 25% coverage means that buildings may cover only one quarter of the Erf/lot.  DENSITY  Means the number of dwelling units per hectare as prescribed in relation to a specific area in the development parameters of the land use scheme.  DEEDS REGISTRY  Means a deeds registry established in terms of section 1(1) (a) of the Deeds Registries Act, 1937 (Act No 47 of 1937).  DEVELOPMENT  Means the Development Facilitation Act, 1995 (Act No. 67
Authorised Officer/Municipal Planning Tribunal after following the consent procedure as set out in the SPLUMA Bylaw.  CONSTITUTION Means the Constitution of the Republic of South Africa, Act (Act No. 108 of 1996).  COVERAGE The proportion of an erf/lot that may be covered by the roofed area of all buildings, expressed as a percentage of the erf/lot area as defined. Thus 25% coverage means that buildings may cover only one quarter of the Erf/lot.  DENSITY Means the number of dwelling units per hectare as prescribed in relation to a specific area in the development parameters of the land use scheme.  DEEDS REGISTRY Means a deeds registry established in terms of section 1(1) (a) of the Deeds Registries Act, 1937 (Act No 47 of 1937).  DEVELOPMENT Means the Development Facilitation Act, 1995 (Act No. 67
the consent procedure as set out in the SPLUMA Bylaw.  CONSTITUTION  Means the Constitution of the Republic of South Africa, Act (Act No. 108 of 1996).  COVERAGE  The proportion of an erf/lot that may be covered by the roofed area of all buildings, expressed as a percentage of the erf/lot area as defined. Thus 25% coverage means that buildings may cover only one quarter of the Erf/lot.  DENSITY  Means the number of dwelling units per hectare as prescribed in relation to a specific area in the development parameters of the land use scheme.  DEEDS REGISTRY  Means a deeds registry established in terms of section 1(1) (a) of the Deeds Registries Act, 1937 (Act No 47 of 1937).  DEVELOPMENT  Means the Development Facilitation Act, 1995 (Act No. 67
CONSTITUTION  Means the Constitution of the Republic of South Africa, Act (Act No. 108 of 1996).  COVERAGE  The proportion of an erf/lot that may be covered by the roofed area of all buildings, expressed as a percentage of the erf/lot area as defined. Thus 25% coverage means that buildings may cover only one quarter of the Erf/lot.  DENSITY  Means the number of dwelling units per hectare as prescribed in relation to a specific area in the development parameters of the land use scheme.  DEEDS REGISTRY  Means a deeds registry established in terms of section 1(1) (a) of the Deeds Registries Act, 1937 (Act No 47 of 1937).  DEVELOPMENT  Means the Development Facilitation Act, 1995 (Act No. 67
Act (Act No. 108 of 1996).  COVERAGE  The proportion of an erf/lot that may be covered by the roofed area of all buildings, expressed as a percentage of the erf/lot area as defined. Thus 25% coverage means that buildings may cover only one quarter of the Erf/lot.  DENSITY  Means the number of dwelling units per hectare as prescribed in relation to a specific area in the development parameters of the land use scheme.  DEEDS REGISTRY  Means a deeds registry established in terms of section 1(1) (a) of the Deeds Registries Act, 1937 (Act No 47 of 1937).  DEVELOPMENT  Means the Development Facilitation Act, 1995 (Act No. 67
COVERAGE  The proportion of an erf/lot that may be covered by the roofed area of all buildings, expressed as a percentage of the erf/lot area as defined. Thus 25% coverage means that buildings may cover only one quarter of the Erf/lot.  DENSITY  Means the number of dwelling units per hectare as prescribed in relation to a specific area in the development parameters of the land use scheme.  DEEDS REGISTRY  Means a deeds registry established in terms of section 1(1) (a) of the Deeds Registries Act, 1937 (Act No 47 of 1937).  DEVELOPMENT  Means the Development Facilitation Act, 1995 (Act No. 67
area of all buildings, expressed as a percentage of the erf/lot area as defined. Thus 25% coverage means that buildings may cover only one quarter of the Erf/lot.  DENSITY  Means the number of dwelling units per hectare as prescribed in relation to a specific area in the development parameters of the land use scheme.  DEEDS REGISTRY  Means a deeds registry established in terms of section 1(1) (a) of the Deeds Registries Act, 1937 (Act No 47 of 1937).  DEVELOPMENT  Means the Development Facilitation Act, 1995 (Act No. 67
area as defined. Thus 25% coverage means that buildings may cover only one quarter of the Erf/lot.  DENSITY  Means the number of dwelling units per hectare as prescribed in relation to a specific area in the development parameters of the land use scheme.  DEEDS REGISTRY  Means a deeds registry established in terms of section 1(1) (a) of the Deeds Registries Act, 1937 (Act No 47 of 1937).  DEVELOPMENT  Means the Development Facilitation Act, 1995 (Act No. 67
cover only one quarter of the Erf/lot.  DENSITY  Means the number of dwelling units per hectare as prescribed in relation to a specific area in the development parameters of the land use scheme.  DEEDS REGISTRY  Means a deeds registry established in terms of section 1(1) (a) of the Deeds Registries Act, 1937 (Act No 47 of 1937).  DEVELOPMENT  Means the Development Facilitation Act, 1995 (Act No. 67
DENSITY  Means the number of dwelling units per hectare as prescribed in relation to a specific area in the development parameters of the land use scheme.  DEEDS REGISTRY  Means a deeds registry established in terms of section 1(1) (a) of the Deeds Registries Act, 1937 (Act No 47 of 1937).  DEVELOPMENT  Means the Development Facilitation Act, 1995 (Act No. 67
in relation to a specific area in the development parameters of the land use scheme.  DEEDS REGISTRY  Means a deeds registry established in terms of section 1(1) (a) of the Deeds Registries Act, 1937 (Act No 47 of 1937).  DEVELOPMENT  Means the Development Facilitation Act, 1995 (Act No. 67
the land use scheme.  DEEDS REGISTRY  Means a deeds registry established in terms of section 1(1) (a) of the Deeds Registries Act, 1937 (Act No 47 of 1937).  DEVELOPMENT  Means the Development Facilitation Act, 1995 (Act No. 67
DEEDS REGISTRY Means a deeds registry established in terms of section 1(1) (a) of the Deeds Registries Act, 1937 (Act No 47 of 1937).  DEVELOPMENT Means the Development Facilitation Act, 1995 (Act No. 67
1(1) (a) of the Deeds Registries Act, 1937 (Act No 47 of 1937).  DEVELOPMENT Means the Development Facilitation Act, 1995 (Act No. 67
1937).  DEVELOPMENT Means the Development Facilitation Act, 1995 (Act No. 67
DEVELOPMENT Means the Development Facilitation Act, 1995 (Act No. 67
FACILITATION of 1995).
ACT
DISTRICT Means the iLembe District Municipality (or any superceding
MUNICIPALITY district municipality under which the local municipality may fall
in terms of the Minicipal Demarcation Act (Act No 27 of 1998).
DEVELOPMENT In relation to any land, means buildings and structures, the
carrying out of construction, engineering, mining or other
operations on, under or over land, and a material change to the
existing use of any building or land for non-agricultural purposes.
DEVELOPMENT Means rights to use land in ways that differ from the current
RIGHTS use.
DEVELOPABLE Means the registered, surveyed area of a lot excluding areas
AREA which are, in the opinion of the Municipality, rendered
undevelopable by virtue of factors such as soil instability, prone

	to flooding, topographic inaccessibility, environmental sensitivity
	and/or steep slope.
DEVELOPMENT	Means a once-off charge determined by the Municipality in terms
CHARGE	of a condition of approval of a land development application in
GIIIIIGE	order to cover the total cost to be incurred by the municipality
	towards the construction or erection of any infrastructure
	required for the provision of an external engineering service to
	the development to which the application relates.
DWELLING UNIT	
DWELLING UNII	Means a self-contained inter-leading group of rooms used
	exclusively for human habitation, including not more than one
	kitchen together with relevant ancillary outbuildings.
DWELLING UNIT	Means a single defined area of land forming part of a
CURTILAGE	housing development comprising the land upon which a dwelling
	is erected or is intended to be erected together with such private
	open areas and other areas as are reserved for the exclusive use
	of the occupants of the dwelling unit.
ENGINEERING	Means infrastructure for –
SERVICES	(a) Roads;
	(b) Storm water drainage;
	(c) Potable water;
	(d) Electricity;
	(e) Telecommunication;
	(f) Sewerage disposal;
	(g) Waste water disposal; and
	(h) Solid waste disposal
ENVIRONMENTAL	A process by which possible impacts of proposed
IMPACT	developments are measured, as required by the National
ASSESMENT (EIA)	Environmental Act, 1998 (Act No. 107 of 1998).
ENVIRONMENTAL	Means a site-specific document that details the methods and
MANAGEMENT	procedures for mitigating and monitoring the impact of a
PLAN	development project/construction.
ERF	Means any piece of land registered in the deeds registry as an
	erf, lot, plot, stand or farm and includes a portion of an erf, lot,
	plot or stand.

EXISTING	Means a building lawfully erected before the effective date of this		
BUILDING	scheme or a building erected in accordance with plans, which		
	were approved by the Municipality prior to that date.		
EXISTING USE	Means, in relation to any building or land, the continuous use of		
	such building or land for the same purpose for which it was		
	designed and lawfully used with the land use approval in terms of the		
	Town Planning Scheme applicable to it, prioir to the adoption of this		
	scheme.		
EXECUTIVE	Means the executive committee or executive mayor of the		
AUTHORITY	Municipality or, if the Municipality does not have an executive		
	committee or executive mayor, a committee of councilors		
	appointed by the Municipal Council.		
FAMILY	Means a man or a woman or both, with or without their parents,		
	the children of one or the other or both of them, or a partner,		
	living together as one household.		
FLOOD LINE	Means the lines indicating the maximum level likely to be reached		
	by floodwaters on the land, having a specified recurrence interval		
	e.g. 1 in 50 year or 1in 100 year flood line and within which		
	development should be avoided.		
FLOOR AREA	The floor area of a building shall be taken as the sum of the		
	roofed areas of the building at each floor level, measured		
	over and including wall thickness and enclosed balconies,		
	verandas and stoops, but shall exclude: staircases and access		
	galleries, public toilets, lift shafts and lift motor rooms, water		
	storage tanks, refuse storage areas, areas used for		
	accommodation of mechanical ventilation, air- conditioning and		
	effluent treatment plants accommodation of mechanical		
	ventilation, air-conditioning and effluent treatment plants		
	electricity transformer rooms, substations and meter rooms.		
FLOOR AREA	Means the ratio that determines the permissible floor area of an		
RATIO (F.A.R.)	erf expressed as a decimal.		
FRONTAGE	The length of the boundary of a lot/erf that fronts onto an		
	existing or proposed street.		

GEOMATICS	Geomatics Professions Act, 2013 (Act No. 19 of 2013
PROFESSIONS	
ACT	
GENERAL PLAN	Means a general plan approved by the Surveyor-General in terms
	of the Land Survey Act, 1997 (Act No.8 of 1997)
GENERAL WASTE	Mean waste that does not pose an immediate hazard or threat to
	health or to the environment, and includes:-
	i.) domestic waste;
	ii.) building and demolition waste;
	iii.) business waste; and
	iv.) inert waste. (Reference National Environmental Management
	Waste Act (No. 59 of 2008).
GREEN HOUSE	As provided for under "Agricultural Land" means a
	structure with the sides primarily made of transparent material
	such as glass, perspex or plastic, used for the purpose of rearing
	delicate plants or hastening growth of
	plants under controlled environmental conditions.
GROUND FLOOR	The storey of a building or portion of a building on or nearest the
AREA	mean finished ground level immediately surrounding the
	building provided it is not a basement.
HEIGHT	Means the height of a building in storeys and is expressed as a
	number, provided that where the ground floor of a building is on
	more than one level, such building shall be regarded as formed
	of portions in relation to each respective level and the
	height of such building shall be calculated separately in respect of
	each portion of such a building.
HIGH WATER	Means the highest line reached by coastal waters, but excluding
MARK	any line reached as a result of:
	a) exceptional or abnormal floods or storms that occur no more
	than once in ten 40 years: or
	b) an estuary being closed to the sea. Reference Integrated
	National Environmental Management Coastal Management Act
	(No. 24 of 2008).
HOME OWNERS	Means a company registered in terms of Section 21 of the
ASSOCIATION	

	Companies Act, No. 71 of 2008, as amended, membership of which
	shall be exclusive to and compulsory for the freehold or
	registered leasehold owners of dwelling unit curtilages in a multi-
	unit housing development.
INGONYAMA	Means the Public Entity reporting to the National Minister for
TRUST BOARD	Rural Development and Land Reform "the Minister" as Executive
(ITB)	Authority. The Board is the Accounting Authority and derives its
	mandate from the KwaZulu-Natal Ingonyama Trust Act (Act 3 of
	1994) as amended by the National Act 9 of 1997 read in
	conjunction with the Public Finance Management Act (Act 1 of
	1999).
INDUNA	Means the headman/men who, in terms of African Customary
	Law, oversees izigodi
INKOSI	Means Traditional Leaders in charge of a particular Traditional
	Authority in terms of the Kwazulu Amakhosi and Iziphakanyiswa
	Act, 1990
INTEGRATED	Means a plan adopted in terms of Chapter 5 of the
DEVELOPMENT	Municipal Systems Act (Act No 32 of 2000).
PLAN (IDP)	
ISIGODI	Means a "traditional ward".
LAND	Means any erf, stand or other portion of land registered or
	capable of being registered in a deeds registry, and may include a
	servitude right or lease.
LAND	Means the buildings or structures on land, or the change of use of
DEVELOPMENT	land, including township establishment, the subdivision or
	consolidation of land or any deviation from the land use or uses
	permitted in terms of an applicable land use scheme.
LAND USE	Means the purpose for which land is or maybe used lawfully
	in terms of a land use scheme, existing scheme or in terms of any
	authorization permit or consent issued by a competent authority,
	and includes any conditions related to such land use purposes.
LAND USE	Means the system of regulating and managing land use and
MANAGEMENT	conferring land use rights through the use of schemes
SYSTEM	and land development procedures.

LAND USE	Means the documents referred to in Chapter 5 of SPLUMA for the
SCHEME	regulation of land use.
LAND	Means an official in the employ of the municipality who may
DEVELOPMENT	consider and determine applications as contemplated in section
MANAGEMENT	35(2) of the SPLUMA.
ADMINISTRATOR	
LIQUOR ACT	Means the Liquor Act, No. 27 of 1989, or any superceding Act.
LODGE	In the context that it has the same meaning as "serve", except in
	relation to the lodging of plans and documents with the
	Surveyor-General or the lodging of deeds plans and documents
	with the Registrar of Deeds.
LODGER	Means a person who pays rent in return for accommodation.
MAISONETTE	Means a two-storey building consisting of 2 dwelling units
	placed one above the other with separate entrances.
MEC	Means a Member of the Executive Council of a Province.
MUNICIPAL AREA	Means the area of jurisdiction of a municipality in terms of the
	Local Government: Municipal Demarcation Act,
	1998 (Act No. 27 of 1998).
MUNICIPALITY	Means the Mandeni Local Municipality.
MUNICIPAL	Means by-law enforcement officers who are peace officers located
PLANNING	in the Economic Development, Planning and Human Settlement
	Department (or superceding department).
LAND	Means an official in the employ of the municipality who may
DEVELOPMENT	consider and determine applications as contemplated in section
MANAGEMENT	35(2) of the SPLUMA.
ADMINISTRATOR	
MUNICIPAL	Means Municipal Planning Tribunal in terms of Chapter
PLANNING	6 of the Spatial Planning and Land Use Management Act
TRIBUNAL	2013 (Act No 16 of 2013) read with the SPLUMA Bylaw
	(2015).
NET DENSITY	Means the density of a specified area, calculated by deducting
	land set aside for public purposes and other ancillary uses from
	the total area.

MOM	7 1 1 1
NON -	In relation to any building, land or other premises means the
CONFORMING	continued use of an existing use pertaining to such building, land
USE	or other premises for a purpose or in any manner whatsoever
	which is not in conformity with or constitutes a breach of any of
	the provisions of the Scheme, but is otherwise lawful.
ORDINANCE	Means the Town Planning Ordinance No. 27 of 1949 as
	Amended.
OWNER	Means the person registered in a deeds registry who holds the
	lawful rights to the said land.
OUTBUILDING	Means a building ordinarily used in conjunction with a
	dwelling unit(s), and used for the garaging of private motor
	vehicles, storeroom, domestic's rooms, domestic toilet,
	workroom and other such similar uses.
PANHANDLE	Means the access portion of a property to the street by means
	of a narrowed part of the land unit. Minimum width of the
	panhandle to be 2.5 meters.
PRIMARY USE	Means the predominant use of any erf, building or structure.
PRIVATE OPEN	Means a usable area, exclusive of utility areas, driveways
AREA	and parking areas, which is open to the sky and which is adjacent
	to and has direct access from a dwelling unit in a multi-unit
	residential development. Such private open area being reserved
	for the exclusive use of the occupants of the associated dwelling
	unit, but may include covered open areas (patios) and verandas.
REAR BOUNDARY	Shall mean that boundary of an erf which is furthest from any
	street boundary, and which does not meet any street boundary.
REGISTRAR OF	Means the Registrar of Deeds as defined in the Deeds
DEEDS	Registries Act (Act No 47 of 1937).
RESTRICTIVE	Means any condition registered against the title deed of land
CONDITIONS	restricting the use, development or subdivision of the land
	concerned.
SCHEME	
	Means a land use management tool used by the Municipality to
	manage the development which occurs within its area of
	jurisdiction. It comprises a set of maps and associated
	regulations which guide and manage land use practices.

SERVITUDE  Means a registered right that grants the use of a portion of land for specified purposes.  SET BACK  See definition for building line.  SIDE BOUNDARY  Any boundary of an Erf which meets a street boundary and any other boundary and which is neither a street boundary nor a rear boundary.  STREET  Means any street, road, lane, avenue, way, footpath, bridge, subwayorother, right-of-wayandincludes appurtenances thereto.  STREET  Means a boundary of an erf, which is coincident with the boundary of an existing or proposed street.  SURVEYOR  Means the Surveyor General as defined in the Land Survey Act, 1997 (Act No. 8 of 1997)  SURVEYOR  Means a diagram as defined in the Land Survey Act, 1997  GENERAL  DIAGRAM (S.G.  Diagram)  TITLE DEED  Means any deed registered in a Deeds registry recording the ownership of land or real rights in land.  TOWNSHIP  REGISTER  of the Deeds Registries Act.  TRADITIONAL  Traditional Leaders and Governance Act, 2003  Means a Council established in term of section 3 of the Traditional Leaders and Governance Act, 2003  Means the demarcated line and inter related policy which serves to manage, direct and control the outer limit of urban expansion.  USABLE  Means the usable portion of the common land which is not occupied by vehicular road carriageway, parking areas and communal facilities of a non-recreational nature, but includes walkways, structures intended for recreational use and a	SERVICES	Means a written agreement that is concluded between the
installation and maintenance of internal and external engineering services.  SERVITUDE Means a registered right that grants the use of a portion of land for specified purposes.  SET BACK See definition for building line.  SIDE BOUNDARY Any boundary of an Erf which meets a street boundary and any other boundary and which is neither a street boundary nor a rear boundary.  STREET Means any street, road, lane, avenue, way, footpath, bridge, subway or otherright-of-way and includes appurtenances thereto.  STREET Means a boundary of an erf, which is coincident with the boundary of an existing or proposed street.  SURVEYOR Means the Surveyor General as defined in the Land Survey Act, 1997 (Act No. 8 of 1997)  SURVEYOR Means a diagram as defined in the Land Survey Act, 1997 (Act No. 08 of 1997).  Means a diagram as defined in the Land Survey Act, 1997 (Act No. 08 of 1997).  TITLE DEED Means any deed registered in a Deeds registry recording the ownership of land or real rights in land.  TOWNSHIP Means an approved subdivision register of a township in terms of the Deeds Registries Act.  TRADITIONAL Means a Council established in term of section 3 of the Traditional Leaders and Governance Act, 2003  URBAN EDGE Means the demarcated line and inter related policy which serves to manage, direct and control the outer limit of urban expansion.  USABLE Means the usable portion of the common land which is not occupied by vehicular road carriageway, parking areas and communal facilities of a non-recreational nature, but includes walkways, structures intended for recreational use and a	AGREEMENT	developer of land and Council, in terms of the respective
SERVITUDE  Means a registered right that grants the use of a portion of land for specified purposes.  SET BACK  See definition for building line.  SIDE BOUNDARY  Any boundary of an Erf which meets a street boundary and any other boundary and which is neither a street boundary nor a rear boundary.  STREET  Means any street, road, lane, avenue, way, footpath, bridge, subwayorother, right-of-wayandincludes appurtenances thereto.  STREET  Means a boundary of an erf, which is coincident with the boundary of an existing or proposed street.  SURVEYOR  Means the Surveyor General as defined in the Land Survey Act, 1997 (Act No. 8 of 1997)  SURVEYOR  Means a diagram as defined in the Land Survey Act, 1997  GENERAL  DIAGRAM (S.G.  Diagram)  TITLE DEED  Means any deed registered in a Deeds registry recording the ownership of land or real rights in land.  TOWNSHIP  REGISTER  of the Deeds Registries Act.  TRADITIONAL  Traditional Leaders and Governance Act, 2003  Means a Council established in term of section 3 of the Traditional Leaders and Governance Act, 2003  Means the demarcated line and inter related policy which serves to manage, direct and control the outer limit of urban expansion.  USABLE  Means the usable portion of the common land which is not occupied by vehicular road carriageway, parking areas and communal facilities of a non-recreational nature, but includes walkways, structures intended for recreational use and a		responsibilities of the two parties for planning, design, provision,
SERVITUDE Means a registered right that grants the use of a portion of land for specified purposes.  SET BACK See definition for building line.  SIDE BOUNDARY Any boundary of an Erf which meets a street boundary and any other boundary and which is neither a street boundary nor a rear boundary.  STREET Means any street, road, lane, avenue, way, footpath, bridge, subwayorothere to.  STREET Means a boundary of an erf, which is coincident with the boundary of an existing or proposed street.  SURVEYOR Means the Surveyor General as defined in the Land Survey Act, 1997 (Act No. 8 of 1997)  SURVEYOR Means a diagram as defined in the Land Survey Act, 1997 (Act No. 08 of 1997).  SURVEYOR Means any deed registered in a Deeds registry recording the ownership of land or real rights in land.  TOWNSHIP Means an approved subdivision register of a township in terms of the Deeds Registries Act.  TRADITIONAL Means a Council established in term of section 3 of the Traditional Leaders and Governance Act, 2003  Means the demarcated line and inter related policy which serves to manage, direct and control the outer limit of urban expansion.  USABLE Means the usable portion of the common land which is not occupied by vehicular road carriageway, parking areas and communal facilities of a non-recreational nature, but includes walkways, structures intended for recreational use and a		installation and maintenance of internal and external engineering
for specified purposes.  SET BACK  See definition for building line.  SIDE BOUNDARY  Any boundary of an Erf which meets a street boundary and any other boundary and which is neither a street boundary nor a rear boundary.  STREET  Means any street, road, lane, avenue, way, footpath, bridge, s u b w a y o r o therright-of-way and includes appurtenances thereto.  STREET  Means a boundary of an erf, which is coincident with the boundary of an existing or proposed street.  SURVEYOR  GENERAL  SURVEYOR  GENERAL  SURVEYOR  GENERAL  DIAGRAM (S.G.  Diagram)  TITLE DEED  Means and deed registered in the Land Survey Act, 1997  (Act No. 08 of 1997).  Means any deed registered in a Deeds registry recording the ownership of land or real rights in land.  TOWNSHIP  REGISTER  Means an approved subdivision register of a township in terms of the Deeds Registries Act.  TRADITIONAL  Means a Council established in term of section 3 of the COUNCIL  Traditional Leaders and Governance Act, 2003  URBAN EDGE  Means the demarcated line and inter related policy which serves to manage, direct and control the outer limit of urban expansion.  USABLE  COMMON  OPEN SPACE  Means the usable portion of the common land which is not coccupied by vehicular road carriageway, parking areas and communal facilities of a non-recreational nature, but includes walkways, structures intended for recreational use and a		services.
SET BACK  See definition for building line.  SIDE BOUNDARY  Any boundary of an Erf which meets a street boundary and any other boundary and which is neither a street boundary nor a rear boundary.  STREET  Means any street, road, lane, avenue, way, footpath, bridge, s u b w a y o r o the r r i ght-of-way and includes appurtenances thereto.  STREET  Means a boundary of an erf, which is coincident with the boundary of an existing or proposed street.  SURVEYOR  GENERAL  SURVEYOR  Means the Surveyor General as defined in the Land  Survey Act, 1997 (Act No. 8 of 1997)  SURVEYOR  GENERAL  DIAGRAM (S.G.  Diagram)  TITLE DEED  Means any deed registered in a Deeds registry recording the ownership of land or real rights in land.  TOWNSHIP  REGISTER  Means an approved subdivision register of a township in terms of the Deeds Registries Act.  TRADITIONAL  COUNCIL  Traditional Leaders and Governance Act, 2003  URBAN EDGE  Means the demarcated line and inter related policy which serves to manage, direct and control the outer limit of urban expansion.  USABLE  COMMON  OPEN SPACE  Walkey  Means the usable portion of the common land which is not coccupied by vehicular road carriageway, parking areas and communal facilities of a non-recreational nature, but includes walkways, structures intended for recreational use and a	SERVITUDE	Means a registered right that grants the use of a portion of land
SIDE BOUNDARY  Any boundary of an Erf which meets a street boundary and any other boundary and which is neither a street boundary nor a rear boundary.  STREET  Means any street, road, lane, avenue, way, footpath, bridge, s u b w a y o r o the r r i ght-of-way and includes appurtenances thereto.  STREET  Means a boundary of an erf, which is coincident with the boundary of an existing or proposed street.  SURVEYOR  Means the Surveyor General as defined in the Land Survey Act, 1997 (Act No. 8 of 1997)  SURVEYOR  Means a diagram as defined in the Land Survey Act, 1997  (Act No. 08 of 1997).  DIAGRAM (S.G.  Diagram)  TITLE DEED  Means any deed registered in a Deeds registry recording the ownership of land or real rights in land.  TOWNSHIP  REGISTER  Means an approved subdivision register of a township in terms of the Deeds Registries Act.  TRADITIONAL  COUNCIL  Traditional Leaders and Governance Act, 2003  URBAN EDGE  Means the demarcated line and inter related policy which serves to manage, direct and control the outer limit of urban expansion.  USABLE  COMMON  OCUPIEN SPACE  OCUMPON OCCUPIED SPACE  Weans the usable portion of the common land which is not common land which is not common land sulving areas and communal facilities of a non-recreational nature, but includes walkways, structures intended for recreational use and a		for specified purposes.
any other boundary and which is neither a street boundary nor a rear boundary.  STREET  Means any street, road, lane, avenue, way, footpath, bridge, s u b w a y o r o the r r i ght-of-way and includes appurtenances thereto.  STREET  Means a boundary of an erf, which is coincident with the boundary of an existing or proposed street.  SURVEYOR  GENERAL  Survey Act, 1997 (Act No. 8 of 1997)  SURVEYOR  GENERAL  DIAGRAM (S.G. Diagram)  TITLE DEED  Means any deed registered in a Deeds registry recording the ownership of land or real rights in land.  TOWNSHIP  REGISTER  Of the Deeds Registries Act.  TRADITIONAL  COUNCIL  Traditional Leaders and Governance Act, 2003  Means the demarcated line and inter related policy which serves to manage, direct and control the outer limit of urban expansion.  USABLE  Means the usable portion of the common land which is not occupied by vehicular road carriageway, parking areas and communal facilities of a non-recreational nature, but includes walkways, structures intended for recreational use and a	SET BACK	See definition for building line.
rear boundary.  STREET  Means any street, road, lane, avenue, way, footpath, bridge, s u b w a y o r o therright-of-way and includes appurtenances thereto.  STREET  Means a boundary of an erf, which is coincident with the boundary of an existing or proposed street.  SURVEYOR  GENERAL  Survey Act, 1997 (Act No. 8 of 1997)  SURVEYOR  GENERAL  DIAGRAM (S.G. Diagram)  TITLE DEED  Means any deed registered in a Deeds registry recording the ownership of land or real rights in land.  TOWNSHIP  REGISTER  TRADITIONAL  COUNCIL  Traditional Leaders and Governance Act, 2003  Weans the demarcated line and interrelated policy which serves to manage, direct and control the outer limit of urban expansion.  USABLE  Means the usable portion of the common land which is not occupied by vehicular road carriageway, parking areas and communal facilities of a non-recreational nature, but includes walkways, structures intended for recreational use and a	SIDE BOUNDARY	Any boundary of an Erf which meets a street boundary and
STREET  Means any street, road, lane, avenue, way, footpath, bridge, s u b w a y o r o t h e r r i g h t -of-way a n d i n c l u d e s appurtenances thereto.  STREET  Means a boundary of an erf, which is coincident with the boundary of an existing or proposed street.  SURVEYOR  Means the Surveyor General as defined in the Land  GENERAL  SURVEYOR  Means a diagram as defined in the Land Survey Act, 1997  (Act No. 08 of 1997).  DIAGRAM (S.G.  Diagram)  TITLE DEED  Means any deed registered in a Deeds registry recording the ownership of land or real rights in land.  TOWNSHIP  REGISTER  Of the Deeds Registries Act.  TRADITIONAL  COUNCIL  Traditional Leaders and Governance Act, 2003  URBAN EDGE  Means the demarcated line and inter related policy which serves to manage, direct and control the outer limit of urban expansion.  USABLE  Means the usable portion of the common land which is not occupied by vehicular road carriageway, parking areas and communal facilities of a non-recreational nature, but includes walkways, structures intended for recreational use and a		any other boundary and which is neither a street boundary nor a
subwayorotherright-of-wayandincludes appurtenances thereto.  STREET Means a boundary of an erf, which is coincident with the boundary of an existing or proposed street.  SURVEYOR Means the Surveyor General as defined in the Land Survey Act, 1997 (Act No. 8 of 1997)  SURVEYOR Means a diagram as defined in the Land Survey Act, 1997  GENERAL (Act No. 08 of 1997).  DIAGRAM (S.G. Diagram)  TITLE DEED Means any deed registered in a Deeds registry recording the ownership of land or real rights in land.  TOWNSHIP Means an approved subdivision register of a township in terms of the Deeds Registries Act.  TRADITIONAL Means a Council established in term of section 3 of the Traditional Leaders and Governance Act, 2003  URBAN EDGE Means the demarcated line and inter related policy which serves to manage, direct and control the outer limit of urban expansion.  USABLE Means the usable portion of the common land which is not occupied by vehicular road carriageway, parking areas and communal facilities of a non-recreational nature, but includes walkways, structures intended for recreational use and a		rear boundary.
BOUNDARY  Boundary of an existing or proposed street.  SURVEYOR  GENERAL  Survey Act, 1997 (Act No. 8 of 1997)  SURVEYOR  GENERAL  DIAGRAM (S.G.  Diagram)  TITLE DEED  Means any deed registered in a Deeds registry recording the ownership of land or real rights in land.  TOWNSHIP  REGISTER  Means a Council established in term of section 3 of the Traditional Leaders and Governance Act, 2003  URBAN EDGE  Means the demarcated line and inter related policy which serves to manage, direct and control the outer limit of urban expansion.  USABLE  COMMON  OPEN SPACE  Means the demarcated for recreational nature, but includes walkways, structures intended for recreational use and a	STREET	subway or other right-of-way and includes
SURVEYOR GENERAL Survey Act, 1997 (Act No. 8 of 1997)  SURVEYOR Means a diagram as defined in the Land Survey Act, 1997 GENERAL DIAGRAM (S.G. Diagram)  TITLE DEED Means any deed registered in a Deeds registry recording the ownership of land or real rights in land.  TOWNSHIP REGISTER Means an approved subdivision register of a township in terms of the Deeds Registries Act.  TRADITIONAL COUNCIL Traditional Leaders and Governance Act, 2003  URBAN EDGE Means the demarcated line and inter related policy which serves to manage, direct and control the outer limit of urban expansion.  USABLE COMMON OPEN SPACE Weans the usable portion of the common land which is not occupied by vehicular road carriageway, parking areas and communal facilities of a non-recreational nature, but includes walkways, structures intended for recreational use and a	STREET	Means a boundary of an erf, which is coincident with the
GENERAL Survey Act, 1997 (Act No. 8 of 1997)  SURVEYOR GENERAL DIAGRAM (S.G. Diagram)  TITLE DEED Means any deed registered in a Deeds registry recording the ownership of land or real rights in land.  TOWNSHIP REGISTER Of the Deeds Registries Act.  TRADITIONAL COUNCIL Traditional Leaders and Governance Act, 2003  URBAN EDGE Means the demarcated line and inter related policy which serves to manage, direct and control the outer limit of urban expansion.  USABLE COMMON OPEN SPACE OWNERAL Survey Act, 1997 (Act No. 8 of 1997)  Means a diagram as defined in the Land Survey Act, 1997  (Act No. 08 of 1997).  Means any deed registered in a Deeds registry recording the ownership of land or real rights in land.  Township in terms of the Deeds Registries Act.  TRADITIONAL Traditional Leaders and Governance Act, 2003  Weans the demarcated line and inter related policy which serves to manage, direct and control the outer limit of urban expansion.  USABLE COMMON OPEN SPACE occupied by vehicular road carriageway, parking areas and communal facilities of a non-recreational nature, but includes walkways, structures intended for recreational use and a	BOUNDARY	boundary of an existing or proposed street.
SURVEYOR GENERAL DIAGRAM (S.G. Diagram)  TITLE DEED Means any deed registered in a Deeds registry recording the ownership of land or real rights in land.  TOWNSHIP REGISTER Of the Deeds Registries Act.  TRADITIONAL COUNCIL Traditional Leaders and Governance Act, 2003  URBAN EDGE Means the demarcated line and inter related policy which serves to manage, direct and control the outer limit of urban expansion.  USABLE COMMON OPEN SPACE Means the demarcated for recreational nature, but includes walkways, structures intended for recreational use and a	SURVEYOR	Means the Surveyor General as defined in the Land
GENERAL DIAGRAM (S.G. Diagram)  TITLE DEED  Means any deed registered in a Deeds registry recording the ownership of land or real rights in land.  TOWNSHIP  REGISTER  Means an approved subdivision register of a township in terms of the Deeds Registries Act.  TRADITIONAL  COUNCIL  Traditional Leaders and Governance Act, 2003  URBAN EDGE  Means the demarcated line and inter related policy which serves to manage, direct and control the outer limit of urban expansion.  USABLE  COMMON  OPEN SPACE  Means the usable portion of the common land which is not occupied by vehicular road carriageway, parking areas and communal facilities of a non-recreational nature, but includes walkways, structures intended for recreational use and a	GENERAL	Survey Act, 1997 (Act No. 8 of 1997)
DIAGRAM (S.G. Diagram)  TITLE DEED  Means any deed registered in a Deeds registry recording the ownership of land or real rights in land.  TOWNSHIP  REGISTER  Means an approved subdivision register of a township in terms of the Deeds Registries Act.  TRADITIONAL  COUNCIL  Traditional Leaders and Governance Act, 2003  URBAN EDGE  Means the demarcated line and inter related policy which serves to manage, direct and control the outer limit of urban expansion.  USABLE  COMMON  OPEN SPACE  Means the usable portion of the common land which is not occupied by vehicular road carriageway, parking areas and communal facilities of a non-recreational nature, but includes walkways, structures intended for recreational use and a	SURVEYOR	Means a diagram as defined in the Land Survey Act, 1997
TITLE DEED  Means any deed registered in a Deeds registry recording the ownership of land or real rights in land.  TOWNSHIP  REGISTER  of the Deeds Registries Act.  TRADITIONAL  COUNCIL  Traditional Leaders and Governance Act, 2003  URBAN EDGE  Means the demarcated line and inter related policy which serves to manage, direct and control the outer limit of urban expansion.  USABLE  COMMON  OPEN SPACE  Means the usable portion of the common land which is not common land which is not common land	GENERAL	(Act No. 08 of 1997).
TITLE DEED  Means any deed registered in a Deeds registry recording the ownership of land or real rights in land.  TOWNSHIP  REGISTER  Means an approved subdivision register of a township in terms of the Deeds Registries Act.  TRADITIONAL  COUNCIL  Traditional Leaders and Governance Act, 2003  URBAN EDGE  Means the demarcated line and inter related policy which serves to manage, direct and control the outer limit of urban expansion.  USABLE  COMMON  OPEN SPACE  Means the usable portion of the common land which is not occupied by vehicular road carriageway, parking areas and communal facilities of a non-recreational nature, but includes walkways, structures intended for recreational use and a	DIAGRAM (S.G.	
ownership of land or real rights in land.  TOWNSHIP REGISTER Of the Deeds Registries Act.  TRADITIONAL COUNCIL Traditional Leaders and Governance Act, 2003  URBAN EDGE Means the demarcated line and inter related policy which serves to manage, direct and control the outer limit of urban expansion.  USABLE COMMON OPEN SPACE Ownership of land or real rights in land.  Means an approved subdivision register of a township in terms of the council in terms of the	Diagram)	
TOWNSHIP REGISTER  Means an approved subdivision register of a township in terms of the Deeds Registries Act.  TRADITIONAL COUNCIL  Traditional Leaders and Governance Act, 2003  URBAN EDGE  Means the demarcated line and inter related policy which serves to manage, direct and control the outer limit of urban expansion.  USABLE  Means the usable portion of the common land which is not occupied by vehicular road carriageway, parking areas and OPEN SPACE  communal facilities of a non-recreational nature, but includes walkways, structures intended for recreational use and a	TITLE DEED	Means any deed registered in a Deeds registry recording the
REGISTER of the Deeds Registries Act.  TRADITIONAL Means a Council established in term of section 3 of the COUNCIL Traditional Leaders and Governance Act, 2003  URBAN EDGE Means the demarcated line and inter related policy which serves to manage, direct and control the outer limit of urban expansion.  USABLE Means the usable portion of the common land which is not occupied by vehicular road carriageway, parking areas and communal facilities of a non-recreational nature, but includes walkways, structures intended for recreational use and a		ownership of land or real rights in land.
TRADITIONAL Means a Council established in term of section 3 of the COUNCIL Traditional Leaders and Governance Act, 2003  URBAN EDGE Means the demarcated line and inter related policy which serves to manage, direct and control the outer limit of urban expansion.  USABLE Means the usable portion of the common land which is not occupied by vehicular road carriageway, parking areas and communal facilities of a non-recreational nature, but includes walkways, structures intended for recreational use and a	TOWNSHIP	Means an approved subdivision register of a township in terms
COUNCIL Traditional Leaders and Governance Act, 2003  URBAN EDGE Means the demarcated line and inter related policy which serves to manage, direct and control the outer limit of urban expansion.  USABLE Means the usable portion of the common land which is not occupied by vehicular road carriageway, parking areas and communal facilities of a non-recreational nature, but includes walkways, structures intended for recreational use and a	REGISTER	of the Deeds Registries Act.
URBAN EDGE  Means the demarcated line and inter related policy which serves to manage, direct and control the outer limit of urban expansion.  USABLE  Means the usable portion of the common land which is not occupied by vehicular road carriageway, parking areas and communal facilities of a non-recreational nature, but includes walkways, structures intended for recreational use and a	TRADITIONAL	Means a Council established in term of section 3 of the
to manage, direct and control the outer limit of urban expansion.  USABLE Means the usable portion of the common land which is not occupied by vehicular road carriageway, parking areas and communal facilities of a non-recreational nature, but includes walkways, structures intended for recreational use and a	COUNCIL	Traditional Leaders and Governance Act, 2003
USABLE Means the usable portion of the common land which is not occupied by vehicular road carriageway, parking areas and OPEN SPACE communal facilities of a non-recreational nature, but includes walkways, structures intended for recreational use and a	URBAN EDGE	Means the demarcated line and interrelated policy which serves
USABLE Means the usable portion of the common land which is not occupied by vehicular road carriageway, parking areas and communal facilities of a non-recreational nature, but includes walkways, structures intended for recreational use and a		to manage, direct and control the outer limit of urban
COMMON occupied by vehicular road carriageway, parking areas and communal facilities of a non-recreational nature, but includes walkways, structures intended for recreational use and a		expansion.
OPEN SPACE communal facilities of a non-recreational nature, but includes walkways, structures intended for recreational use and a	USABLE	Means the usable portion of the common land which is not
walkways, structures intended for recreational use and a	COMMON	occupied by vehicular road carriageway, parking areas and
	OPEN SPACE	communal facilities of a non-recreational nature, but includes
children's playing area or areas		walkways, structures intended for recreational use and a
children's playing area of areas.		children's playing area or areas.

UTILITY AREA	Means the outdoor private area adjacent to or associated with the
	kitchen side of a multi-unit development, the screening of which
	shall be to the satisfaction of the Municipality and which includes
	patios, verandas and drying area.
ZONES	It is that portion of the area shown on the Scheme Map, by
	distinctive colouring or edging or in some other distinctive
	manner, for the purpose of indicating the restrictions imposed
	by this Scheme on the erection and use of buildings or structures,
	or the use of land These may also include overlay zones
	(management overlays) which will apply in addition to the base
	zone of a property.

# 3. LAND USE DEFINITIONS

ABATTOIR	Means a facility registered in terms of the Meat Safety Act
	(Act No.40 of 2000) where game, livestock, poultry and
	similar animals are slaughtered on a large scale and
	prepared for distribution. It excludes the occasional
	slaughtering of animals for cultural, traditional and
	recreational purposes.
ABLUTION FACILITY	Means a building housing bathing/showering and toilet
	facilities.
ACTION SPORTS BAR	Means premises used for the sale of alcohol and/or food for
(BAR / PUB)	consumption on the premises and may include live
	entertainment, or entertainment generated by television
	transmission, or by way of mechanical, electronic or
	electrical contrivance, instruments, apparatus or devices
	which are designed or used for the purpose of playing of
	any game or for the purpose of recreation or amusement,
	and the operation of which involves the payment of any
	valuable consideration, either by the insertion of a coin,
	token coin or disc therein or in an appliance attached
	thereto or in any other manner, or billiard saloon, or
	snooker room.
AGRICULTURAL OR	(a) A building or buildings on the same agricultural land
FORESTRY	that is used for the concentration of animals for the
BUILDING	purpose of commercial production or sale –
	(i) that is $400 \text{m}^2$ or more in extent or that together are
	400m <sup>2</sup> or more in extent; or
	(ii) that is 8 meters or more in height;
	(b) A building or buildings on the same land that is used
	for the cultivation, processing, packaging, storage or sale
	of crops, flowers or trees –
	(i) that is $400 \text{m}^2$ or more in extent or that together are
	400m <sup>2</sup> or more in extent; or
	(ii) that is 8 meters or more in height; and

	(c) A building or buildings on the same land that is used
	for the storage of farm and forestry vehicles and
	implements-
	(i) that is $400\text{m}^2$ or more in extent or that together are
	400m <sup>2</sup> or more in extent; or
	(ii) that is 8 meters or more in height.
AGRICULTURAL LAND	Means arable, meadow or pastureland,
	m a r k e t gardens, poultry farm, nursery garden and may
	include amongst others, a greenhouse or hydroponics,
	horticulture, permaculture, orchards, and land used for the
	purpose of breeding, keeping or sale of domestic animals,
	poultry, bees or aquatic animals, ancillary residential
	buildings and includes any buildings connected therewith.
AGRICULTURAL	Means a building used for the intensive production in any
INDUSTRY	form whatsoever, or fish, poultry, game birds, livestock and
	allied products and includes any final processing of these
	commodities.
ANCILLARY BUILDING	A building ancillary to a dwelling house and comprising an
	inter-leading group of rooms, which shall not consist of
	more than one bedroom, a combined, lounge/dining area, a
	kitchen, a bathroom and toilet.
ARTS AND CRAFT	Means a building utilised as a workshop for the
WORKSHOP	creation, manufacturing and displaying of arts and craft, and
	may include the selling of such goods.
	The manufacturing process is such that it should not be a
	nuisance to, or affects the amenity of the surrounding
	properties.
APARTMENT BUILDING	Means a building or portion of a building with two or
	more storeys, comprising of self-contained residential
	units, each having a separate entrance onto a corridor or
	walkway and forming part of one or more storeys.
	May be used interchangeably with the term "flats".
BASE	Any structure (including the base and fencing of said
TELECOMMUNICATION	structure) designed and used for the accommodation of
STATION (BTTS)	equipment used in the transmitting or receiving of electronic
Janiion (Billo)	equipment about mane transmitting or receiving or electronic

	communications signals and includes a telecommunications
	mast.
BEACH AMENITY FACILITY	Means a premises designed to service the needs of the
	general public and/or residents, within or proximate to the
	beach, and may include a tearoom, restaurant / fast food
	outlet, small retail outlet restricted to the sale of beach
	apparel, toiletries, and photographic goods; public toilets
	storage, and hire facility for beach equipment and
	Municipal uses.
BED AND BREAKFAST	Means a dwelling in which not more than four (4)
	<b>bedrooms</b> are provided for the non-permanent
	accommodation of guests for compensation, on a daily or
	weekly basis, with or without meals.
	The primary use of the erf shall remain residential in nature.
BETTING DEPOT	A building used for the purpose of a bookmakers
	premises or a totalisator agency in terms of section22(1)
	and 28(3) of the Horse Racing and Betting Control
	Consolidation Ordinance, Ordinance No. 28 of 1957 (as
	amended).
BOARDING HOUSE	Means a building where lodging is provided to no <b>more</b>
	than 15 lodgers, and may incorporate communal cooking,
	dining and bathroom facilities. Rooms are rented for
	residential purposes, youth hostel, back packers lodge,
	guesthouse and residential club; but does not include a
	hotel, dwelling house, second dwelling or group house.
BOTTLE STORE	Means a licensed premise/s in which predominately
	alcoholic beverages are sold in the retail trade for
	consumption off-site.
BUFFER ZONE	Means a zone which supports and protects sensitive
	terrestrial and aquatic environmental areas by the creation
	of an intervening buffer or interface, which provides
	protection from adjacent intensive land uses and where
	development is limited to the primary function of
	preservation.

BUS AND TAXI RANK	Means land, a building or part of a building used for the
	purpose of parking buses and taxis.
	For the purposes of this scheme the term, a bus or taxi
	shall mean a vehicle used to transport people for financial
	gain and registered as such. Such facilities may include
	ancillary facilities such as informal trader's stalls and
	restroom facilities.
CAMPERN	
CANTEEN	Means a building or part thereof used for the preparation
	and serving of food and allied products, to staff which is
	ancillary to a business or organization.
CAMPING SITE / CAMPISTE	Means an outdoor area used for overnight stay in a shelter
	such as a tent, caravan or camper van/recreational vehicle.
CARAVAN PARK	Means an area of land provided with adequate ablution and
	sanitary facilities with or without communal kitchen,
	constructed with permanent materials arranged for the
	accommodation of caravans which are used for temporary
	holiday dwellings and provided also with permanent water
	points, approved refuse receptacles and containing within
	the curtilage a sufficient open space for recreational
	purposes.
	A caravan park shall not include a site for the sale,
	display, storage or disposal of caravans.
CAR WASH	Means a premises fitted with equipment for the purpose of
	washing motor vehicles for gain, and may include a calet
	service. This does not include informal carwash facilities
	on parking areas.
CASINO	An establishment, licensed in terms of the KwaZulu-Natal
	Gambling Act (No.7 of 2004) in which gambling, casino
	games, bingo and gaming machines are available to be
	played, but does not include premises in which:
	Only bingo is played
	<ul> <li>Only limited payout machines (less than 10)</li> </ul>
	Only limited payout machines and bingo are played.

CEMETERY	Means land or premises designated exclusively for the
	burial or depositing of human remains, it may include a
	crematorium and includes facilities for associated religious
	and administrative functions.
CHALET DEVELOPMENT	Means a dwelling unit used as holiday accomodation,
	consisting of not more than three living rooms with or
	without sanitary convenience, bathroom, shower and
	kitchen; with a floor area not exceeding 53 square metres
	and not less than 32 square meters.
CLINIC	A primary health care facility providing medical or surgical
	services for sick or injured persons and may include
	emergency treatment, diagnostic services and an
	outpatient facility/day ward.
COMMUNITY GARDEN	Land used for the production of fruit and vegetables in an
	urban environment using resources available in that urban
	area for the benefit of residents from that area. It expressly
	excludes the large-scale sale of produce/crops from the site
	so as to cause a nuisance to the surrounding landowners. It
	may include a small- scale plant nursery.
COMMUNITY HALL	Means a facility for public and private meetings including,
	but not limited to - community centres; civic and private
	auditoriums; union halls; meeting halls for clubs and other
	membership organizations, etc. Includes functionally
	related internal facilities such as kitchens, multi-purpose
	rooms and storage.
COMMERCIAL WORKSHOP	Means a light industrial building which caters only for retail
	wherein the primary purpose is the selling of goods or
	service by retail and where the processes are operated
	specifically in conjunction with a shop or office to which
	the public, as customers have, access. It includes such uses
	as a watch repairer, shoe repairer, valet service,
	radio/television repairer, and electrician and may include a
	motor garage or service station.

CONFERENCE FACILITY	A building or portion of a building used for conferences,
	seminars and meetings and may include offices for the
	administration of such centre.
CONSERVATION /	An area of land in which the preservation of indigenous
CONSERVATION AREA	fauna and flora, water courses, topographic, historic and
CONSERVATION AREA	
CODDECTIONAL FACILITY	scientific features are of primary importance.
CORRECTIONAL FACILITY	Means a building used for the confinement of detained
	persons. May be referred to as "jail" or "prison".
CRECHE	A building, or portion of a building, used for the purpose of
	providing care, protection and guidance to seven or more
	individuals during only part of a 24-hour day. This term
	includes crèches, nursery schools, pre-schools, day care
	centres for individuals, and other similar uses, but excludes
	public and private education facilities or any facility
	offering care to individuals for a full 24 hour period.
CREMATORIUM	Means a place for incinerating corpses in a furnace, and
	includes associated religious and administrative facilities such
	as a chapel and offices.
DAY CARE FACILITY	Means a building or portion of buildings, to be used
	for the care of no more than six or more infants and young
	children during the daytime.
DWELLING HOUSE	Means a self-contained inter leading group of rooms,
	including not more than one kitchen, designed for the
	occupation by a single household or family and may
	include outbuildings and domestic staff accommodation
	but excludes an ancillary unit/units.
EDUCATIONAL BUILDING	Means a building used as a crèche, school, college,
	technical institute, academy, research laboratory, lecture
	hall, convent, monastery, gymnasium, public library, art
	gallery, museum or for other instruction together with any
	associated land or buildings and includes a hostel but does
	not include a reformatory or a school for the mentally
	challenged.
ESTUARY	Means that part of a river or stream, partially or fully
LOI OMINI	enclosed body of water, with a connection to the open sea
	cherosed body of water, with a connection to the open sea

	or that is open to the sea permanently; or within which the
	seawater can be diluted with fresh water derived from land
	drainage.
EXTRACTIVE INDUSTRY	Means the process of extracting, mining, winning or
	quarrying of raw materials from the ground, including
	gravel, sand and stone.
FACTORY	A building or a group of buildings where goods are
	manufactured or assembled, mostly by machinery.
FAST FOOD DRIVE	Means a building used for the sale of food and
THROUGH	beverages to customers who remain in their vehicles.
FIRE STATION	Means a building that houses a fire brigade.
FUNERAL PARLOUR	Means a building or land used for the purpose of
	funeral management, includes a area intended primarily
	for public reception and for the sale and display of those
	commodities required for cemetery purposes, funeral
	chapel, funeral parlour and services ordinarily ancillary to
	funeral management but does not include a monumental
	mason, or crematorium. May include mortuary in special
	circumstances with approval of the Municipality.
FORESTRY	Means the use of land primarily for timber production, tree
	farms, forest nurseries, the gathering of forest products, or
	the performing of forest services.
FLEA MARKET	An occasional or periodic market held in an open area or
	structure where groups of individual sellers offer goods
	for sale.
GAME RESERVE	Mean large areas of land where wild animals live safely or
	are hunted in a controlled mannrer.
<b>GUEST HOUSE</b>	A building wherein more than four but less than 10
	bedrooms may be used for the purpose of providing
	short stay, self-catering accommodation to guests, and may
	include other uses considered by Council to be ancillary
	thereto, without impairing the amenity of the adjoining
	properties.
GOVERNMENT SUBSIDISED	Means a dwelling that is funded or partially funded with
DWELLING	funds from the Integrated Residential Development

	Programme, the Upgrading of Informal Settlements
	Programme, and the Rural Housing Subsidy: Communal
	Land Rights, or a similar programme of an organ of state,
	irrespective of where the dwelling is situated.
HEALTH AND BEAUTY	Premises used for cosmetic and holistic treatment for men
CLINIC	and women.
HEALTH FACILITY	Means a building used by a health agency or a health
	establishment as defined in section 1 of the National Health
	Act for the care and treatment of human illness, including a
	hospital, clinic and doctor's consulting room.
HEALTH STUDIO	Premises used for the physical development and fitness of
	individuals for reward or pleasure.
HOME BUSINESS	Means the operation of a single non-impacting occupational
	activity (excluding a tavern and gym). The area utilized shall
	not exceed 10% of the overall coverage; the predominant
	use shall remain residential by a bona fide residential
	occupant of that property, and the use shall not have a
	negative impact on the residential character of the area.
HOSPITAL	Means an institution providing health services and
	medical and/or surgical care to persons suffering from
	illness, disease, injury and includes related facilities such as
	laboratories, medical offices, and staff residences. This
	facility may include a mortuary.
HOTEL	Means a facility offering transient lodging accommodation
	to the general public and providing additional services
	accessible by guests and the general public, such as
	restaurants, meeting rooms, conference facilities,
	entertainment, recreational facilities, health and beauty
	facilities, and limited shopping.
HORTICULTURE	Means the cultivation of a garden, orchard, or nursery; the
	cultivation of flowers, fruits, vegetables, or ornamental
	plants/ the art or practice of garden cultivation and
	management.
HOMESTEAD/UMUZI	Means a traditional household/homestead consisting of

	mixture of traditional and urban type units - together with
	ancillary outbuildings and agricultural uses and structures
	such as gardens, stock enclosures and burial grounds. The
	primary use of the umuzi is residential.
INDUCTOV CENEDAL /	
INDUSTRY - GENERAL /	Means a factory as defined in the factories, Building
GENERAL INDUSTRIAL	Machinery and Building Works Act, 1941 as amended and
BUILDING	includes a building used for general repair of motor vehicles,
	but does not include a motor garage or service station.
INDUSTRY - LIGHT	Means an industry in which the processes carried on or the
	machinery installed are of such nature that it could be
	carried out or operated without any detriment to amenity,
	engineering services or to health by reason of, inter alia:
	a) noise, vibration or glare;
	b) odour, gas, fumes or smoke;
	c) soot, ash, dust, grit or other particulate matter;
	d) radiation, fire or explosion hazards;
	e) electronic or electromagnetic interference;
	f) heat or humidity;
	g) the discharge of any other vapour, gas, effluvium,
	liquids and solid matter; and/or
	h) causing undue load on any existing or proposed
	engineering services such as energy/water intensive uses.
	Examples of "Light Industries" include panel beaters,
	enclosed spray painting booths with filtration systems, etc.
INDUSTRY - NOXIOUS	Means any industry or trade that by reason of fumes, gases,
	vapours, dust, smell, noise, vibration, or other causes, is
	deemed by the Municipality to be likely to become
	dangerous or harmful to the health, welfare, and amenity of
	the public.
INDUSTRY - SERVICE	Light industrial premises which have a retail shop
	front and from which goods manufactured on the premises,
	may be sold, and includes a builder's yard, laundry, bakery,
	dairy depot, dry-cleaning, and similar types of uses, and
	which caters specifically for the essential day-to-day needs
	of a residential area.

INFORMAL TRADE AREA	Means an area within which any small-scale economic
	activity is permitted, with municipal approval, provided
	that each operator occupies a defined space, as delineated
	by the municipality. Provided further that,
	notwithstanding anything stated to the contrary in these
	clauses, no specific provision shall apply to such area,
	unless considered necessary and so specified by Council.
INSTITUTION	Means a building or portion of a building used or
	designed for use as a charitable institute including the
	administration thereof, and a building designed for use as a
	hospital, homes for the aged or for mentally or physically
	retarded children, nursing home, sanatorium, clinic,
	convalescent home, orphanage or other buildings used as a
	public or private institution, but does not include a
	restricted building. The building, or portion thereof, shall
	be served exclusively by a communal kitchen.
INSTITUTION - ANIMAL	Means premises primarily used for the protection, medical
WELFARE	treatment and housing of animals on a short or medium
	term, including the buildings designed for the
	administration thereof and any land use considered to be
	ordinarily ancillary thereto, so as to ensure the
	sustainability of the primary use. May be referred to as a
	pound.
LANDFILL	Means a site which is also known as a tip, dump, rubbish
	dump or dumping ground and is used for the disposal of
	waste materials – usually by burial and in a way so as to
	reduce containination of the surrounding land.
LAUNDERETTE	Means a building used for the purpose of washing and
	drying clothing and household fabrics, where the machines
	used are electrically operated and quite running, and of the
	type which process each customer's articles individually,
	and which may be operated by the customer. The washing
	media used shall be of a type that shall not cause harmful
	effluent to be discharged into the sewerage system.

LIFE GUARD HOUSE	Means a building for use by a lifeguard or lifeguards who
En E domes no con	are employed to rescue swimmers that get into difficulty
	at a beach or swimming pool. The building may be used to
	store equipment related to the primary land use e.g. a
LODGE	rubber dingy, tubes oars etc.
LODGE	Means an accommodation facility that is located in a game
	reserve and may include conference facilities, restaurant,
	and curio shop.
MIXED USE	Provides for the development of a range of land uses in a
	complementary and integrated manner so as to create a
	compact urban form. Land use may include, but not
	limited to, retail and service industry, offices, public
	facilities or entertainment, restaurants and residential
	development.
MEDIUM DENSITY HOUSING	Means a group of two or more attached or detached
	dwelling units, together with such outbuildings as are
	ordinarily associated thereto. Each dwelling unit having
	access to a private open space and access to common land,
	the whole development having been designed as a
	harmonious entity.
MOBILE PARK HOME	Means an area of land developed for mobile homes and
	ancillary facilities, the whole area having been
	designed as a harmonious entity
MOTOR GARAGE	Means a building used for the repair, storage, parking,
	display, sale, paint spraying or fueling of vehicles and
	includes facilities connected with these activities and
	includes the storage of fuel and lubricants, office,
	storeroom, workshop for motor vehicle repair, grease pit
	and machinery provided that panel beating may be included
	by consent.
MORTUARY	Means a building or part thereof where corpses are stored
	and exposed for identification and autopsies are performed
	but excludes a Funeral Parlor.
MUNICIPAL/GOVERNMENT	Means and includes the use of land and buildings by or on
PURPOSES	behalf of the Council for the purpose of carrying out one or

	more municipal functions which may include the supply of
	essential protective, health, community, administrative,
	engineering, support or other similar services and the
	provision of housing, recreational or other similar facilities,
	but excluding uses provided for under specific zones such
	as cemeteries, refuse sites, sewerage treatment plants and
	water works.
NATURE RESERVE	Nature Reserve as per S23 of the Protected Areas Act,
	where the site has significant natural features or
	biodiversity, is of scientific, cultural, historical or
	archaeological interest; or is in need of long-term
	protection for the maintenance of its biodiversity or for the
	provision of environmental goods and services. Such a site
	may also enable the continuation of such traditional
	consumptive uses as are sustainable and or provide for
	nature-based recreation and tourism opportunities.
NIGHT CLUB	
	Premises wherein music is played and dancing occurs, and
	may include eventing, fashion shows and the selling of
	beverages and food for consumption within the premises.
OFFICE	Premises used for the administration of any business .
OFFICE - PUBLIC	Means an office building used for any Central, Provincial or
	Local Government purpose, and includes an administrative
	office, municipal office and town hall, government office,
	courthouse, police station, public library, public art gallery,
	public museum, and buildings ordinarily ancillary thereto.
	Means a piece of land set aside for public use in or near a
PARK	city or town which is used for ornamental and recreation
	and includes city squares, and areas maintained in its
	natural state with as part of an ecological or environmental
	system.
PARKADE / PARKING	Means land or buildings used exclusively for the
GARAGE	parking of motor vehicles, other than parking normally
UARAUL	
	required in terms of the Scheme, at a fee or not, and may
	include an area for the administration of the parking use,

	carwash facility and ablution facilities and kiosks to sell
	•
	basic commodities such as flower, refreshments and
	newspaper sellers but shall not include salvage business
	or an automotive showroom.
PETROL FILLING STATION	Means a building and land used for the retail sale of
	petrol and petroleum related products. May include the
	following;
	• Shop
	Restaurant
	• Car wash
PLACE OF ENTERTAINMENT	Means a building or land used for public
	entertainment and includes a theatre, cinema, music hall,
	concert-hall, amusement arcade, dance hall, skating-rink,
	racetrack, sports-arena, exhibition hall, billiards room and
	fun fair.
PLACE OF PUBLIC	Means a building or land used for social meetings,
ASSEMBLY	gatherings, religious purposes or indoor recreation, but
	does not include a place of public entertainment.
PLACE OF WORSHIP	Land or buildings for a church, mosque, temple, chapel or
	other place for practicing a faith or religion and ancillary
	uses ordinarily associated thereto.
POLICE STATION	Means a building that houses the police force; includes
	holding cells but excludes correctional facility/jail.
PRIVATE RECREATION	Means a sports ground, playing field or other open
AREA	space or recreational buildings of a club, firm, private
	person or other body, including buildings normally
	ancillary to recreational activities.
PRIVATE ROAD	A private road is a road owned and maintained by a private
	individual, organization, or company rather than by a
	government.
PUBLIC OPEN SPACE	Means an open area or reserve, which the public has the
	right to use and enjoy, including all ancillary facilities and
	buildings.
PUBLIC ROAD	Means any road or street under the jurisdiction of and
	maintained by Mandeni Municipality and the
	1 7

	Provincial / National Department of Transport.
RAILWAY STATION	Means a place where freight and passenger trains stop on a
	railway line, typically with platforms and buildings such as
	ticket offices, ablutions and waiting rooms. The smallest
	stations are most often referred to as 'stops' or, in some
	parts of the world, as 'halts' (flag stops).
RECYCLE PLANT	An area of land, with or without buildings, upon which
	used materials are separated for processing for eventual
	reuse.
RECREATIONAL BUILDING	Means a building or portion of a building such as a
	clubhouse, gymnasium, squash court, pavilion, change
	rooms and any similar building used in conjunction with a
	sport. A clubhouse may include dining facilities and
	lounges.
RESIDENTIAL BUILDING	Means a building or portion of a building other than a
	dwelling house, chalet, duplex flat, semi-detached house,
	terrace house, maisonette or hotel used for human
	habitation, together with such outbuildings as are
	ordinarily used therewith, and includes a block of flats,
	boarding house, residential club or hostel
RESORT (HOLIDAY RESORT)	Means a combination of holiday resort facilities, including a
	chalet development in association with a caravan park and
	a resort or public picnic place which may include inter alia
	hotels, conferencing, public entertainment areas, golfing,
	sport, water sports, wildlife, wellness centres, hydro's,
	spas, health resorts, cultural, historical, and gambling."
	service rooms, ablution and sanitary facilities as are
	ordinarily used therewith, all under the supervision of a
	resident supervisor or caretaker.
RESTAURANT	Means a building or portion of a building used
	primarily for the preparation and sale of food,
	confectionary and beverages for consumption on the
	premises.
RETIREMENT VILLAGE	Means premises used for the housing of the aged,
	including assisted caring for the aged and the infirm. There

	shall be only incidental convalescent care either by a nurse
	or a non-resident physician. There shall be no surgery,
	physical therapy or other similar activities.
RESTRICTED BUILDING	Means a building used for such purposes as a clinic or
	hospital for infectious diseases, a jail, mental home or
	hospital, or reformatory.
SCRAPYARD	Means any land together with ancillary buildings used for
	the storage of used vehicles, parts of used machinery, scrap
	metals, used pipes, used building materials, waste
	materials, or similar used goods, or for all such goods and
	any combination of such goods, or for the dismantling of
	discarded vehicles or other machines.
SEMI-PUBLIC OPEN SPACE	Means a public open space that partially includes the civic
	spaces surrounding it (public gardens, fountains, seating
	area, canteen with small outdoor dining area).
SHOP	Means a building or a portion of a building / land used for
	any retail trade or business wherein the primary purpose is
	the selling of goods and appliances by retail and may include
	a building used for the purpose of a hairdresser, ticket
	agency, showroom, video hire, auction mart or for the sale
	of food and drink for consumption off the premises or for the
	reception of goods to be washed, cleaned, altered, dry
	cleaned or repaired and includes ancillary buildings
	ordinarily incidental to the conduct of the retail business,
	but does not include an industrial building, motor garage,
	petrol filling station, milk depot, warehouse, restaurant,
	adult entertainment or hotel.
SHOPPING MALL	Means an enclosed building containing a variety of stores
	connected by common pedestrian passageways that is used
	for shopping, including the sale of groceries, food, clothes,
	cosmetics, jewelry, books, music, toys, sport equipment,
	camping equipment, cell phones, household appliances,
	décor and furniture and provision of services, including a
	bank, hairdresser, pharmacy, optometrist, launderette, pet

	shop, cinema, video-hire, internet café and workshop for
	the repair of shoes or cell phones. May include restaurants.
SPECIAL DEVELOPMENT	Means development which is not covered by any
	definitions in this table.
STORAGE WAREHOUSE	Means a building intended for the storage of goods
	except those of a dangerous nature, and where no business
	is transacted other than incidentally to such storage.
TAVERN	Means a building, or portion of a building, that is used for
	the sale of alcoholic and non-alcoholic beverages to be
	consumed on the premises. Traditionally , the term was
	associated with a residential component in non-urban
	areas.
TAXI RANK	Means a building or land where three or more taxis load
	or unload passengers; and may include ancillary buildings
	such as toilets and informal trader stalls.
TRAIN STATION	Means a building or land operated by Transnet where
	trains load or unload passengers or goods.
TRANSFER STATION	See waste transfer centre.
TRUCK STOP	Means land or buildings used primarily as a stopover facility
	for commercial vehicles. A Truck Stop may include facilities
	for the maintenance or repair of commercial vehicles, the
	dispensing of motor fuel or other petroleum products
	directly into motor vehicles and the sale of accessories or
	equipment for trucks and similar commercial vehicles. A
	Truck Stop may also include overnight accommodation and
	restaurant facilities primarily for the use of truck crews.
TUCK SHOP/SPAZA SHOP	The sale of day-to-day convenience goods from a portion of
	a dwelling unit, associated outbuilding or where goods are
	generally sold through a window, door way or hatch and
	does not include a walk in shop where goods are on
	display.
UMUZI	See Homestead/Umuzi above
UNDEFINED USE	Any other type of building or use not specifically referred
	to in these Land Use Definitions.

UTILITIES FACILITY	Means land or buildings used for the provision and
	maintenance of essential infrastructural services.
VEHICLE TESTING STATION	Means the registered use of land and/or buildings by a
	registering authority for determining the fitness of vehicles
	to utilize the public road system, in line with the provisions
	of the National Road Traffic Act, 1996.
VETERINARY CLINIC	Means a place where animals or pets are given medication
	or surgical treatment and are cared for during the time of
	such treatment, and includes the ancillary use of the
	premises as a kennel or a place where animals or pets are
	boarded for remuneration.
	May include a grooming parlor and a retail outlet restricted
	to the sale of veterinary and animal maintenance products.
WASTE TRANSFER	An area of land, with or without buildings, licensed under
CENTRE / TRANSFER	relevant legislation, for the temporary deposit;
STATION	consolidation; accumulation and storage of garden and
	domestic waste/refuse (and/or recycling), before final
	disposal in a landfill/incineration/recycling or hazardous
	waste facility.
	May include a recycle centre.
WETLAND/S	Means land which is transitional between terrestrial and
	aquatic systems where the water table is usually near the
	surface, or the land is periodically covered with shallow
	water and would support vegetation adapted to living in
	saturated soil. (National Water Act No. 36 of 1998)
WHOLESALE WAREHOUSE	Means a building used primarily for the storage and sale
	of goods on wholesale basis and excludes retail sales to
	the public.

### 4. THE USE AND DEVELOPMENT OF LAND

#### 4.1. USE OF LAND

- 4.1.1. The types of buildings and land uses contemplated in this Scheme are defined in Section 3 of this scheme.
- 4.1.2. The extent and location of the various zones shall be as set out on the adopted Scheme Maps. Within each zone the defined buildings and land use activities contemplated are separated into three categories:
  - i. Primary/Free entry uses: Land or buildings may be used with the written authority of the Municipality.
  - ii. Consent: Land or buildings may be used only with the Consent of the Municipality.
  - iii. Precluded/Prohibited: Those buildings and land uses which are expressly prohibited.
- 4.1.3. In considering any application, the Municipality, may impose whatever conditions it deems necessary provided that where the Municipality has imposed conditions in terms of (i) above, the applicant shall have a right of Appeal to the relevant Appeals Authority.
- 4.1.4. In approving any application, the Municipality shall take into consideration the nature of the proposed use in relation to the character of the area and impose whatever conditions it considers necessary to protect the amenities of the neighbourhood, subject to the right of appeal as is contemplated in terms of the applicable planning legislation.
- 4.1.5. Any proposed use or development shall conform to the uses listed in these clauses for each zone.
- 4.1.6. In this regard attention is drawn to the offenses and penalties sections contemplated in terms of current applicable Planning legislation.
- 4.1.7. Any decision, order or authorization given by a Municipal Planning Tribunal in terms of the current applicable Planning legislation or any alternative Planning

and Development Appeal Tribunal set up in terms of an amendment or subsequent replacement legislation, shall be deemed to be a valid authority granted by the Municipality, and as such, shall be construed as being in accordance with the duly adopted provisions of the scheme.

- 4.1.8. Applications for development of land falling under Ingonyama Trust will also require the consent of the relevant Tribal Authority (TA) together with the Ingonyama Trust Board (hereafter refered to as the "ITB").
- 4.1.9. No person shall bring onto any property in a residential zone, or cause to allow present thereon any heavy or extra heavy duty vehicles except for bona fide purposes of delivering or supplying goods or services to such premises. The keeping of not more than two (2) public motor vehicles or trade vehicles, not exceeding a gross mass of three (3) tons, may be allowed by obtaining a permit for overnight parking. The applicant will be required to submit a letter of motivation, the vehicle registration details and the street address where such vehicle will be parked overnight, for such above-mentioned permit.

### 4.2. APPLICATION

At any time, after the effective date, no person shall:

- 1) Erect new building, or alter or add to an existing building or carry out any other proposed work, or develop or use any land or;
- 2) Use any building or structure for any purpose different from the purpose for which it was being developed or used on such date or;
- 3) Use any building or structure erected after such date for a purpose or in a manner different from the purpose for which it was erected until such person has first applied in writing to the Municipality for authority to do so, in terms of the provisions of Section 33 of the Spatial Planning and Land Use Management Act (Act No. 16 of 2013) and Section 4 of the Spatial Planning and Land Use Management By-Laws (As amended and/or prevailing) and the Municipality has granted its written authority thereto with or without conditions, provided that:
- a) Any approval granted by the Municipality shall remain valid for a period in accordance with the prevailing legislation; and
- b) Where any building or work referred to in any such approval has not substantially commenced;

- I. within the said period or;
- II. where an appeal has been lodged, within a period as specified in accordance with the prevailing legislation from where the date of notification of the outcome of such appeal, or
- III. where there has been an interruption in the development of the building or land for a continuous period in accordance with the prevailing legislation the said Approval shall automatically be considered to have lapsed and building operations or use of land shall not be commenced or recommenced unless a new approval has first been applied for and obtained.

### 4.3. ENTRY AND INSPECTION

The Municipality shall be entitled, through its duly authorized officers, to enter into and upon any premises within its area of jurisdiction at any reasonable time for the purpose of carrying out any inspection necessary for the proper administration and enforcement of the provisions of the scheme.

No person shall in any way hinder, obstruct or interfere with any duly authorized officer of the Municipality in the execution of their duties and functions in terms of this Scheme, nor shall any person cause or allow any hindrance, obstruction or interference with such officer.

### 4.4. CONTRAVENTION

Any person who erects, alters or extends any building, or uses such building, or develops or uses any land within the area of effect of the scheme which is in conflict with any provision of this scheme, or the terms and conditions of any approval granted therefore by the Municipality,

and who does not comply with the provisions of any notice which the Municipality shall serve, shall be guilty of an offence and be liable for prosecution and recovery of any fines and infringement levies by the Municipality as contemplated in Sections 86 and 87 of the Spatial Planning and Land Use Management By-Laws (as amended and/or prevailing).

### 4.5. SERVING OF NOTICES

Where any person contravenes the provisions of this Scheme, or does not comply with the terms and conditions of any approval granted by the Municipality, it shall serve a notice and order upon such person, and take the necessary action in law where there is non-compliance therewith, as required in Sections 86 and 87 of the Spatial Planning and Land Use Management By-Laws (as amended and/or prevailing planning legislation).

### 4.6. SPECIAL CASE USES

### 4.6.1. **Residential**

- I. The various residential zones provide a range of controls to cater for the necessary range of housing types required to serve the local population.
- II. The residential zones facilitate sustainable development that meets the housing needs of the local community in a manner which promotes accessibility, but which also protects the levels of amenity which are necessary in a residential neighbourhood.
- III. In considering any application within a residential zone, and where in the opinion of the Council the proposed use or development is likely to create a detrimental effect on the amenity of that residential neighbourhood, the onus shall be upon the applicant to demonstrate that there exists a planning need for the proposed use or development which overrides any such detrimental affect which may be caused to the amenity of the residential neighbourhood by the proposed use or development.

### 4.6.2. Traditional Settlement Areas

- I. Areas settled according to traditional settlement practices are zoned in term of the Traditional Authority Area Zones.
- II. Such a zone is applicable only on communally owned land where occupation is by traditional or indigenous land tenure including lease agreements with the ITB.
- III. The following uses which are considered to be of a scale which is not detrimental to the welfare of the local community do not require the written permission of

the Municipality but there is a need to submit building plans to the municipality for:

- Umuzi
- Tuck shops of less than 25m<sup>2</sup> in extent
- Home businesses which employ not more than one person,
- Day care facility accommodating not more than 6 children;
- Agricultural activities including communal gardens, grazing and woodlots.
- IV. The uses listed in (iii) above require only the permission of Traditional leaders, including AmaKhosi, Izinduna and the ITB, as applicable.
- V. All other uses, and activities which exceed the limits set out in this clause, require the authority of the Municipality, in accordance with the provisions of this scheme.

## 4.6.3. **Agriculture**

- I. Areas zoned for commercial agricultural purposes have been identified as forming part of the natural resource base of the Municipality and are critical components of the local economic base. The primary use of any land in such a zone must remain agriculture, and the only other uses permitted shall be those that are in the opinion of the Council, ancillary to the agricultural activities.
- II. No subdivision or change of land use of agricultural land will be permitted unless the Municipality is satisfied that the resulting subdivisions or change in land use are viable for agricultural purposes, and that such subdivision has been supported by the Department of Agriculture in terms of the Subdivision of Agricultural Land Act, Act 70 of 1970.
- III. No land zoned for commercial agriculture purposes may be rezoned for any other purpose without the consent of the Department of Agriculture, Forestry and Fisheries.

### 4.6.4. Coastal Management Zone

- I. The Coastal Management Zone shall be depicted symbolically on the scheme map by a blue dotted line, as this zone is too narrow to outline exactly.
- II. This area consists of the following:

- a) The coastal public property area which consists of the seashore and coastal / tidal waters.
- b) The coastal buffer zone which is 100m in width measured from the high water mark, and
- c) The coastal access land, which allows public access to coastal public property through the coastal buffer zone.
- III. Development shall be permitted in accordance to the Coastal Management Programme, adopted in 2014.
- IV. No development shall be permitted unless coastal access land is provided to give access to the coastal public property to the satisfaction of the Municipality.

### 4.6.5. Caravan Parks

The written authority of the Municipality for the establishment of a Caravan Park shall only be given if:

- i. Correct procedures are followed;
- ii. The design and layout are in accordance with the relevant Municipal bylaws (as amended from time to time); and
- iii. It is in line with the standards laid down in the code of practice for Caravan Parks.

### 4.6.6. Bed and Breakfast

The Municipality may authorize the use of a dwelling house for use as a Bed and Breakfast establishment as defined in "Land Use Definitions" provided that in General Residential zones, the conversion of a unit in a mlti-unit housing complex, or a residential building, shall not be permitted, and subject to the following:

- i. The Municipality may impose whatever conditions are necessary to protect the amenities of the neighbourhood.
- ii. The Municipality may call on the applicant to apply for consent;
- iii. The person running the Bed and Breakfast establishment shall reside in the dwelling house;
- iv. The written consent of the adjacent landowners has been obtained;
- v. Signage is in accordance with the advertising policy of council
- vi. The predominant use shall remain residential (to the satisfaction of the Council)

vii. If it is subsequently found that there is, in fact, an interference with the amenities of the neighbourhood, the Municipality may impose further conditions or call on the occupant to cease running the Bed and Breakfast establishment.

### 4.6.7. **Guest House**

Guesthouses are land uses where dwellings may be let by the owner for temporary accommodation purposes (maximum 10 bedrooms). The primary use must remain residential in nature and the guesthouse may not impact negatively on the environment.

### Pre-requisites for approval are as follows:

- i. Consent approval from the Municipality
- ii. The person running the guesthouse establishment shall reside in the dwelling house or alternatively the designated manager shall reside in the dwelling unit.
- iii. The building, in the opinion of council shall conform to the appearance and definition of a dwelling house;
- iv. Parking requirements:
  - a) One bay or garage per room;
  - b) Parking of the Manager/Owner shall be provided to the satisfaction of the Director: Economic Development, Planning and Human Settlements.
- v. Advertising will be in accordance to the advertising bylaw.
- vi. The Municipality may at any time impose any further condition it deems reasonably necessary in order to maintain the residential amenity of the area.

### 4.6.8. **Home Business**

- I. The Intention of the Scheme is to encourage the owner/occupier of a Dwelling House/Dwelling Unit to contribute to the local economy of the Mandeni Municipality. Land uses that may be considered shall not, in the opinion of the Mandeni Municipality, negatively impact on the neighbourhood.
- II. Specified activity or use will be operated in conjunction with a dwelling or residential building, or a structure erected on the site of an existing dwelling or residential building, within the residential zone. A home business shall only operate as a permitted land use if it is stated as such in the development

control table of this scheme. Written authority shall be applied for and such home business shall comply with the following:

- a) The predominant use of the property shall remain residential;
- b) On-site parking loading facilities shall be provided to and in line with the parking requirements of this scheme;
- c) The Municipality may, if they require, request more parking to be provided;
- d) Operating hours shall be at the discretion of the Municipality;
- e) No shop or sale of items shall be done outside the site;
- f) No external advertising shall be permitted on the site except for one non illuminated sign on each road frontage, and each sign shall not exceed  $0.20m^2$ .
- III. After affording the applicant the opportunity of being heard, the Municipality may at any time impose any further condition it deems necessary in order to preserve the residential amenity of the area, or it may call upon the applicant to apply for consent following which it may refuse the application if, in its opinion, the amenity of the neighbourhood is being adversely affected by the activities of the business.
- IV. Any occupation, which in the opinion of the Council has a potential for causing pollution, hazardous situations and degradation of the residential environment, shall not be permitted.
- V. Should it be subsequently found that there is, in fact an interference with the amenities of the neighbourhood the Council may impose further conditions or withdraw its authority at any time and call on the occupant to cease the activity forthwith.
- VI. Any authority or consent granted shall not be transferable to successors in title. If the use is discontinued for the period prescribed in the relevant legislation, the dwelling house or dwelling unit, insofar as it may have been altered for that purpose, is restored to its original state to the satisfaction of the Municipality.

### 4.6.9. **Taverns**

I. Provided that in the case of a Tavern, the authority of the Municipality may only be given by consent via a full application process in terms of SPLUMA and Municipal Bylaw and only if the proposed use complies with the relevant

bylaws of the Municipality as amended from time to time, as well as with the following:

- The applicant shall obtain written comments from the surrounding neighbours as indicated by the council;
- b) A site plan indicating the position and size of the tavern shall be submitted with the application;
- A motivation report stipulating the intentions of the applicant, the number of people to be engaged in the business as well as the need and desirability shall form part of the application;
- d) The primary use of the site shall remain residential;
- e) The owner/applicant shall reside on the premises;
- f) Include guidelines from liquor authority.
- g) If the applicant is not the owner of the property, a power of attorney / letter of consent from the registered owner of the property must be submitted with the application;
- h) The applicant shall conduct no other use on the site concerned other than that of a tavern, as approved by the Council
- i) The area of the tavern shall not exceed 50m<sup>2</sup>;
- j) Advertising/signage shall be done in accordance to the Mandeni Municipality's signage by-law.
- k) All consumption of liquor shall be on the property;
- The premises shall at all times be open to Council officials and SAPS for inspection purposes.
- II. The Council shall reserve the right to impose any other conditions it deems necessary to preserve the residential character of the area, suspend (for a period not less than 30 working days) or rescind the authority granted without notification if the applicant fails to comply with any of the conditions.
- III. In considering any such application, the Council shall take into consideration the nature of the occupation in relation to the character of the area and shall impose whatever conditions it considers are necessary to protect the amenities of the neighbourhood. Any occupation that in the opinion of the Council has a potential for causing pollution, hazardous situations and degradation of the residential environment, shall not be permitted.

Provided that if it is subsequently found that there is, in fact an interference with the amenities of the neighbourhood, the Council may impose further

conditions or withdraw its authority at any time and call on the occupant to cease the activity forthwith.

## 4.6.10. **Tuck Shop**

- I. In the case of a person operating a tuck-shop involving the selling of basic convenience goods at a small scale to his immediate residential area, such an occupation may be permitted on any residential property. Any application for the authority of Council to permit the operation of a tuck-shop shall be subject to the following:
  - a) That the portion being utilized for such an occupation (including the storage of goods) not exceeding a gross floor area of 20m<sup>2</sup>.
  - b) Letters of no objection from the surrounding property owners and tenants. In the case of objections, however, the application shall be subject to the requirements for consent;
  - c) The activity shall not interfere with the amenity of the neighbourhood.
  - d) No container to be used as the structure out of which the business will be operated, unless it has been aesthetically altered to the satisfaction of the Council.
- II. In considering any such application/s the Council shall take into consideration the nature of the occupation in relation to the character of the area and shall impose whatever conditions it considers are necessary to protect the amenities of the neighbourhood.
- III. Any occupation, which in the opinion of the Council has a potential for causing pollution, hazardous situations and degradation of the residential environment, shall not be permitted.
- IV. Should it be subsequently found that there is, in fact an interference with the amenities of the neighbourhood the Council may impose further conditions or withdraw its authority at any time and call on the occupant to cease the activity forthwith.

### 4.6.11. **Medium Density Housing**

I. Any person wishing to develop a site for Medium Density Housing shall first apply to the Municipality for approval in principle for the development, and shall provide a layout plan showing the position of buildings, roads and access points, parking area, common land and where provided, recreation facilities

- and private open areas. Such application should include, where considered necessary to the Municipality, an environmental impact assessment.
- II. Should the application in principle be successful, the applicant shall subsequently submit to the Municipality for its approval;
  - a) A layout plan showing: -
    - The position, dimension and material proposed to be used in the construction of all roads, driveways, parking areas, squares and pedestrian access ways, if any
    - ii. The boundaries of all dwelling unit curtilages, private open areas and common open spaces, if provided;
    - iii. The position, nature, extent and level of all proposed and existing buildings on the site and adjoining sites;
    - iv. The proposed landscaping of the site;
    - v. The proposed common open space;
    - vi. The position and nature of recreation facilities, if any.
  - vii. The position and extent of all utility areas; and
  - viii. The 50-year flood line, where applicable.
  - b) A table indicating:-
    - i. The total area of the site;
    - ii. The total number of dwelling units;
    - iii. The total floor area;
    - iv. The total number of car parking spaces provided for visitors and for residents;
    - v. The extent of the usable common land and other public facilities / uses
    - vi. Any other information that the Municipality may reasonably require
  - c) The following minimum areas per dwelling unit shall apply to a medium density-housing site.
    - i. Dwelling unit curtilage 200m<sup>2</sup>
    - ii. Private open space 30 m<sup>2</sup>/unit
    - iii. Usable common open space 50 m<sup>2</sup>/unit
    - iv. Utility areas 15 m<sup>2</sup> /unit
    - v. Garage /carport 20 m<sup>2</sup> /unit
- III. Where in the opinion of the Municipality a road within a medium density housing site should serve the public, the Municipality may require the road to

- be registered as a public road, provided that for purpose of bulk and coverage calculation the area of the public road shall be excluded in the gross area.
- IV. The medium width of the carriageway within medium density housing shall be 3 meters where the carriageway is one-way and 5 meters where the carriageway is two-way.
- V. A Home Owners Association shall be established. Such association shall administer and maintain the common land, control the external appearance of buildings within the medium density site and deal with any other matter pertaining to the Medium Density Housing site, which is of common interest to the members.

## 4.6.12. **Cluster / Row housing**

- I. Row housing refers to units that share a common wall and conserve space through a horizontal design and focus. The most common within Mandeni are simple row units.
- II. Each unit shares two sidewalls with a neighbour though the back walls are open to the street and backyard.
- III. Row housing will be a free entry use in all residential zones, however; any person wishing to apply must submit a building plan showing the position of the buildings, roads, access points and parking areas.

### 4.6.13. Intermediate Zone Residential

Indeterminate zones are applicable only where the Municipality is of a view that it is undesirable or not practical to impose a particular zoning on a specific Erf at a specific time.

### 4.6.14. The zoning of unregistered land parcels using symbols

An unregistered parcel of land, together with land that has no cadastral has been zoned in accordance to the present and intended land use. This has been affected through the following.

- a) Utilizing symbols;
- b) Digitizing through the existing building footprints.

### 4.6.15. Provincial Norms and Standards

Any development for which there are Provincial Norms and Standards, must be aligned with said standards. Current development standards include:

- Norms and Standards for Electronic Communication Facilities (Base Telecommunications Transmission Stations).
- Design of petrol filling stations
- Design of mobile homes

### 4.7. CONSENT APPLICATION

- I. Where, in this scheme, provision is made for the municipality to grant consent to any person wishing to apply to the Municipality for such consent, application shall be made in terms of the Mandeni SPLUMA bylaws.
- II. Any application to the Municipality for its consent must contain information as required by the Municipality and shall be accompanied by a report in motivation of the application together with such plans as may be required by the Municipality.
- III. Any provision in this scheme empowering the Municipality to grant its consent shall include its power to refuse consent and to grant consent subject to any conditions which the Municipality may deem fit.
- IV. Any consent granted by the Municipality shall be subject to termination by the Municipality as a result of any breach of a condition upon which such consent was granted which is not remedied within 30 days of a notice served by the Municipality upon the owner or occupier of the site concerned.
- V. The Municipality, when considering any application, for its consent to the construction and use of a building or for the use of land, shall, in addition to any other factors which it must take into account, have regard to whether such use or building is likely to cause injury to the amenity of the area in which it is or will be situated including, without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing, increased traffic, parking difficulties or the creation of noise or to detrimentally affect the character of the area in which it is or will be situated.
- VI. If obtained by virtue of the grant by the Municipality of its consent to the construction and use of a building or for the use of an area not exercised within 18 months of the grant of such consent or, the rights having been exercised, the use permitted thereunder is interrupted for a continuous period of 18 months. The consent shall ipso facto lapse, unless any condition upon which such consent was granted specifically provides otherwise in regard to the lapsing of such consent.

### 4.8. REMOVAL OF INJURIOUS CONDITIONS

Where, in the opinion of the Municipality, the amenity, health, safety, order, convenience or general welfare of any use zone or reservation of land or any portion thereof, is injured by the condition of any fence, wall, garden or other structure or by the external appearance of any building or by the storage of anything or by the parking of any vehicle on a site, or for any other reason, the Municipality may serve a notice on the owner or occupier of the premises on which the injurious condition exists, requiring him/her within such period, not being less than 28 days from the date of service of the notice, to take such action as may be necessary to abate the injury. The said notice may specify the steps to be taken to abate the injury.

Any person upon whom a notice is served in terms of this Clause shall have the right to appeal to the Executive Committee.

### 5. BUILDING CONTROL

For better understanding, this section must be read together with the National Building 73012 Regulations and Standards Act No. 103 of 1977 (as amended). Section 4 of the National Building Regulations and Standards Act No. 103 of 1977 reads as follows. Approval by Local Authorities of Applications in Respect of Erection of Buildings:

- No person shall without the prior approval in writing of the local authority in question, erect any building in respect of which plans and specifications are to be drawn and submitted in terms of this Act.
- 2. Any application for approval referred to in subsection (1) shall be in writing on a form made available for that purpose by the local authority in question.
- 3. Any application referred to in subsection (2) shall;
  - a. Contain the name and address of the applicant and, if the applicant is not the owner of the land on which the building in question is to be erected, of the owner of such land;
  - b. Be accompanied by such plans, specifications, documents and information as may be required by or under this Act, and by such particulars as may be required by the local authority in question for the carrying out of the objects and purposes of this Act.

- 4. Any person erecting any building in contravention of the provisions of subsection (1) shall be guilty of an offence and liable on conviction to a fine not exceeding R100 for each day on which he was engaged in so erecting such building.
- 5. As per this scheme's predecessor, this daily amount has been amended to R500 per day.

### 5.1. BUILDING LINE

- I. All erven shall be subject to a building line as specified in the land use tables in this Scheme, beyond which no building may be erected or encroach. Where a building line is laid down, there shall be no building other than a:
  - Fence
  - Garden
- II. Notwithstanding the provisions of the above Clauses, in the case of swimming pools, the building line may be relaxed to 1 metre, provided that a pool is to be erected so that any portion of it is within 3 metres of a street boundary. The pool shall be screened to the satisfaction of the Municipality.
- III. The Municipality may permit through consent application for a Residential zone/land use or a building to be relaxed/erected closer to any boundary but not less than one metre of the original boundary line. The Municipality shall have due regard to any possible detrimental effect on adjoining properties and may impose such conditions as it sees fit.
- IV. Notwithstanding the afore written provisions, the Municipality may exempt an applicant from applying for consent if it is satisfied that no interference with the amenities of the neighbourhood, existing, or as contemplated by this Scheme will result, provided that the written consent of the registered owner of each adjoining property and those across the street from the property, and such other properties as the Municipality may direct, has first been obtained.
- V. Where such written consent is not forthcoming, the applicant shall, in seeking the relaxations, be required to apply for the Municipality's Consent, may permit by Consent in any zone any building to be erected closer to any boundary than the distance specified in this Clause of on account of the siting of existing buildings or the shape, size and/or levels of the Municipality, render the development of the Erf unreasonably difficult. The Municipality shall have due regard to any

possible detrimental effect on adjoining properties and may impose such conditions as it sees consent.

VI. Development along the National and Provincial roads shall comply with the building line standards and other regulations set down in the KwaZulu-Natal Roads Act, 2001 (No. 4 of 2001) and the National Roads Agency Limited.

### 5.2. SIDE AND REAR SPACES

All erven below 600m<sup>2</sup> in size shall be subject to 1, 5 metre side spaces and 2 metre rear space restriction and erven above 600m<sup>2</sup> and below 800m<sup>2</sup> shall be subject to 2 metre side spaces and 3 metre rear spaces. Thus no building or structure is permitted within the area reserved as side and rear space without the permission of the Municipality.

### 5.3. RELAXATION OF BUILDING LINES

The Municipality may approve the application for relaxations of building lines, if endorsed by the neighbouring property owners, consent letter and if proposed design will enhance and contribute to the amenity of the area and is not less than one (1) metre.

### 5.4. COVERAGE

- I. All roofed or covered areas are included in coverage, except where the basement parking roof is level with the finished ground level.
- II. The following are excluded coverage calculations: an unroofed stoop, entrance steps and landing, open balconies, retractable awnings, cornices, chimneys, pergola, water pipes, drain pipes and minor decorations from the building wall, inclusive of roof overhangs up to 2 metres.

### 5.5. HEIGHT

The number of storeys, excluding basement storeys that may be contained in a building shall be determined by a designated height zone detailed in the land use development table unless otherwise authorized by written consent of the Municipality.

## 5.6. FLOOR AREA RATIO

- I. In any Land Use Zone, as set out in the land use table, no building shall be erected which will exceed in floor area ratio and coverage, the maximum figures permitted in that zone, as reflected in the columns of the Land Use Table.
- II. In calculating the permissible floor area from the floor area ratio the following floor areas may be excluded:-
  - carports, and any area used exclusively for parking of motor vehicles, including storage space in the area used for parking of motor vehicles;
  - swimming pools, squash courts, netball courts, volley ball courts and tennis courts (and any other similar uses) where they are used for private use only;
  - public arcades and malls in mixed use zones which are not used for retail purposes or for the display, sale and storage of goods;
  - in the case of garages and service stations, the un-walled access ways and driveways covered by canopies; and
  - Patios, decks and verandas.

# 5.7. PARKING REQUIREMENTS

ZONE	Proposed							
Agriculture 1	At the discretion of Agriculture, forestry and Mandeni Municipality.	-						
Agriculture 2	At the discretion of Agriculture, forestry and Mandeni Municipality.	f the Department of Fisheries together with						
Urban Agriculture		deni Municipality. PFA for agriculture industry.						
Education	Nursery School / creche	1 bay / classroom and 1 bay / office plus on-site drop off facility to satisfaction of the Municipality						
	Primary / Secondary School	2 bays / classroom or office plus on-site drop off facility to satisfaction of the Municipality.						
	Tertiary Institutions - Colleges/ Universities/ Technikons, etc.	I bay per 25m <sup>2</sup> office or lecture hall / classroom floor area plus on-site drop off facility to the satisfaction of the Municipality						
Health and Welfare	1 bay per bed plus 2/100m <sup>2</sup> room	office plus 4/consulting						
Hospital	1.5 bay / bed + 2 bays / 100 / 100m <sup>2</sup> PFA of consulting a							
Hotel	1 car space for every bedroom 1 Bay for every 25% of restaurant space 2 bays for the owner/manager/occupier 15 bays minimum for the general public							
Municipal and Government	Municipal/government building and public office 5 per 100m <sup>2</sup> plus 15 bays for visitor Community hall: 20 bays / 100m <sup>2</sup> PFA (min.30 bays)							
Institution	3 parking bays per 50m <sup>2</sup>							
Place of Worship	1 bay for every 15m <sup>2</sup> of nett congregation. Provided that its consent for the partial or	the Municipality may grant						

	norling requirement
Company and Company	parking requirement
Cemetery and Crematoria	2 Parking bays per 100m <sup>2</sup>
Environmental Services	To the satisfaction of the Mandeni Municipality
Active Open Space	To the satisfaction of the Mandeni Municipality
Private Open Space	1 parking bay per 25m <sup>2</sup> PFA
Passive Open Space	To the satisfaction of the Mandeni Municipality
Nature Reserves	To the satisfaction of the Mandeni Municipality
Sea Shore	To the satisfaction of the Mandeni Municipality
Dam	To the satisfaction of the Mandeni Municipality
River Reserve	To the satisfaction of the Mandeni Municipality
Core Mixed Use	4 bays / 100m <sup>2</sup> PFA
Medium Impact Mixed Use	4 bays / 100m <sup>2</sup> PFA
Low Impact Mixed Use	4 bays / 100m <sup>2</sup> PFA
Multipurpose Retail and	2 bays / 3 rooms + 2 bays / 100m <sup>2</sup> of office area + 10
Hotel	bays /100m2 PFA ancillary uses
Office	3 bay / 100m <sup>2</sup> PFA
Private Parking	1 bays / 50m <sub>2</sub> PFA plus adequate parking for office area
	at the discretion of the local municipality.
Public Parking Garage	1 bays / 50m <sub>2</sub> PFA plus adequate parking for office area
	at the discretion of the local municipality
Petrol Filling Station.	1 car space per 50m <sup>2</sup> of the PFA
Extractive Industry	1 bay / 100m <sup>2</sup> PFA + 2 bays / 100m2 office area
General Industry	
General muustry	1 bay / 100m <sup>2</sup> PFA (min 3 bays) + 2 bays / 100m <sup>2</sup> PFA office area
** 1 . * 1	Office area
Light Industry	1 bay / 100m <sup>2</sup> PFA (min 3 bays) + 2 bays / 100m <sup>2</sup> PFA office area
Special Residential 1:	1 garage or covered space per dwelling unit.
Detached	1 garage or covered space per additional self-contained unit.
Residential Low Impact	1 garage or covered space per dwelling unit.
•	1 garage or covered space per additional self-contained
	unit.
Residential Medium Impact	1 parking bays or space per dwelling unit
_	1 parking bay or car space per 2 dwelling units for
	visitors
Reisdential Only Medium	2 Parking Bays per unit and 1 parking bay for a visitor
Density	per each unit.
Residential Only High	1.5 per unit and 1 visitors bay per 2 units
Density	
Small Holdings	I parking facility dwelling unit
Caravan Park	1.5 parking bays per unit and a trailer bay facility
Resort (Small Tourism)	1 car space for every bedroom
	1 Bay for every 25% of restaurant space
	2 bays for the owner/manager/occupier
	15 bays minimum for the general public
Railways	To the satisfaction of the Mandeni Municipality
Bus and Taxi Rank	To the satisfaction of the Mandeni Municipality.
Public Parking	2 bays / 100m <sup>2</sup> PFA. Office area or at the discretion.
Utilities and Services	To the satisfaction of the Mandeni Municipality.

Landfill Sites	2 bays / 100m <sup>2</sup> PFA.
	Office area or at the discretion
Waste Transfer Station	2 per 100m <sup>2</sup> of the PFA.
Waterworks	2 bays / 100m <sup>2</sup> PFA.
	Office area or at the discretion Proposed 2 bays
Sewerage Works	2 bays / 100m <sup>2</sup> PFA.
	Office area or at the discretion
Existing Road	N/A
Proposed New Road	N/A
Private Roads	N/A
Special Zones	As per development application.
Traditional Authority	To the satisfaction of the Mandeni Municipality
Agriculture	
Traditional Authority Umuzi	N/A
Traditional Authority	N/A
Environmental	
Traditional Authority Rural	1 bays / 100m <sup>2</sup> PFA.
Industry	
Traditional Authority Civic	5 bays / 100m <sup>2</sup> PFA.
and Social	
Traditional Authority	To the satisfaction of the Mandeni Municipality
Utilities and Services	

## 5.8. LOADING REQUIREMENTS

On any land or in any building for any purpose, other than residential shall be provided on the site a loading and unloading area with suitable access to the satisfaction of the municipality.

# 6. LAND USE ZONES

Zone	Symbology	RGB
Agriculture 1		Pale Green 2 R 144, G 238, B 144
Agriculture 2		Dark Olive Green 4 R 162, G 205, B 090
Urban Agriculture		Light Olive Green R 000, G 238, B 000
Education		Bright Green R 000, G 255, B 000 Border: Caramel R 255, G 128, B 00
Health and Welfare		Misty Rose R 255, G 228, B 255 Border: Light Pink R 255, G 174, B 185
Hospital		Rose R 255, G 204, B204
Municipal and Government		Peach Puff R 255, G 218, B 185
Institution		Dark Orange R 255, G 102, B 000
Place of Worship	W	Lavender R 230, G 230, B 250 Notation: 'W'
Cemetery and Crematoria	С	Light Green R 062, G 230, B 162 Notation: 'C'
Environmental Services		Verdigris R 036, G 093, B 019
Active Open Space		Chartreuse 2 R 118, G 238, B 000
Private open space		Light Green R 102, G 255, B 102
Passive Open Space		Green R 51, G 153, B 102
Nature Reserve		Forest Green R 034, G 139, B 034
Sea Shore		Orientale R 209, G 183, B 157 Border: Barley Beige R 176, G 112, B 080
Dam		Light Blue R 151, G 219, B 242
River Reserve		Turquoise R 51, G 204, B 255
Core Mixed Use		Antwerp Blue R 000, G 064, B 128
Medium Impact Mixed Use		Blue R 051, G 102, B 255
Low Impact Mixed Use		Blue R 127, G 230, B 255
Office		Golden Yellow R 255, G 204, B 000 Border: Process Blue R 020, G 129, B 188
Private Parking		Pale Blue R 191, G 191, B 191

		Border: Blue 4
Petrol Filling Station	PFS	R 000, G 000, B 139  Royal Blue
		R 065, G 105, B 255 Notation: 'PFS'
Extractive industry		Grey Purple R 222, G 209, B 217
General Industry		Lavender R 204, G 153, B 255
Light Industry		Pale Lilac R 239, G 198, B 255
Special Residential 1: Detached		Yellow R 265, G 255, B 153
Residential Low Impact		Light Yellow R 255, G 255, B 153
Residential Medium Impact		Light Orange R 255, G 192, B 000
Residential High Impact		Light Brown R 204, G 102, B 000
Residential Small Holdings		Yellowish Beige R 255, G 236, B 188
Caravan Park		Light Green R 221, G 242, B 202
Hotel	Н	Light Orange R 255, G 153, B 102 Notation: 'H'
Resort		Light Orange R 255, G 153, B 102
Railways	R	Grey 40% R 150, G 150, B 150 Notation: 'R'
Bus and Taxi Rank		Steel Blue R 070, G 130, B 180 Border: Neutral Grey R 192, G 192, B 192
Public Parking		Salmon R 233, G 150, B 122 Border: Neutral Grey R 192, G 192, B 192
Utilities and Services	us	Toner Grey R 212, G 207, B 203 Notation: 'US' Dark Red R 128, G 000, B 000
Landfill Sites		Brown Green R 077, G 089, B 014
Waste Transfer Station		Dark Green R 125, G 145, B 23
Waterworks	W	Light Blue Green R 161, G 217, B 214 Notation: 'W'
Sewerage Works	SW	Tan R 212, G 207, B 203 Notation: 'SW'
Existing Road		Gray- 50% R 119, G 119, B 119
Proposed New Road		Red R 255, G 000, B 000
Private Road	P	Red R 255, G 80, B 80
Special Zone 2: Special Residential 4		Yellow R 244, G 238, B 0
Special Zone 2: Special Residential Low Density		Gold R 204, G 153, B 0

Special Zone 2: Special Residential 4		Gold R 255, G 04, B 000
Special Zone 2; Intermediate Residential (PUD sites)		Light Yellow R 255, G 228, b 143
Special Zone 2: General Residential		Light Yellow R 253, G 242 B 105
Special Zone 2: Cultural Village	EC/R	Yellow R 255, G 255, B 0 Notation: 'EC/R'
Special Zone 2: Hotel		Light Yellow R 255, G 255, B 153
Special Zone 2: Hotel Suites	Н	Yellow R 255, G 255, B 0 Notation: 'H' Dark Red
Special Zone 2: Wellness Centre		Pink R 255, G 59, B 227
Special Zone 2: Timeshare	H-T/S	Lavender R 250, G 110, B 213 Notation; 'H-T/S'
Special Zone 2: Sport Village & Golf Club House		Green R 0, G 176, B 80 Dark Green Border
Special Zone 2: Limited Commercial		Aqua R 75, G 172, B 198
Special Zone 2: Entertainment Centre		Dark Purple R 95, G 73, B 122
Special Zone 2: Wedding Chapel		Brown R 152, G 72, B 6
Special Zone 2: Private Open Space		Olive Green R 155, G 187, B 89
Special Zone 2: Conservation Area		Light Green R 214, G 227, B 188
Special Zone 2: Private Road		Gray- 25% R 191, G 191, B 191
Special Zone 2; Service and Maintenance		Black R 0, G 0, B 0
Special Zone 2: Nursery		Lavender R 255, G 155, B 255
Traditional Authority Agriculture		Lime R 209, G 255, B 115 Border: R 0, G 77, B 168
Traditional Authority: Umuzi		Light Yellow R 255, G 255, B 115 Border: R 0, G 77, B 168
Traditional Authority: Environmental		Dark Green R 38, G 115, B 0 Border: R 0, G 77, B 168
Traditional Rural Industry		Pink R 255, G 0, B 197 Border: R 0, G 77, B 168
Traditional Civic and Social		Dark Red R 168, G 0, B0
Traditional Utilities and Services		Gray- 80% R 168, G 0, B0

# 7. DEVELOPMENT FACILITATION TABLE

### 7.1. AGRICULTURE

## 7.1.1. **Agriculture 1**

	0								
Colour									
Zone: Agricul	ture 1			•					
Statement of		A zone intended to provide for land and buildings where the primary							
Intent			•	_	-	oduction of cro try, etc. or pro	ps, plantations, ducts for the		
			ercial ma	_	, 1	3, 1			
Prim	ary			Consent		F	Precluded		
Agricultural bu	_		Abattoir				land uses not included in		
Agricultural lar				ıral Industry	7		nd special consent		
Community gar	dens		Bed and Breakfast			columns			
Conservation			Educational Building						
Dwelling House	9		InstitutionInstitution- animal						
Forestry			welfarePrivate recreational						
Home business			building						
Horticulture			Recreational building						
Utility facility									
				elopment			T		
Minimum	F.A.R.	Co	verage	Height	Buildin	g Side	Rear Setback		
erf size					Line	Setback			
As per the	0.125		15%	3	7.5m	N/A	N/A		
requirement by SALA									
Additional Comments									

- I. The use of land zoned for agricultural purposes and used for any land use other than "Agricultural Land" and "Agricultural Building" shall be ancillary to the agricultural use and shall not impact on or detract from the viability of the land to produce agricultural produce.
- II. The sub-division and or change in land uses on agricultural land are subjected to the provisions of the Sub-division of Agricultural Land Act (Act No 70 of 1970) and therefore requires approval or comments from the Minister responsible for Agriculture copied to the provincial Department of Economic Development, Tourism and Environmental Affairs (EDTEA).
- III. Applications for development on land falling under the Ingonyama Trust Board also require power of attorney from the Ingonyama Trust Board and a letter of support from the applicable Traditional Leader/Council.
- IV. The use of land for urban agriculture / community gardens is supported within the context that it will not degrade the quality of life of surrounding landowners, will not impact harmfully on public health and/or the natural environment and will contribute to the social and economic well-being of people.
- V. Developers are encouraged to consider alternative forms of energy, renewable sources of energy and building design paradigm that embraces energy efficiency objectives.

## 7.1.2. Agriculture 2

Colour									
Zone: Agricultur	re 2	•		•					
Statement of In	tent	A zone	where the	e land is used	l for low i	nten	sity agricultu	ıral	
							may include		
		gardeni	ing, wood	lot and land	allocated	und	er customary	law.	
Prin	ary		, 	Consent			Preclu		
Agricultural build			Abattoir						
Agricultural land	Ü		Agricultu	ıral Industry		Buil	dings and land	d uses not	
Arts and Craft wo	rkshop		_	Educational BuildingHome			included in the primary and		
Community garde			Business			special consent columns			
Conservation			InstitutionInstitution- animal			•			
Dwelling House			welfare						
Forestry			Private recreational building						
Horticulture			Recreational building						
Utility facility			Shop						
			Develop	ment Param	eters				
Minimum erf	F.A.R.	. Co	verage	Height	Buildin	ıg	Side	Rear	
size				_	Line		Setback	Setback	
As per the	0.125		20%	3	9m		N/A	N/A	
requirement									
by SALA									
Additional Com	monte	•			•	1		•	

- I. The use of land zoned for agricultural purposes and used for any land use other than "Agricultural Land" and "Agricultural Building" shall be ancillary to the agricultural use and shall not impact on or detract from the viability of the land to produce agricultural produce.
- II. The sub-division and or change in land uses on agricultural land are subjected to the provisions of the Sub-division of Agricultural Land Act (Act No 70 of 1970) and therefore requires approval or comments from the Minister responsible for Agriculture copied to the provincial Department of Economic Development, Tourism and Environmental Affairs (EDTEA).
- III. Applications for development on land falling under the Ingonyama Trust Board also require power of attorney from the Ingonyama Trust Board and a letter of support from the applicable Traditional Leader/Council.
- IV. The use of land for urban agriculture / community gardens is supported within the context that it will not degrade the quality of life of surrounding landowners, will not impact harmfully on public health and/or the natural environment and will contribute to the social and economic well-being of people.
- V. Developers are encouraged to consider alternative forms of energy, renewable sources of energy and building design paradigm that embraces energy efficiency objectives.

## 7.1.3. **Urban Agriculture**

Colour								
Zone: Urban	Agriculture	)						
Statement o Intent	p ga	A zone that provides for land located in urban areas for agricultural purposes, utilized for small scale agricultural production, market gardening, horticulture, aquaculture, the keeping of limited livestock and community gardens						
Pr	imary			Consent			Preclud	led
Arts and Craft workshop Agricultural building Agricultural land Community gardens Horticulture Utility facility			Agricultural IndustryInstitution- animal welfare Recreational building Special Development			Buildings and land uses not included in the primary and special consent columns		
			Develo	pment Parai	neters			
Minimum erf size	F.A.R.	Co	verage	Height	Buildi Line	U	Side Setback	Rear Setback
1800	0.125		50%	2	7.5m		3m	3m
Additional Comments								

- The use of land zoned for agricultural purposes and used for any land use other than "Agricultural Land" and "Agricultural Building" shall be ancillary to the agricultural use and shall not impact on or detract from the viability of the land to produce agricultural produce.
- II. Applications for development on land falling under the Ingonyama Trust Board also require power of attorney from the Ingonyama Trust Board and a letter of support from the applicable Traditional Leader/Council.
- III. The use of land for urban agriculture / community gardens is supported within the context that it will not degrade the quality of life of surrounding landowners, will not impact harmfully on public health and/or the natural environment and will contribute to the social and economic well-being of people.
- IV. Developers are encouraged to consider alternative forms of energy, renewable sources of energy and building design paradigm that embraces energy efficiency objectives.

## 7.2. CIVIC AND SOCIAL

## 7.2.1. **Education**

Colour								
Zone: Educ	ation							
Statement of In	ii a	A zone that provides for a full range of educational facilities, including infants, pre-primary, primary, secondary, tertiary and adult education and training with associated buildings and recreational facilities.						
Pr	rimary		Consent		Precl	uded		
Community ga Crèche Dwelling Hous Educational Bu Municipal Purp Recreational bu Residential Bu Tuck Shop	•	<ul> <li>Institution</li> <li>Private recreation area</li> <li>BTTS</li> </ul>			Buildings and land uses not included in the primary and special consent columns			
		Developr	nent Para	meters				
Minimum erf size	F.A.R.	Coverage	Height	Building Line	Side Setback	Rear Setback		
1800m	1	50%	3	7.5m	4m	5m		
	<del></del>	Additio	nal Comr	nents				

- I. All educational facilities are subject to the requirements of the Department of Education.
- II. Residential buildings and Medium density housing in the "Education" zone shall be restricted to staff and scholar accommodation.
- III. Shops within the "Education" zone will be restricted to the sale of goods to staff and scholars.
- IV. Drop-off and pick up areas shall be located on-site and, where possible, shall not be located adjacent to a major arterial road to avoid traffic congestion and pedestrian and vehicular conflict.

## 7.2.2. **Health and Welfare**

Colour								
Zone: Health ar	nd Welfare		•					
Statement of In	ntent			A zone that	provide	s for	r the full rar	nge of
				- ·	-	-	itals, medic	
							nunity care,	
					equirem	ent	s, including	pension
			1	pay points.				
	imary			Consent			Preclu	
Clinic				density housi	ing	Buildings and land uses not		
Dwelling House	<b>!</b>		Residential Building			included in the primary and		
Hospital			Restaurant special consent columns				columns	
Institution			BTTS					
Public Office								
Private recreati								
Restricted build	ling							
Shop								
				ent Paramete				
Minimum	F.A.R.	Co	verage	Height	Buildi	ng	Side	Rear
erf size					Line	!	Setback	Setback
1800m	2		60% 4 7.5m				3m	3m
Additional Cor	nments							
Prior to any build	ling plans beir	ng submi	tted to the	Municipality fo	or any Hea	alth	facility, inclu	ding

Prior to any building plans being submitted to the Municipality for any Health facility, including Hospitals, Clinics, Acute/Sub- Acute facilities and the like where the public are to be treated for an illness, the building plans are to be submitted to the KZN Department of Health for approval.

## 7.2.3. **Hospital**

Colour								
Zone: Health	and Welfare	·						
Statement o	f Intent			A zone that	provides fo	r pu	blic and priva	te hospitals
				which provi	de a full ra	nge (	of which provi	de a full
				_		-	rative, general	
							clinics that pro	vide
			T	primary car	e services (	only.		
	imary			Consent			Preclud	
Clinic			BTTS				ldings and land	
Dwelling Ho	ıse						luded in the pri	
Hospital						spe	cial consent col	umns
Institution								
Public Office								
Private recre	ation area							
Residential E	Building							
Restaurant								
Restricted bu	ıilding							
Shop								
Developmen	nt Parameter	'S						
Minimum	F.A.R.	Co	verage	Height	Buildi	ng	Side	Rear
erf size					Line	!	Setback	Setback
N/A	2		70%	4	7.5m	1	4.5m	4.5m

- **Additional Comments**
- I. Prior to any building plans being submitted to the Municipality for any Health facility, including Hospitals, Clinics, Acute/Sub- Acute facilities etc, the building plans are to be submitted to the KZN Department of Health for approval.
- II. Development controls may be relaxed at the sole discretion of the Municipality based on the site development plan.
- III. Height may be further restricted based on flanking zones.

## 7.2.4. **Municipal and Government**

Colour								
Zone: Munici	pal And Go	vernm	ent	1				
Statement of	f Intent	This zone is intended for buildings used for National, Provincial and						
		Munic	ipal admi	nistration and	d services	, and	includes, mu	nicipal
		office,	town hal	l, government	t office, co	urt h	ouse, police s	tation,
		public	library, p	oublic art galle	ery, publi	c mus	seum, and bui	ldings
		ordina	rily ancil	lary thereto.				
Pri	imary			Consent			Preclud	led
Active open s	pace		Instituti	on animal We	elfare		dings and land	
Community H	Iall		Arts and	l craft worksh	юр		ided in the prii	
Court house			BTTS			special consent columns		
Educational E	Building		Crèche					
Institution			Dwelling House Shop					
Passive open	•		Medium Density Housing					
Police Station			Residential Building					
Public art gal	-		Restricted building					
Public library			Vehicle Testing Station					
Public museu	m							
Public Office								
Taxi Rank								
Tuck Shop								
		1 -		pment Parai		1		T
Minimum erf size	F.A.R.	Co	verage	verage Height Buildin		_	Side Setback	Rear Setback
1800m	2		80%	4	4 7.5m 3m			3m
Additional C	omments							
None								

## 7.2.5. **Institution**

Colour								
Zone: Institu	ıtion							
Statement o	f Intent	This z	one is intended for land and buildings for the accommodation					
		and ca	are of the	aged, places o	f safety a	nd o	rphanages	
Pr	imary			Consent			Preclu	ded
Arts and craf	ft workshop	)	Active C	pen Space		Bui	ldings and land	uses not
Community §	garden		Agricult	ural building			uded in the pri	•
Dwelling Ho	use		Education	onal building		spe	cial consent col	umns
Institution			Place of public assembly					
Passive open	space		Office					
Private Recr	eation		Public office					
Residential E	Building		Restaurant					
			Shop					
			BTTS					
		•	Develo	opment Parai	neters			
Minimum	F.A.R.	Co	verage	Height	Buildi	ng	Side	Rear
erf size					Line	<b>!</b>	Setback	Setback
1800m	2		70%	2	7.5m	1	1.5m	2m

- I. Residential buildings and dwelling units shall be restricted to staff and scholar accommodation.
- II. Shops permitted by consent will be restricted to the sale of goods to staff and scholars.
- III. Drop-off and pick up areas shall be located on-site and, where possible, shall not be located adjacent to a major arterial road to avoid traffic congestion and pedestrian and vehicular conflict

## 7.2.6. **Place of Worship**

Colour			w						
Zone: Worsh	nip								
Statement of Intent			A zone that is intended for land and buildings to be used as a church, chapel, oratory, synagogue, mosque, temple, Sunday school, and other places of public devotion, but does not include a funeral parlour.						Sunday
Pr	rimary			Conser	ıt			Precluc	
Dwelling Ho Office Place of wor Place of publ	ship		BTTS Creche Instituti Residen	on tial buildi	ng		Buildings and land uses not included in the primary and special consent columns		
			Develo	pment Pa	ara	meters			
Minimum erf size	F.A.R.	Co	verage	Heigh	t	Buildi Line	_	Side Setback	Rear Setback
3600m	2		50%	2 7.5r		7.5m	l	2m	3m
			Addi	itional Co	mn	nents			
	The site of a Place of Worship may include a building or buildings used as a Sunday school, administrative office, and/or other building/s used for purposes of religious and social matters.								

## 7.2.7. **Cemetery and Crematoria**

Colour		С							
<b>Zone:</b> Cemetery									
<b>Statement of Intent</b> A zone that is intended for public and private cemeteries, memoria									
	parks, creatorium and funeral chapel.								
Primary		Consent		Precluded					
Cemetery		BTTS		Buildings and land uses not					
Crematoria		Funeral parlo	ur	included in the primary and					
Office				special consent columns					
Utilities									
Development Parameters									

Minimum Building F.A.R. Coverage Height Side Rear erf size Line Setback Setback N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

- I. Cemeteries will require the formal approval from the provincial Department of Economic Development, Tourism and Environmental Affairs (EDTEA) in terms of environmental authorisation.
- II. Where an on-site crematorium is located within a cemetery, its construction, operation and management shall comply with the guidelines prescribed in the KwaZulu-Natal Cemeteries and Crematoria Act (No.12 of 1996) and any other applicable legislation.
- III. A dedicated site may be allocated within the cemetery for the temporary erection of marques for on-site funeral services

## 7.3. ENVIRONMENTAL

## 7.3.1. Environmental Services:

Colou	r										
Zone:	Envir	onmental Se	ervice	s (Conser	vation)						
Stater	<b>Statement of</b> A zone that provides part of the sustainable open space sys										
Intent	t	7	which	includes	ncludes independent or linked open space areas, and						
	permits only limited and specific developments.										
	P	rimary			Consent			Pred	cluded		
Conse				Agricult	ural land		Bu	ildings and la	ınd uses not		
Utilitie	es			Agricult	ural build	ing		luded in the			
Urban	Agrio	culture		_	onal Build	_	spe	ecial consent	columns		
Public	_					J					
	_	ıl building									
Park											
				Develor	ment Pai	rametei	rs				
Minin	num	F.A.R.	Co	verage	Height	Buildi	ng	Side	Rear Setback		
erf s	ize			J		Line	_	Setback			
N/A	A	N/A		N/A	N/A	N/A		N/A	N/A		
•		•	•	Addit	ional Con	ments					
I.	The	development	contro	ols are at t	he discretio	on of the	Mun	icpality.			
II.	Edu	cational build	ings to	be limited	d to enviro	nmental (	educ	ation, conser	vation awareness		
		environment									
III.									l be subject to		
		ronmental ap									
		ronmental M						98) (as ameno	aea) and the		
IV.		ronmental In						000) as amon	dod no		
1 V .		genous trees									
		culture, Fores				e permis	,3101	or the Depar	tilicit of		
V.						ertv musi	t be o	cleared at the	e expense of the		
		erty owner a									
VI.									ements of the		
									be given to the		
		imum level lil									
VII.		ndigenous flo	ra, fau	na or any i	naturally o	ccurring	mate	erial may be o	disturbed or		
*****		oved.	Cul	1: 11				. 0			
VIII.	Due consideration of the applicable prequisites as per section 9.										

## 7.3.2. **Active Open Space**

	1									
Colour										
Zone: Active Open Space										
Statement o	f	A zone t	hat provi	des for sporti	ng and re	creat	tional needs at	nd permits a		
Intent		limited	range of a	ssociated dev	elopment	and	parking space	9		
Pr	imary			Consent			Precluc	led		
SportfieldsE	ducationa	al	Urban A	griculture		Buildings and land uses not				
building			Community Gardens			included in the primary and				
Park			BTTS			special consent columns				
Recreational	building									
			Develo	opment Parai	neters					
Minimum	F.A.R	. Co	Coverage Height Buildi		Buildi	ng	Side	Rear		
erf size					Line		Setback	Setback		
N/A	0.125	5	15%	1	7.5m	l	3m	3m		

- I. The erection of any building within an environmental sensitive areas shall be subject to environmental appraisal or EIA application as per the requirements of the National Environmental Management Act, 1998 (Act No. 107 of 1998) (as amended) and the Environmental Impact Assessment (EIA) Regulations.
- II. In terms of section 7 of the Forestry Act 1998, (No.84 of 1998) as amended, no indigenous trees may be cut down without the permission of the Department of Agriculture, Forestry and Fisheries.
- III. Alien invasive species found within the property must be cleared at the expense of the property owner and the owner must undertake an ongoing control of alien plants.
- IV. No indigenous flora, fauna or any naturally occurring material may be disturbed or removed.
- V. Due consideration of the applicable prequisites as per section 9.

## 7.3.3. **Private Open Space**

Colour										
Zone: Private Open Space										
Statement of This is a zone to control privately owned land used for sports and								rts and		
Intent	re	creati	ion which	may restrict a	access to t	he g	eneral public,	and permits		
	al	imite	d range of	f associated d	evelopme	nt, w	hich may incl	ude		
	an	cillar	y facilities	s and building	s associat	ed w	vith the prima	ry use of the		
	laı	nd for	private o	pen space.			_			
Pr	imary		Consent				Precluded			
Dwelling hou	se Park		Arts and craft workshop				Buildings and land uses not			
Private recre	ation area		Shop			included in the primary and				
Recreational	building		BTTS			special consent columns				
Development Parameters										
Minimum	F.A.R.	Co	verage	Height	Building		Side	Rear		
erf size					Line		Setback	Setback		
N/A	0.125		15%	1	7.5m		3m	3m		

- I. The erection of any building within an environmental sensitive areas shall be subject to environmental appraisal or EIA application as per the requirements of the National Environmental Management Act, 1998 (Act No. 107 of 1998) (as amended) and the Environmental Impact Assessment (EIA) Regulations.
- II. In terms of section 7 of the Forestry Act 1998, (No.84 of 1998) as amended, no indigenous trees may be cut down without the permission of the Department of Agriculture, Forestry and Fisheries.
- III. Alien invasive species found within the property must be cleared at the expense of the property owner and the owner must undertake an ongoing control of alien plants.
- IV. Applications for development near rivers must comply with the requirements of the Water Act 1998 (Act No. 36 of 1998) which requires that consideration be given to the maximum level likely to be reached by flood water every 100 years.
- V. No indigenous flora, fauna or any naturally occurring material may be disturbed or removed.
- VI. Due consideration of the applicable prequisites as per section 9.

### 7.3.4. **Passive Open Space**

Colour											
Zone: Passive Open Space											
<b>Statement of</b> A zone that provides for formal and informal parks with associated											
Intent		recreat	ional facili	ities							
Pr	imary			Consent			Preclud	led			
Park			Education	onal building		Buildings and land uses not					
Public open s	space		Recreational building				included in the primary and				
			Shop				special consent columns				
			BTSS								
			Develo	pment Parar	neters						
Minimum	F.A.R	. Co	overage	Height	Buildi	ng	Side	Rear			
erf size			Line			Setback	Setback				
N/A	0.125	5	15%	1	7.5m		3m	3m			
	Additional Comments										

- I. The erection of any building within an environmental sensitive areas shall be subject to environmental appraisal or EIA application as per the requirements of the National Environmental Management Act, 1998 (Act No. 107 of 1998) (as amended) and the Environmental Impact Assessment (EIA) Regulations.
- II. All recreational buildings within the "Passive Open Space" zone shall be restricted to the provision of shelter, ablution facilities, services, braai and picnicking facilities and amenities of a recreational purposes.
- III. In terms of section 7 of the Forestry Act 1998, (No.84 of 1998) as amended, no indigenous trees may be cut down without the permission of the Department of Agriculture, Forestry and Fisheries.
- IV. Alien invasive species found within the property must be cleared at the expense of the property owner and the owner must undertake an ongoing control of alien plants.
- V. Applications for development near rivers must comply with the requirements of the Water Act 1998 (Act No. 36 of 1998) which requires that consideration be given to the maximum level likely to be reached by flood water every 100 years.
- VI. No indigenous flora, fauna or any naturally occurring material may be disturbed or removed. VII. The development and use of land located in the sea-shore area shall comply with the requirements of the NEMA: Integrated Coastal Management Act (Act No. 24 of 2008).
- VII. Additional conditions may be applied to applications that are located adjacent to sensitive estuarine or coastal areas identified in terms of the Coastal Management Plan or a Biodiversity
- VIII. Due consideration of the applicable prequisites as per section 9.

#### 7.3.5. **Nature Reserves**

Colour	
<b>Zone:</b> Nature Reserve	es
Statement of	A zone that is intended to demarcate formally managed public and
Intent	private conservation areas, such as nature reserves and amenity
	reserves

Primary	Consent	Precluded
Camping sites	BTTS	
Chalet development		Buildings and land uses not
Conference facility		included in the primary and
Conservation		special consent columns
Dwelling unit		
Educational building		
Game reserve		
Lodge		
Nature reserve		
Office		
Residential building		
Recreational building		
Restaurant		
Shop		

**Development Parameters** 

Minimum erf size	F.A.R.	Coverage	Height	Building Line	Side Setback	Rear Setback
N/A	0.125	20%	2	7.5m	3m	3m

- I. All Primary Uses are subject to alignment with Protected Area Management Plan.
- II. Dwelling unit and residential building restricted to staff accommodation.
- III. The erection of any building within environmental sensitive areas shall be subject to environmental appraisal or EIA application as per the requirements of the National Environmental Management Act, 1998 (Act No. 107 of 1998) (as amended) and the Environmental Impact Assessment (EIA) Regulations.
- IV. In terms of section 7 of the Forestry Act 1998, (No.84 of 1998) as amended, no indigenous trees may be cut down without the permission of the Department of Agriculture, Forestry and Fisheries.
- V. Alien invasive species found within the property must be cleared at the expense of the property owner and the owner must undertake an ongoing control of alien plants.
- VI. Applications for development near rivers must comply with the requirements of the Water Act 1998 (Act No. 36 of 1998) which requires that consideration be given to the maximum level likely to be reached by flood water every 100 years.
- VII. No indigenous flora, fauna or any naturally occurring material may be distributed or removed, unless such is being undertaken for operational management as provided for in the management plan.
- VIII. The development and use of land located in the sea-shore area shall comply with the requirements of the NEMA: Integrated Coastal Management Act (Act No. 24 of 2008).
  - IX. The Coastal Management Plan must be aligned with the land use Scheme to ensure that sustainable development is undertaken along the sea-shore and thus all development applications have to be considered in terms of both plans.
  - X. Additional conditions may be applied to applications that are located adjacent to sensitive estuarine or coastal areas identified in terms of the Coastal Management Plan or a Biodiversity Plan.
- XI. For all coastal developments, a storm-water management plan must be drawn up and must be aligned with the existing storm- water management within the area.
- XII. Due consideration of the applicable prequisites as per section 9.

#### 7.3.6. **Sea Shore**

IX.

X.

/.3.6.		a Snore							
Colou	r								
Zone:	Sea s								
Intent along in the due to		along the Sin the Sin the Sin the Indian	ne coast lo ea Shores ard to the	cated within t Act, Act No. 2	the low ar 1 of 1935 s of the N	n d h	d developmen igh water mar is replacemen : Integrated Co	k, as defined t, and with	
	Pr	rimary	1 10110.80		Consent			Precluc	led
Abluti				Restaur			Bui	ldings and land	
Ablution building Conservation Educational building Life guard house Office			Shop				uded in the princial consent col		
Public	open : ational	space building							
					pment Parai				
Minir erf s	-	F.A.R.	Co	overage	Height	Buildi Line	_	Side Setback	Rear Setback
N/	'A	N/A		N/A	N/A	N/A		N/A	N/A
					itional Comm				
I. II.	envir Envir Envir In ter	onmental a onmental M onmental I oms of section may be cut	ppraisal Managem mpact As on 7 of th	or EIA app ent Act, 19 ssessment ne Forestry	lication as per t 98 (Act No. 107 (EIA) Regulatio Act 1998, (No.	the require 7 of 1998) ns. 34 of 1998	emen (as a 3) as a	eas shall be sub ts of the Nation mended) and th amended, no ind of Agriculture,	al ne digenous
III. IV. V.	prope Appli 1998 likely No in	erty owner cations for (Act No. 36 to be reach digenous fl	and the develope of 1998 ned by floora, faun	owner mus ment near i ) which red ood water o a or any na	t undertake an rivers must comquires that consevery 100 years aturally occurri	ongoing conply with the sideration is.	ontro the re be gi	at the expense of alien plants equirements of the went to the maxing be disturbed to the comply with	the Water Act mum level or removed.
VI. VII. VIII.	requi The C susta applie Addit	rements of coastal Man inable deve cations hav ional condi	the NEM agement elopment to be continued to be continued to be continued to the continued t	A: Integrat Plan must is underta onsidered i y be applie	ed Coastal Man be aligned with ken along the s n terms of both ed to application	agement And the land the land the land the land the lans. In that are	Act (Ause Sound the locate of	all comply with Act No. 24 of 200 cheme to ensur hus all developmeted adjacent to seement Plan or a	08). re that nent sensitive

For all coastal developments, a storm-water management plan must be drawn up and must be aligned with the existing storm- water management within the area. In addition, should the

developer decide to have a storm-water attenuation area. Due consideration of the applicable prequisites as per section 9.

#### 7.3.7. Dam

Colour										
Zone: Dam										
Statement of	A zone t	hat provides f	for dams that are	used for water supply and/or						
Intent	recreati	recreational purposes. Use of the water body requires permission from								
	DWA.	WA.								
Primary		Co	onsent	Precluded						
Conservation				Buildings and land uses not						
Public open space Ser	ni-			included in the primary and						
public open space				special consent columns						
Utilities										
		Developmo	ent Parameters							

Minimum erf size	F.A.R.	Coverage	Height	Building Line	Side Setback	Rear Setback
N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A

- I. The erection of any building within an environmental sensitive areas shall be subject to environmental appraisal or EIA application as per the requirements of the National Environmental Management Act, 1998 (Act No. 107 of 1998) (as amended) and the Environmental Impact Assessment (EIA) Regulations.
- II. All recreational buildings within the "Passive Open Space" zone shall be restricted to the provision of shelter, ablution facilities, services, braai and picnicking facilities and amenities recreational purposes.
- III. In terms of section 7 of the forestry Act 1998, (No.84 of 1998) as amended, no indigenous trees may be cut down without the permission of the Department of Agriculture, Forestry and Fisheries.
- IV. Alien invasive species found within the property must be cleared at the expense of the property owner and the owner must undertake an ongoing control of alien plants.
- V. Applications for development near rivers must comply with the requirements of the Water Act 1998 (Act No. 36 of 1998) which requires that consideration be given to the maximum level likely to be reached by flood water every 100 years.
- VI. No indigenous flora, fauna or any naturally occurring material may be disturbed or removed.
- VII. The development and use of land located in the sea-shore area shall comply with the requirements of the NEMA: Integrated Coastal Management Act (Act No. 24 of 2008).
- VIII. The Coastal Management Plan must be aligned with the land use Scheme to ensure that sustainable development is undertaken along the sea-shore and thus all development applications have to be considered in terms of both plans.
  - IX. Additional conditions may be applied to applications that are located adjacent to sensitive estuarine or coastal areas identified in terms of the Coastal Management Plan or a Biodiversity
  - Due consideration of the applicable prequisites as per section 9.

### 7.3.8. **River Reserve**

Municipality.

II.

Colour									
Zone: River R	Reserve								
Statement of	f	This lan	d is reser	ved to protec	t the river	ine c	r water cour	ses in areas	
Intent		immedi	ately adja	cent to the ab	ove and t	o mii	nimize polluti	on and	
erosion but may be used for passive recreation. All other uses are							ises are		
	prohibited.								
Pri	mary		Consent			Precluded			
Passive recre	ation			Buildings and land uses not included in the primary and special consent columns				mary and	
			Develo	pment Paran	neters				
Minimum erf size	F.A.R	Co	verage	Height	Buildii Line	_	Side Setback	Rear Setback	
N/A	N/A		N/A	N/A	N/A		N/A	N/A	
			Addit	ional Comm	ents				
I. The re	emoval c	of soil and	l stones n	ot permitted v	without th	ie au	thority of the		

The Municipality shall be permitted to install underground services.

### 7.4. MIXED USE

### 7.4.1. **Core Mixed Use**

Colour								
Zone: Core M	lixed Use							
Statement of		land zone trade	in and are permits a e, office, a	kes provision found the central wide range of dministration	ral busine f land use cultural,	ess di es co , resi	strict of Mand mbining comidential and lo	leni. The nercial, w impact
				vities and devent to occur.	еюринен	1		special illix
				Consent			cluded	
Commercial Crèche Education Bu Motor Garag Guest house Launderette Office Parking gara Place of publ	Education Building Motor Garage Guest house Hotel Launderette Office Parking garage Place of public amusement Place of public assembly Public office Restaurant			Breakfast  nce Facility Apartments parlour ouse  on arage lling station public amuser recreational ar ional building warehouse		incl	dings and land uded in the prii cial consent col	mary and
751		T 6		opment Param				
Minimum erf size	F.A.R.	Со	verage	Height	Buildii Line	•	Side Setback	Rear Setback
1800m	1		80%	4	7.5m		3m	3m
			Add	itional Comme	ents			
				per application office park dev				

# 7.4.2. **Medium Impact Mixed Use**

Colour								
<b>Zone:</b> Mediu	m Impact n	nixed u	se					
Statement o	f Intent	A zone	e that is ir	ntended to	provide for	the us	se of retail,	
					-		cilities and re	
		comm	ercial use	es at high ii	ntensities th	at con	nprise a Tow	n Centre
Pr	imary			Consen	t		Preclud	
Apartment b	uilding		BTTS				dings and land	
Betting depot			Creche				ided in the pri	
Commercial workshop			Education	onal buildi	ng	spec	cial consent col	umns
Guest house			Funeral	•				
Hotel			Instituti	tion				
Launderette				ium Density housing				
Office			_	Motor garage				
Parking gara			Place of public assembly					
Place of publ	ic amusem	ent	Recreational building					
Public office			Retirement village					
Restaurant			Storage warehouse					
Shop			Veterina	ary clinic				
Wholesale w	arehouse		_					
				-	rameters			1
Minimum erf size	F.A.R.	Co	verage	Height	Buildi Line	_	Side Setback	Rear Setback
450m	2		75% 3 9m			3m	3m	
			Addi	itional Cor	mments			
I. Office	may includ	e office	buildings/	office park	development			

## 7.4.3. **Low Impact Mixed Use**

0.1										
Colour	. 177									
Zone: Low Impact M						C1 1				
Statement of	-		and developn				_			
Intent		_	mmercial, bus							
			rading, light a							
			nd residential	uses so a	is to	enable a speci	al mix of			
development to occur.										
Primary			Consent			Precluc				
Residential building		BTTS				dings and land				
Commercial worksh	op	Casino				uded in the pri				
Launderette					spec	cial consent col	umns			
Office	Betting	depot								
Public office	Education	ucation building								
Restaurant		Funeral	Funeral parlour							
Shop		Guest ho	Guest house							
		Instituti	on							
		Mobile l	nome park							
		Motor g	Motor garage							
		Place of public assembly								
		Recreat	Recreation building							
		Retirem	ent village							
		Storage	warehouse							
		Veterina	ary clinic							
		Wholesa	ale warehouse	<b>;</b>						
		Develo	pment Parar	neters						
Minimum F.A.	R. C	overage	Height	Buildi	ng	Side	Rear			
erf size				Line	!	Setback	Setback			
450m 0.5	5	60%	3	9m		3m	3m			
		Addi	itional Comm	ents						
None										

## 7.4.4. Tuck Shop/ Spaza Shop

Colour								
Zone: Tuck	Shop			•				
Statement of Intent  The sale of day-to-day convenience goods from a dwelling unit using portion of the building, associated outbuilding where goods are general sold through a window, door way or hatch and does not include a walk shop where goods are on display.								
Primary			Consent	Consent Precluded				
Shop Office			BTTS Residential dwelling unit			Buildings and land uses not included in the primary and special consent columns		
			Develop	oment Para	meters			
Minimum erf size	F.A.R.	Cov	erage	Height	Building Line	Side Setback	Rear Setback	
350m	0.5	50%	6	2	7m	3m	3m	
	I	l	Ad	ditional Cor	nments	ı	<u>'</u>	
				hin the prem		property.		

### 7.4.5. **Office**

Colour								
Zone: Office								
Statement of	· A:	zone t	that rprov	rides for office	developr	nent	s in suburban	locations.
Intent	Of	fices i	may/may	not be adjace	nt to subi	ırbaı	n shopping ce	ntres. Uses
	m	ust be	compatiable with adjaent residential development.					
Pri	mary			Consent	Consent Precluded			ded
Office			BTTS			Buil	dings and land	uses not
Public office			Crèche				uded in the pri	
			Education	onal building		spe	cial consent col	umns
			Funeral	parlour	S			
			Instituti	on				
			Mobile home park					
			Motor Garage					
			Petrol Filling Station					
			Place of public assembly					
			Recreati	onal building				
			Storage	warehouse				
			Veterina	ary clinic				
			Develo	pment Parar	neters			
Minimum	F.A.R.	Co	verage	Height	Buildi	ng	Side	Rear
erf size					Line		Setback	Setback
450m <sup>2</sup>	0.75		75%	4	7.5m		3m	3m
			Addi	tional Comm	ents			
None								

## 7.4.6. **Private Parking**

Colour											
<b>Zone:</b> Public pa	rking gara	ige									
Statement of In	;	activitie	es which				oses. Certain of the contract				
Prin	nary			Consent			Preclu	ded			
Parking garage of Office Shop	/ parkade		BTTS Car wash			Buildings and land uses not included in the primary and special consent columns					
- Shop			Develop	ment Paran	ieters						
Minimum erf size	F.A.R.	Со	verage	Height	Buildi Line	0	Side Setback	Rear Setback			
1200m	1200m N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A										
			Additi	onal Commo	ents						
I. Developr	I. Development parameters at the discretion of the Municipality										

## 7.4.7. **Petrol Filling Station**

Colour	PFS									
Zone: Petrol	Filling Stati	ion								
Statement of	f A	zone t	hat perm	its ac	tivities s	uch as pu	blic	garage, servic	e station,	
Intent	a	nd a re	stricted a	mour	nt of spac	ce devote	d to	a convenience	store which	
	m	nay inc	lude a bal	kery.						
Pr	imary			Co	nsent			Preclud	led	
Car wash			Motor garage				dings and land			
Office			Restaurant			included in the primary and				
Petrol Filling	Station						spe	cial consent col	umns	
Shop										
			Develo	pme	nt Paraı	neters				
Minimum	F.A.R.	Co	verage	Не	eight	Buildi	ng	Side	Rear	
erf size						Line	<u> </u>	Setback	Setback	
1800m	N/A		60%		2 7.5m		1	4m	5m	
					ıl Comm					
I. Shop l	limited to co	nvenice	shop prov	<i>r</i> iding	day-to-da	ay commo	dotie	S.		

### 7.5. INDUSTRY

## 7.5.1. **Extractive Industry**

Colour											
Zone: Extrac	tive Indus	stry/ Qua	arry & Mi	ning							
Statement o	of	A zone t	hat comp	rises land use	d for the	extra	action of mine	rals or raw			
Intent		material	materials including sand and stone, and associated business								
		operatio	ations, in compliance with a permit from the relevant authority.								
		Adjacen	t land use	es must be cor	npatible v	vith	this use which	typically			
			-	-		-	his zone provi				
				-			per yards, out				
		_	-				pair the long -	term ability			
to extract and process mineral resources.											
	imary		Consent			_	Preclud				
Extractive in	-						ldings and land				
Industrial bu	ıilding						uded in the prii cial consent col				
Office						spe	ciai consent coi	umms			
				pment Para	1						
Minimum	F.A.R.	Co	verage	Height	Buildi	_	Side	Rear			
erf size					Line		Setback	Setback			
1800m	0.125		20%	2	7.5m	l	3m	3m			
			Addi	itional Comm	ients						
I. All applications for quarrying and mining will be required to have the necessary approved permits issued from the Department of Minerals and Energy (DME) in terms of the Mineral and Petroleum Resources Development Act (No. 28 of 2002).											
			_	-	-		ring that the Co	uncil may			

approve of the construction and use of a single dwelling unit for the exclusive use of a caretaker, no other dwelling unit of any description whatsoever shall be permitted.

### 7.5.2. **General Industry**

Cal	1 ~
	ınıır

#### **Zone:** General Industry

# Statement of Intent

A zone that permits compatiable manufacturing. As an industrial zone, it would permit a combination of light manufacturing uses found in other zones and more intensive manufacturing uses that would normally be considered incompatible with sensitive land uses. Warehousing of materials considered non-noxious or non-hazardous are permitted in buildings in this zone. Outdoor storage, as an ancillary use, may be permitted in the zone, subject to certain restrictions involving the amount of area permitted on a lot, setbacks, screening, and possibly the type of materials permitted to be stored outdoors, i.e. via a consent procedure.

	e procedure.	
Primary	Consent	Precluded
Commercial workshop	BTTS	Buildings and land uses not
General industry workshop	Educational building	included in the primary and
Launderette	Institution	special consent columns
Light industrial building	Motor garage	
Service industrial building	Petrol Filling Station	
Storage warehouse	Place of public assembly	
Public office	Recreational building	
Shop	Scrap yard	
Office	Wholesale warehouse	
Wholesale warehouse		
Parking garage		

**Development Parameters** 

Minimum erf size	F.A.R.	Coverage	Height	Building Line	Side Setback	Rear Setback
900m	2	75%	N/A	7.5m	4m	5m

#### **Additional Comments**

Where specific provision is made in this scheme and saving that the Council may approve the development and use of a single dwelling unit for the exclusive use of a caretaker, no other dwelling unit of any description whatsoever shall be permitted.

### 7.5.3. **Light Industry**

Primary Commercial worksh General industry bu Launderette Light industrial buil Office Scrapyard Service industrial be Storage warehouse	A zon land u reside it wou signif truck non-h condi limite condi	uses permitt ential, mixed uld permit m ficant vibrati traffic. Ward hazardous an itions. Outdo ed if not outr itions in this  Agricult Agricult Agricult BTTS Dwelling Educatio	ural industry ural land g house onal building	t more sent space zont zont zont zont zont zont zont zont	nsitive ones. As s that u gh volum onside gs in th ary use uses w proced Buildi includ	land use zo s a light indusually do no me of automered non-no is zone, with e, would be erould be person	nes, such as ustrial zone of involve nobile and xious or h possible extremely mitted with uses not mary and
Primary Intent  Primary Commercial worksh General industry bu Launderette Light industrial buil Office Scrapyard Service industrial be Storage warehouse	A zon land u reside it wou signif truck non-h condi limite condi	uses permitt ential, mixed uld permit m ficant vibrati traffic. Ward hazardous an itions. Outdo ed if not outr itions in this  Agricult Agricult Agricult BTTS Dwelling Educatio	ed in adjacent use and open anufacturing on, noise, odd ehousing of me permitted it for storage, as right prohibite zone, i.e. via a Consent ural building ural industry ural land ghouse onal building	t more sent space zont zont zont zont zont zont zont zont	nsitive ones. As s that u gh volum onside gs in th ary use uses w proced Buildi includ	land use zo s a light indusually do no me of automored non-not is zone, with e, would be could be perdure.  Preclucings and land led in the prince.	nes, such as ustrial zone of involve nobile and xious or h possible extremely mitted with uses not mary and
Primary Commercial worksh General industry bu Launderette Light industrial buil Office Scrapyard Service industrial be Storage warehouse Shop	nop tilding lding	Agricult Agricult Agricult BTTS Dwelling Educatio	Consent ural building ural industry ural land g house onal building	a consene	Buildi includ	Precludings and land led in the prin	uses not mary and
Commercial worksh General industry bu Launderette Light industrial buil Office Scrapyard Service industrial b Storage warehouse	uilding Iding	Agricult Agricult BTTS Dwelling Educatio	ural industry ural land g house onal building		includ	led in the prii	mary and
		Instituti Motor G Parking Place of Place of Public Recreati Restaura Restrict Scrap ya	Agricultural building Agricultural industry Agricultural land BTTS Dwelling house Educational building Funeral parlour Institution Motor Garage Parking garage Place of public amusement Place of public assembly Public Recreational building Restaurant Restricted building Scrap yard Service stationWholesale				
			pment Parai	1			T
Minimum F.A erf size	R.	Coverage	Height	Buildii Line	_	Side Setback	Rear Setback
900m 2	2	75%	N/A	7.5m	1	4m	5m

Where specific provision is made therefore in this Scheme and saving that the Council may approve of the development and use of a single dwelling unit for the exclusive use of a caretaker, no other dwelling unit of any description whatsoever shall be permitted.

## 7.6. RESIDENTIAL

## 7.6.1. **Special Residential 1: Detached**

Colour										
Zone: Speci	al Residential	1: Deta	ched							
Statement			A zone develo lots/er Limite have a	A zone that is intended to promote higher density residence development of primarily detached dwelling units on soots/erven. Multi-family dwellings are not permical number of compatible ancillary uses which do have a negative impact on a neighbourhood amenity maillowed.						
	Primary		Consent				Precluded			
Dwelling Un Outbuilding			BTTS Home business Guest House Bed and Breakfast				Buildings and land uses not included in the primary and special consent columns			
Minimum erf size	Maximum erf size	F.A.R		pment P verage		eight	Buildi Line	_	Side Setback	Rear Setback
<15	0m <sup>2</sup>	0.50		50%		2	4m		1.5m	2m
151	249	0.50		50%		2	3m		1.5m	2m
250	649	0.50		50%		2	4m		1.5m	2m
650	899	0.35		45%		2	4.5m	1	2m	3m
900	1799	0.35	45% 2		5m		2m	3m		
	<u> </u>		Addi	tional Co	omm	nents				
None										

## 7.6.2. **Residential Low Impact**

Colour								
Zone: Specia	l Residen	tial 1: l	Low Density	1				
Statement o	f	A zon	e that is inte	ended to pron	note the d	evel	opment of pri	marily
Intent		detac	hed dwellin	g units, but do	oes permi	t mu	lti-family dwe	llings, and
							ary uses whicl	
		have a	a negative ir	npact on a ne	ighbourh	ood a	amenity may b	e allowed.
Pr	imary			Consent			Preclud	led
Dwelling Uni	t		Bed and	Breakfast		Buildings and land uses not		
Outbuilding			BTTS				uded in the pri	
			Crèche			spe	cial consent col	umns
			Guest H	Guest House				
			Home B	usiness				
			Instituti	on				
			Develo	pment Parai	meters			
Minimum	F.A.R	.   (	Coverage	Height	Buildi	ng	Side	Rear
erf size					Line		Setback	Setback
1800m <sup>2</sup>	0.50		50%	2	5m		1.5m	2m
			Addi	tional Comm	ents			
None								

## 7.6.3. **Residential Medium Impact**

Colour									
Zone: Reside	ntial Mediur	n Imp	act						
Statement o		The prima	provision ary land ι patible an	use is resid cillary use:	ential and v	where e a n	sing types, who e a limited num on-disruptive i	nber of	
Pr	imary			Consen	t		Precluc	ded	
Bed and brea Dwelling unit Medium dens Residential b	t sity housing		Guest ho Instituti Launder Mobile l Place of Recreati Retirem clinic	Crèche Educational building Guest house Institution Launderette Mobile home park Place of public assembly Recreational building Retirement village Veterinary			Precluded  Buildings and land uses not included in the primary and special consent columns		
		1 _		pment Pa			T	<del></del>	
Minimum erf size	F.A.R.	Co	verage	Height	Build Lin	_	Side Setback	Rear Setback	
1500m <sup>2</sup>	3		75%	3	9n	1	4.5m	4.5m	
			Addi	itional Coi	nments				
	t restriction m opment Plan.	nay be	relaxed at	the discret	ion of the Co	uncil	subject to the pr	roposed Site	

## 7.6.4. Residential Only Medium Density

Colour													
Zone: Reside	ential Mediur	n Impact											
Statement of		The provision land use is res ancillary uses	The provision of land for a high housing types, where the primary and use is residential and where a limited number of compatible ncillary uses which have a non-disruptive impact on a neighbourhood amenity may be allowed.										
Pı	imary		Consei	1t		Preclu	ded						
Dwelling uni Medium den Residential t	sity housing	Launde Mobile l Place of Restaur	Crèche Educational building Launderette Mobile home park Place of public assembly Restaurant			ldings and land luded in the pri	mary and						
3.61	EAD			arameters		C: 1							
Minimum erf size	F.A.R.	Coverage	Heigh		ding ne	Side Setback	Rear Setback						
2000m <sup>2</sup>	3	70%	3	9	m	4.5m	4.5m						
		Add	itional Co	mments									
_	nt restriction n lopment Plan.	nay be relaxed a	t the discre	tion of the (	louncil :	subject to the pi	roposed Site						

## 7.6.5. **Residential High Impact**

Colour										
Zone: Resid	ential High l	Dens	sity							
A zone that is intended to promote the development of attached and detached dwelling units as part of township establoshment or part of a larger planned residential development.  A zone that retains a high incidence of residential land uses with an increasing number of appropriate ancillary land uses to satisfy local demands and convenience, and excludes industrial and trade uses. The residential density may increase. This is essentially a buffer zone where change of use is permitted with preservation of the existing format. Uses must not disrupt nor impact on the residential amenity of the neigbourhood.  Primary  Consent  Precluded										
Pr	imary	,00 u1	inou.	Consent			Preclu	ded		
Bed and brea Dwelling unit Medium dens Residential b Recreational	t sity housing uilding		Guest hou Institutio Mobile ho Place of p Recreatio	n Launderet	oly	incl	ldings and land uded in the pri cial consent col	mary and		
		ı		ment Para			T _	T		
Minimum erf size										
2000m <sup>2</sup>	3		75%	N/A	9m		4.5m	4.5m		
				onal Comn	nents					
I. Heigh	nt at the discr	etion	of the Mu	nicipality.						

## 7.6.6. **Residential Small Holdings**

Colour									
Zone: Reside	ential Sma	all holdin	ıgs	•					
Statement o	f	A zone t	that is inte	ended to conta	ain small	holdi	ngs and that s	sets aside	
Intent		land for	both low density housing and related urban scale agricu						
Pr	rimary			Consent			Preclud		
Agricultural	_		BTTS				dings and land		
Agricultural	land		Bed and Breakfast Caravan				ided in the prii	-	
Dwelling Ho	use		Park				ial consent col	umns	
			Chalet development						
			Conference Facility						
				e centre					
			Educational building						
			Guest ho	ouse					
			Lodge						
				Worship					
		1	Develo	pment Parai	meters			<u> </u>	
Minimum	F.A.R	. Co	verage	Height	Buildi	0	Side	Rear	
erf size	erf size				Line	;	Setback	Setback	
2ha	3		75% N/A 9m				4.5m	4.5m	
			Addi	itional Comm	nents				
None									

#### 7.6.7. **Caravan Park**

shop and recreation buildings.

Colour							
Zone: Caravan Park							
Statement of	A zone	intended f	for the accom	modation	of ca	ıravans used p	orimarily for
Intent			•			tion, ablution	-
		-	without comr	nunal kitc	chens	s, and other re	creational
	facilitie	es.			1		
Primary			Consent			Preclud	
Ablution facilities		BTTS				dings and land	
Camping site		Restaura	ant			uded in the pri	
Dwelling unit		special consent columns					
Launderette							
Recreational building	5						
Shop							
Tuck Shop							
			pment Parai				
Minimum F.A.l	R.   C	overage	Height	Buildii	0	Side	Rear
erf size				Line		Setback	Setback
1800m 0.2		20%	2	7.5m		3m	3m
		Addi	tional Comm	ents	•		

Development parameters of land uses ancillary to the operation and maintenance of the caraavan park itself, are at the discretion of the Municipality. This includes, but not limited to,

### 7.6.8. **Hotel**

			Н	1						
			11							
Colour										
<b>Zone:</b> Hote	l									
Statement	of Intent	A z	one inten	ided f	or holiday	accomn	noda	ation, includ	ing a	
		lisc	ensed ho	ed hotel and includes a range of facilities associated						
		wit	h the hot	he hotel – such as conference centre, recreational						
		faci	lities, pu	blic lo	unges, re	stuarant	and	l bar areas, s	shop,	
		pub	olic loung	e, res	taurant ai	nd bar ai	reas	and laundro	omat.	
	Primary			(	Consent		Precluded			
Apartments	/ flats		BTT	BTTS				ildings and la		
Conference	facility		Car	Caravan Park				included in the primary and		
Conservation	n area		Can	Camp site				ecial consent	columns	
Dwelling un	Dwelling unit				Casino					
Hotel			Cha	Chalet development						
Landry			Parking garage							
Office			Res	identi	ial buildin	g				
Place of pub	lic amusement	t								
Private recre	eation area									
Restaurant										
Shop										
_		De	velopm	ent P	aramete	ers				
Minimum	Maximum	F.A.R.	Covera	age	Height	Buildi	ng	Side	Rear	
erf size	erf size					Line	•	Setback	Setback	
1800m	2ha	1	50%	<b>о</b>	5	3		3m	3m	

- I. Amendment of the development controls at the discretion of the municipality based on the propsed site development plan.
- II. Height to be no higher than the highest flanking zone without seeking consent.

### 7.6.9. **Resort**

Colour										
Zone: Reso	rt (Small Tou	ırism)								
Statement	of Intent	A zo	A zone for the purposes of tourism facilities such as Bed and							
			Breakfasts, small scale chalet complexes, small hotels,							
				g and cara tlets.	van faci	liti	es, cotta	age i	ndustries ar	nd art and
	Primary			C	Consen	t			Preclu	ded
Arts and cra	ft workshop		BTTS				Bui	ldings and la	nd uses not	
Bed and Bre	akfast		Place of public Assembly					luded in the p	-	
Caravan Par	k		Recreational building				ng	spe	cial consent o	columns
Chalet devel	opment			Utilities f	acility					
Dwelling un										
Guest house										
Office										
Restaurant										
Shop										
		De	vel	opment F	Parame	ete	rs			
Minimum		F.A.R.	Co	overage	Heigl	h	Buildi	ng	Side	Rear
erf size	Maximum				t		Line	•	Setback	Setback
	erf size									
1800m	2ha	0.5		50%	2		3		1.5m	2m
		<u> </u>	Add	itional Co	ommei	nts	;			
None										

## 7.7.1. **Railways**

Colour			R					
Zone: Ra	lways							
Statemen	nt of			-		-	outes, open a	
Intent		storage	and repai	rs of trains,	stations	and	l passenger f	acilities and
		warehou	ises for fre	ight operatio	ns.			
	Primary			Consent			Preclu	ded
Railway S	tation		BTTS				ldings and land	
Municipa	l purposes	5					uded in the prii	•
			D 1			spe	cial consent col	umns
			Develop	ment Para	meters			T
Minimur	n F.A.l	R. Co	overage	Height	Building		Side	Rear
erf size					Line	<b>!</b>	Setback	Setback
N/A	N/A	<b>A</b>	N/A	N/A	N/A		N/A	N/A
				ional Comn			,	,
I. De	velopment p	arameters	at the discr	etion of Trans	net/PRAS	A (or	other legal rail	transport
	chority)							
		_	_	each propert	•			_
_				of 6m width (a	although n	nay b	e constraints in	urban areas
_	existing dev							
IV. En				es is an increa				

### 7.7.2. **Bus and Taxi Rank**

Colour									
Zone: Bus an	d Taxi Ran	k							
Statement of	f Az	one t	hat make	s provision	for the p	arki	ng, drop-off	and	
Intent	col	lectio	n of pass	engers by p	ublic and	l pri	vate bus serv	rices and	
	mir	ni bus	s taxis. Ma	ay include r	ank man	ager	's offices, abl	utions and	
	sma	all re	tail facilit	ies for the c	onvenie	nce o	of passengers	S.	
Prir	nary			Consent			Preclu	ded	
Bus and taxi f	facility		BTTS						
Ablution facil	lity		Car wash				included in the primary and special consent columns		
Informal trad	le area		Trading stores				ciai consent coi	umns	
Office									
Municipal Pu	rposes								
			Develop	ment Para	meters				
Minimum	F.A.R.	Co	verage	Height	Buildi	ng	Side	Rear	
erf size					Line	<b>:</b>	Setback	Setback	
1800m	1		75% 1 7.5m		1	2m	3m		
			Additi	ional Comn	nents				
None									

## 7.7.3. **Public Parking**

Colour								
Zone: Publi	c Parkin	ıg		•				
Statement of Intent	of	comm		ities which	do not in	ipac	rking purpos t upon the pr	
Pr	imary			Consent	-		Precluc	led
Parking gara	age	BTTS Buildings and Land us						
Office			Car wasl					
			Develop	ment Para	meters			
Minimum	F.A.F	R.	Coverage	Height	Buildi	ng	Side	Rear
erf size Line Setback Setback							Setback	
N/A	1		70%	3	7.5m	ì	2m	3m
			Additi	onal Comn	nents			
None								

### 7.7.4. **Utilities and Service**

Colour			US					
Zone: Utilit	ies and se	rvices		·				
Statement			_		_		d managemen	
Intent	a	side fo	r uses su		-		works, sewe	
		ewerag			_		utilities. U	_
		. ,					ually contain	
				-			is zoned for a	-
							The impact of the environm	
					nageu un	ougn	the environm	entai iiipact
Dr	assessment process.  Primary Consent Precluded							
Municipal an		nent	BTTS	Consent		Buil	dings and land	
Utility facility	_	iciic	DITS				uded in the prir	
Public road	,						cial consent col	•
			Develop	ment Para	meters			
Minimum	F.A.R.	Co	verage	Height	Buildi	ng	Side	Rear
erf size			_		Line	•	Setback	Setback
N/A	N/A		N/A	N/A	N/A		N/A	N/A
			Addit	ional Comr	nents			
All bulk factor	s are at the	sole disc	cretion of co	ouncil				

#### 7.7.5. **Landfill Sites**

Colour											
Zone: Landf	ill										
Statement of	of A	zone t	hat make	es provision	for refus	e dis	sposal works	and			
Intent	ir	ıfrastrı	ucture ne	cessary for	the muni	cipa	lity for final	disposal of			
	W	aste m	aste material.								
Pri	mary			Consent			Preclu	led			
Ablution fac	ility		BTTS				ldings and land				
Municipal ar	nd govern	ment					uded in the prii cial consent col				
Office	,					spe	ciai consent coi	ullilis			
Recycle Plan	ıt/Transfe	er									
station											
			Develop	oment Para	meters						
Minimum	Minimum F.A.R. C			Height	Buildi	ng	Side	Rear			
erf size					Line	•	Setback	Setback			
N/A	N/A		N/A	N/A	N/A		N/A	N/A			

- I. Any application for the establishment of the landfill will need to prove that the facility is compliant with the requirements of the National Environmental Management: Waste Management Act (Act 59 of 2008).
- II. An application for a landfill will need to have an approved Environmental Impact Assessment approved by the Department of Agriculture, Forestry and Fisheries (DAFF).
- III. An application for a landfill will need to address itself to issues of noise, dust, the control of and safe storage and disposal of waste on site.
- IV. The application shall provide details regarding safety measures, fencing, notices, access control, and lighting to ensure that the potential dangers associated with the activity are minimised.
- V. The application shall include a strategy to address the monitoring and control of the operation to minimise amenity disturbance by way of dust, noise, pollution, heavy vehicles, hours of operation and any remedial programmes once the activity ceases.
- VI. A detailed post-production restoration plan will be required as to how the site shall be rehabilitated.
- VII. Prior to the approval of any development proposal, the norms and standard of any affected Municipal, Provincial and National entity must be complied with and written consent of compliance must be submitted.
- VIII. A Site Development Plan may be required on request by the municipality.
  - IX. All bulk factors are determined at the sole discretion of council.
  - X. A buffer of no less than 500m shall be maintained around all sites zoned as a landfill/refuse site.

#### 7.7.6. **Waste Transfer Station**

N/A

N/A

Colour								
Zone: Waste	e Transfer S	tatio	n					
Statement	of Az	one t	that make	s provision	for temp	orar	y deposit; con	solidation;
Intent	recy	cumulation and storage of garden and domestic waste/refuse and cycling material, before final disposal in a adfill/incineration/recycling or hazardous waste facility.  Consont  Procluded						
Pri	imary		Consent			Precluded		
station Ablution facil Office	Recycle Plant/Transfer station Ablution facility			– general - light		incl	ldings and land luded in the princial consent col	mary and
			Develop	ment Para	meters			
Minimum erf size	F.A.R.	Co	verage	Height	Buildi Line	U	Side Setback	Rear Setback

'A N/A N Additional Comments

I. Any application for the establishment of the waste transfer station will need to prove that the facility is compliant with the requirements of the National Environmental Management: Waste Management Act (Act 59 of 2008).

N/A

N/A

N/A

- II. An application for a transfer station will need to have an approved Environmental Impact Assessment approved by the Department of Agriculture, Forestry and Fisheries (DAFF).
- III. An application will need to address itself to issues of noise, dust, the control of and safe storage and transfer of waste on site.
- IV. The application shall provide details regarding safety measures, fencing, notices, access control, and lighting to ensure that the potential dangers associated with the activity are minimised.
- V. The application shall include a strategy to address the monitoring and control of the operation to minimise amenity disturbance by way of dust, noise, pollution, heavy vehicles, hours of operation and any remedial programmes once the activity ceases.
- VI. A detailed post-production restoration plan will be required as to how the site shall be rehabilitated.
- VII. Prior to the approval of any development proposal, the norms and standard of any affected Municipal, Provincial and National entity must be complied with and written consent of compliance must be submitted.
- VIII. A Site Development Plan may be required on request by the municipality.
  - IX. All bulk factors are determined at the sole discretion of council.

N/A

X. Pending on the waste material on site, a buffer of 500m may be required at the discretion of the Municipality.

### 7.7.7. Waterworks

Colour		W						
Zone: Wate	rworks							
Statement	of	A zone that	nakes pr	ovision	for reser	voir	s, waterwork	ks and
Intent		infrastructu	re necess	ary for t	the muni	cipa	lity to delive	r water.
	Prima	ry		Conser	nt		Preclud	led
Municipal a	nd gove	ernment	BTTS	•	•		dings and land	
Water treatment infrastructure included in the primary as special consent columns								
		De	velopme	nt Para	meters	ı		
Minimum	F.A.l	R. Covera	g He	ight	Buildi	ng	Side	Rear
erf size		e			Line	•	Setback	Setback
N/A	N/A	A 20%		1	7.5m	1	2m	3m
	•	A	dditiona	l Comn	nents			
None								

### 7.7.8. **Sewerage Works**

Works							
Λ _							
ass	ociated in	_			_	treatment w e municipali	
nary	vage.		Consen	t		Preclu	led
governm atment	ent	R112			incl	ided in the prir	nary and
	Dev	elopme	nt Para	meters			
F.A.R.	Covera	ge H	eight		_	Side Setback	Rear Setback
N/A	N/A		N/A	N/A		N/A	N/A
	Ac	lditiona	l Comn	nents			
	sev nary covernm atment	sewage.  nary sovernment atment  Dev F.A.R. Covera  N/A N/A	sewage.  nary  sovernment atment  Development  S.A.R. Coverage H  N/A N/A	sewage.  nary Consent government atment  Development Para F.A.R. Coverage Height  N/A N/A N/A	sewage.  Consent  Sovernment atment  Development Parameters  F.A.R. Coverage Height Buildi Line	sewage.  Consent Sovernment atment  Development Parameters  F.A.R. Coverage Height Building Line  N/A N/A N/A N/A	Tourisment atment  Development Parameters  F.A.R. Coverage Height Building Side Setback  N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

## 7.8. TRANSPORT AND ACCESS

## 7.8.1. **Existing Roads**

Colour								
Zone: Existi	Zone: Existing Road							
Statement of	<b>Statement of</b> A zone that makes provision for the protection of roads and ro					s and road		
Intent		reserves for the free movement of vehicular and pedestrian						
		transpo	ort.					
Pri	mary	Consent Precluded				ded		
Public and p	rivate ro	ad	nd Informal Trade Buildings and land uses n					
Utility Facili	ty	included in the primary and special consent columns						
_			Develon	ment Para	meters	spe	ciai consent coi	ullilis
Minimum	F.A.R.	Co	overage	Height	Buildi	ng	Side	Rear
erf size					Line	!	Setback	Setback
N/A	N/A		N/A N/A N/A N/A			N/A		
Additional Comments								
None			·	·				·

### 7.8.2. **Proposed Roads**

Colour								
Zone: Propo	osed Ro	oad						
Statement	of	A zone that makes provision for the protection of roads and				ds and road		
Intent		reserves	reserves for the free movement of vehicular and pedestrian transport				transport.	
Pr	imary			Consent			Preclud	led
Public and p Utility facili		road	Informal trade			Buildings and land uses not included in the primary and special consent columns		
Developme	ent Para	ameters				spec	ciai consent con	umns
Minimum erf size	<b>F.A.</b> ]		overage	Height	Buildi Line	_	Side Setback	Rear Setback
N/A	N/A	A	N/A N/A N/A N/A					
Additional	Additional Comments							
None								

### 7.8.3. **Private Roads**

Colour			P					
Zone: Priva	te Road							
Statement of Intent		A zone that makes provision for the protection of roads and road reserves for the free movement of vehicular and pedestrian transport within a private development.						
Pri	Primary Consent Precluded				led			
Public and pr Utility facility		d	Buildings and land uses not included in the primary and special consent columns					
			Develop	ment Para	meters			
Minimum erf size	F.A.R	. C	loverage	Height	Buildi Line	_	Side Setback	Rear Setback
N/A	N/A		N/A	N/A	N/A		N/A	N/A
	Additional Comments							
None								

#### 7.9. SPECIAL ZONES

In exceptional circumstances and where existing zoning provided for in the Scheme does not accommodate existing or proposed buildings and land uses required, and where a scheme amendment may be impractical, Council may consider the creation of a "Special Zone".

#### 7.9.1. **Special Zone 1**

Special Zone created for the jurisdiction of the Mandeni Urban Regeneration Strategy. Conditions are subject to the approval of the SPLUMA application, on or before the adoption of this Land Use Management Scheme.

### **7.9.2. Special Zone 2**

Special Zone created for the historical DFA application for Thukela Destination Golf Resort. Conditions will be subjected to all DFA conditions as a result of the Tribunal that was held on the 27th June 2009.

#### 7.9.3. Special Zone 2: Special Residential 4

Colour								
Zone: Specia	al Zone	2: Spec	ial Resider	ntial 4				
Statement of	of	DFA:	Special Zoi	ne 2: Special	Resident	ial 4		
Intent								
Pri	mary			Consent			Preclud	led
Dwelling House - Buildings and land uses no included in the primary and special consent columns			mary and					
			Develo	pment Para	meters			
Minimum erf size	F.A.	R. C	Coverage	Height	Buildin Line	O	Side Setback	Rear Setback
N/A	0.33	5	35	2 [See additional control 1]	5		2m on one side only	2
			Addit	tional Comn	ients			

- I. Parking requirement: 1 garage/ covered parking space Plus 1 uncovered open parking space per dwelling unit
- II. A third storey is permitted on sites where the slope is steeper or equal to 1:4, provided that the maximum height of pitch of roof shall not exceed 9m above the highest natural ground level at any point.
- III. A kitchenette is permitted provided that if forms part of the private entertainment / braai area.
- IV. Outbuildings shall be limited to parking of vehicles with associated storage, garden equipment shed and staff quarters not exceeding 35m<sup>2</sup>. Staff quarters shall be limited to one bedroom, a kitchenette and an open plan area.

V.	In the case of swimming pools, the building line may be relaxed with the written authority of
	the HOA and the Mandeni Municipality to not less than 1 metre provided the poll is screened to
	the satisfaction of the HOA.

VI. Buildings and development shall conform to the architectural.

### 7.9.4. Special Zone 2: Special Residential: Low Density

Colour				
<b>Zone:</b> Special Zone 2: Special Residential: Low Density				
Statement of	DFA::	Special Zone 2	2: Special Resident	ial: Low Density
Intent				
Primary		C	onsent	Precluded
Dwelling House Extended Residenti Building (limited to dwelling units) Second Self-contain dwelling house (no exceeding total floo area= 100m <sup>2</sup> )	2 ned t	-		Buildings and land uses not included in the primary and special consent columns

**Development Parameters** 

20.010 5								
Minimum erf size	F.A.R.	Coverage	Height	Building Line	Side Setback	Rear Setback		
1500m2 See notes	0.35	35	2 [See additional control 1]	5	2m on both sides	2		

- I. A Parking requirement: 1 garage/ covered parking space Plus 1 uncovered open parking space per dwelling unit
- II. A third storey is permitted on sites where the slope is steeper or equal to 1:4, provided that the maximum height of pitch of roof shall not exceed 9m above the highest natural ground level at any point.
- III. A kitchenette is permitted provided that if forms part of the private entertainment / braai area.
- IV. Outbuildings shall be limited to parking of vehicles with associated storage, garden equipment shed and staff quarters not exceeding 35m<sup>2</sup>. Staff quarters shall be limited to one bedroom, a kitchenette and an open plan area.
- V. In the case of swimming pools, the building line may be relaxed with the written authority of the HOA and the Mandeni Municipality to not less than 1 metre provided the poll is screened to the satisfaction of the HOA.
- VI. Minimum Lot size = 1500m<sup>2</sup>. An Extended Residential Building shall not be permitted on sited that are smaller than or equal to 2700m<sup>2</sup>.
- VII. Buildings and development shall conform to the architectural guidelines and landscaping

### 7.9.5. **Special Zone 2: Special Residential 4**

Colour				
<b>Zone:</b> Special Zone 2: Special Residential 4				
Statement of	DFA: S	Special Zone 2: Special R	lesidential 4	
Intent				
Primary		Consent	Precluded	
Dwelling House Medium Density Ho Extended Residenti Building to 2 dwelli units	al	-	Buildings and land uses not included in the primary and special consent columns	
Duet House Maisonette Semi-detached				

**Development Parameters** 

	bevelopment i arameters								
Minimum erf size	F.A.R.	Coverage	Height	Building Line	Side Setback	Rear Setback			
	0.5	50	2	4.5m provided that the building line may be relaxed to 0m for garage only	= 1.5m	1.5			

- I. A Parking requirement : 1 garage/ covered parking space
- II. Outbuildings shall be limited to parking of vehicles with associated storage space.
- III. Buildings and development shall conform to the architectural guidelines and landscaping guidelines for Tugela Resort.

### 7.9.6. Special Zone 2: Intermediate Residential (PUD sites)

Colour					
Zone: Special Zone	<b>Zone:</b> Special Zone 2: Intermediate Residential (PUD sites)				
Statement of	DFA S	pecial Zone 2: Intermedia	te Residential (PUD sites)		
Intent					
Primary		Consent	Precluded		
Dwelling House  Medium Density Hou  Extended Residential Building	Ü	-	Buildings and land uses not included in the primary and special consent columns		
Duet House					
Maisonette Semi- detached house					

**Development Parameters** 

Minimum erf size	F.A.R.	Coverage	Height	Building Line	Side Setback	Rear Setback
	N/A	40	2	5	2	1.5

- I. A Parking requirement : 1 garage/ covered parking space Plus 1 uncovered/ open parking space per dwelling unit.
- II. Outbuildings shall be limited to parking of vehicles with associated storage space.
- III. A third storey is permitted on sites where the slope is steeper or equal to 1:4, provided that the maximum height of pitch of roof shall not exceed 9m above the highest natural ground level at any point.
- IV. In the case of swimming pools, the building line may be relaxed with the written authority of the HOA and the Mandeni Municipality to not less than 1 metre provided the poll is screened to the satisfaction of the HOA.
- V. Recreational buildings and a private club house which is associated with the main land use may be permitted.
- VI. Buildings and development shall conform to the architectural guidelines and landscaping guidelines for Tugela Resort.
- VII. The density controls and urban design controls as set out in the Town Planners Density by Design Report shall be adhered to.

#### 7.9.7. **Special Zone 2: General Residential**

Colour	

**Zone:** Special Zone 2: General Residential

**Statement of Intent** DFA Special Zone 2: General Residential

Primary	Consent	Precluded
Dwelling House Laundrette Medium Density Housing Residential Building (excluding Hotel)	-	Buildings and land uses not included in the primary and special consent columns

### **Development Parameters**

Minimum erf size	F.A.R.	Coverage	Height	Building Line	Side Setback	Rear Setback
	N/A	40	3	5	4.5	4.5

- I. A Parking requirement : 1 garage/ covered parking space Plus 1 uncovered/ open parking space per dwelling unit.
- II. Outbuildings shall be limited to parking of vehicles with associated storage space. In the case of swimming pools, the building line may be relaxed with the written authority of the HOA and the Mandeni Municipality to not less than 1 metre provided the poll is screened to the satisfaction of the HOA.
- III. Where the lot is used exclusively for medium density housing the density shall be limited to 30 dwelling units per hectare and the maximum coverage shall be 35%.
- IV. Recreational buildings and a private club house which is associated with the main land use may be permitted.
- V. Buildings and development shall guidelines and landscaping guidelines for Tugela Resort.
- VI. The density controls and urban design controls as set out in the Town Planners Density by Design Report shall be adhered to.
- VII. The density controls and urban design controls as set out in the Town Planners Density by Design Report shall be adhered to.

## 7.9.8. **Special Zone 2: Cultural Village**

Colour			EC/R						
Zone: Special Zone 2: Cultural Village									
Statement of Intent DFA Special Zone 2: Cult				2: Cultural Vil	llage				
Primary			Consent			Precluded			
Chalet							Ruildings and land uses not		
Private Recreational Area				- Buildings and land uses not included in the primary and					
Place of Public Assembly special consent colum					ımns				
Rural Resider		ing							
Educational Building									
	_		Developn	nent Param	eters				
Minimum erf size	F.A.R.	Coverage Height		Building Line		Side Setback	Rear Setback		
	N/A		25	1	7.5		4.5	4.5	
Additional Comments									
I. 1 pa	I. 1 parking space per chalet, room or rural residential building, plus a space for							for	
parking of 15 additional cars. 1 bus parking bay per 20 chalets, rooms or rural									
residential buildings. Loading and Off loading facilities to the satisfaction of the HOA									
Architectural Review Committee and the Municipality.									
II. Buildings and development shall conform to the architectural guidelines and									
landscaping guidelines for Tugela Resort.									
III. Recreational buildings and a private club house which is associated with the main									
land use may be permitted.									
ianu use may be permitteu.									

#### 7.15. **Special Zone 2: Hotel**

Colour	
Colour	

**Zone: Special Zone 2: Hotel** 

**Statement of Intent** DFA Special Zone 2: Hotel

Primary	Consent	Precluded
Dwelling House	-	Buildings and land uses not
Extended Residential Building		included in the primary and
Educational Building		special consent columns
Office		
Medium Density Housing		
Place of Public Assembly		
Place of Public Amusement		
Recreational Building		
Laundrette		
Restaurant		
Shop – (restricted to shop as		
contemplated in Clause 4.9 of		
the Tugela Town Planning		
Scheme clauses)		
Residential Building		
Conference Facilities (limited to		
200 seats)		

#### **Development Parameters**

Minimum erf size	F.A.R.	Coverage	Height	Building Line	Side Setback	Rear Setback
	N/A	40	3	9	4.5	4.5

- I. For every residential building, 1 covered parking space for each dwelling unit is to be provided on the Erf. Visitors parking at the rate of one car space for every two dwelling units shall be provided.
- II. For every building one car space for every bedroom, together with an area within which may be parked together a minimum of 15 cars.
- III. For every office there shall be provision of one car space for each  $35\text{m}^2$  or major portion thereof of gross office area.
- IV. For every building intended for use as a theatre, cinema, assembly hall or place of public worship there shall be provision of one car space for every 4 seats.
- V. For every building or portion of a
- VI. Building intended for use as a hall without fixed seats there shall be provision of one car space for every 23m² or major portion thereof of floor area.
- VII. For general parking requirements see clause 6.1 of the Tugela Mouth Planning Scheme
- VIII. Loading and unloading facilities shall be provided in accordance with clause 6.2 of the Tugela Mouth Planning Scheme
- IX. Provision is to be made for landscaping and maintenance of the grounds to the satisfaction of the Architectural Review Committee and the Mandeni Municipality. Not less than 25% of maintained as a garden and play area which must be kept free of parking areas and driveways.

# 7.9.9. **Special Zone 2:Hotel Suites**

Colour			Н					
Zone: Special Zone 2:Hotel Suites								
Statement o	DFA Special Zone 2: Hotel suites							
Pr	Primary Consent Precluded						led	
Dwelling House Extended Residential Building Medium Density Housing Residential Building Private Recreational Area Recreational Building			-		Buildings and land uses not included in the primary and special consent columns			
			Developn	ent Parame	eters			
Minimum erf size	F.A.R	a. Co	overage	Height	Buildii Line	ıg	Side Setback	Rear Setback
	N/A		50 2 7.5 4.5			4.5		
Additional Comments								
<ul> <li>I. For every dwelling unit/ hotel suite one car space shall be provided.</li> <li>II. Recreational buildings and a private club house which is associated with the main land use may be permitted</li> </ul>								

#### 7.9.10. **Special Zone 2: Wellness Centre**

Colour								
Zone: Special Zone 2: Wellness Centre								
Statement o	of D	FA Spec	cial Zone 2:	Wellness Cen	itre			
Intent								
Pı	rimary			Consent			Preclude	ed
Institution						Ruildi	ings and land	uses not
Laundrette							led in the pri	
Hospital							al consent col	
Medium Den	sity Housir	ng						
Private Recr	eational Ar	ea						
Recreational	Building							
Clinic								
Educational	Building							
			Develop	nent Parame	eters			
Minimum	F.A.R.	Co	overage	Height	Build	ding	Side	Rear
erf size					Lir	ne	Setback	Setback
	N/A		30	2	9		4.5	4.5
Additional Comments								

- I. For every dwelling unit/hotel suite one car space shall be provided.
- II. For every hospital/ wellness clinic one car space shall be provided.
- III. Loading and unloading facilities shall be provided in accordance with clause 6.2 of the Tugela Mouth Planning Scheme clauses.
- IV. For general parking requirements see clause 6.1 of the Tugela Mouth Planning Scheme Clauses.
- V. Outbuildings shall be limited to parking of vehicles with associated storage space.
- VI. Recreational buildings and a private club house which is associated with the main land use may be permitted.
- VII. Number of dwelling units shall be restricted to the number shown on plan No. Thuk01- 06Rev 9.1 dated 14 June 2010.
- VIII. A site specific EMP shall be prepared and approved by the authorities prior to any development commencing.

## 7.9.11. **Special Zone 2: Timeshare**

Colour			H-T/S					
Zone: Speci	al Zone 2: T	'imesha	re	·				
Statement Intent	of ]	DFA Special Zone 2: Timeshare						
P	rimary			Consent			Preclu	ded
Dwelling House Medium Density Housing Residential Building Laundrette Private Recreation Area Recreation Building  Development Parameters				luded in the pri	mary and lumns			
Minimum erf size	F.A.R.	Co	overage	Height	Buildi Line	_	Side Setback	Rear Setback
	N/A		30	2	9		4.5	4.5
			Additi	onal Comn	nents			
<ul> <li>I. Loading and unloading facilities shall be provided in accordance with clause 6.2 of the Tugela Mouth Planning Scheme clauses.</li> <li>II. For general parking requirements see clause 6.1 of the Tugela Mouth Planning Scheme Clauses.</li> </ul>								
III.	For every d	welling	•		-		shall be provi ge bay for ever	

#### 7.9.12. **Special Zone 2: Sport Village & Golf Club House**

_	_
<i>c</i> -	
	m

**Zone:** Special Zone 2: Sport Village & Golf Club House

Statement of Intent

DFA Special Zone 2: Sport Village & Golf Club House

Primary	Consent	Precluded
Private Recreation Area Recreation Building Place of Public amusement Place of public assembly Restaurant Shop (limited to 100m²)	-	Buildings and land uses not included in the primary and special consent columns
Conference facilities (limited to 50 seats)		

#### **Development Parameters**

Minimum erf size	F.A.R.	Coverage	Height	Building Line	Side Setback	Rear Setback
	N/A	20	2	7.5	4.5	4.5

- I. For general parking requirements see clause 6.1 of the Tugela Mouth Planning Scheme Clauses.
- II. Loading and unloading facilities shall be provided in accordance with clause 6.2 of the Tugela Mouth Planning Scheme clauses.

## 7.9.13. **Special Zone 2: Limited Commercial**

$C \sim 1$	
U.OI	IOHI

**Zone:** Special Zone 2: Limited Commercial

Statement of Intent

DFA Special Zone 2: Limited Commercial

Primary	Consent	Precluded
Laundrette		
Office	-	Buildings and land uses not
Restaurant		included in the primary and
Shop		special consent columns
Clinic		

#### **Development Parameters**

Minimum erf size	F.A.R.	Coverage	Height	Building Line	Side Setback	Rear Setback
	0.4	40	2	5	2	2

- I. For general parking requirements see clause 6.1 of the Tugela Mouth Planning Scheme Clauses.
- II. Loading and unloading facilities shall be provided in accordance with clause 6.2 of Tugela Mouth Planning Scheme clauses.
- III. Outbuildings shall be limited to parking of vehicles with associated storage space.

#### 7.9.14. **Special Zone 2: Entertainment Centre**

•	
U.O	ıour

**Zone**: Special Zone 2: Entertainment Centre

Statement of Intent

DFA Special Zone 2: Entertainment Centre

Primary	Consent	Precluded
Crèche		D.:11:
Educational Building	-	Buildings and land uses not included in the primary and
Place of Public amusement		special consent columns
Place of public assembly		
Private Recreation Area		
Recreation Building		
Shop (limited to 100m²)		
Restaurant		
Conference facility – 50 seats		

### **Development Parameters**

Minimum erf size	F.A.R.	Coverage	Height	Building Line	Side Setback	Rear Setback
	0.4	40	2	7.5	2	2

- I. For general parking requirements see clause 6.1 of the Tugela Mouth Planning Scheme Clauses.
- II. Loading and unloading facilities shall be provided in accordance with clause 6.2 of the Tugela Mouth Planning Scheme clauses.

#### 7.9.15. **Special Zone 2: Wedding Chapel**

_	_
<i>c</i> -	
	m

**Zone:** Special Zone 2: Wedding Chapel

Statement of Intent

DFA Special Zone 2: Wedding Chapel

Primary	Consent	Precluded
Dwelling House Extended Residential Building	Shop	Buildings and land uses not included in the primary and special consent columns
Place of pubic amusement		

#### **Development Parameters**

Minimum erf size	F.A.R.	Coverage	Height	Building Line	Side Setback	Rear Setback
	N/A	30	2	9	4.5	4.5

- I. For general parking requirements see clause 6.1 of the Tugela Mouth Planning Scheme Clauses.
- II. Loading and unloading facilities shall be provided in accordance with clause 6.2 of the Tugela Mouth Planning Scheme clauses.

# 7.9.16. **Special Zone 2: Private Open Space**

Colour								
Zone: Special Zo	one 2: Priva	te Open	Space					
Statement of Ir	ntent	DFA S	Special 2	Zone 2: Priv	vate 0	pen Space		
Pri			Consent			Precluded		
Private Recreati Recreation build	-			Buildings and land uses not include in the primary and special consent columns				
		D	evelop	ment Para	mete	rs		
Minimum erf size	F.A.R.					Side Setback	Rear Setback	
	N/A	N	/A	1	10		10	10
			Additi	onal Comn	nents			
							controls Deve levant authori	-

# 7.9.17. **Special Zone 2: Conservation Area**

Zone: Special				2: Conservati	on Area			
Intent Consent							Preclud	ed
Club House Ablution Conservation Area			-			inclu	dings and land aded in the pri	imary and
			Develop	ment Paran	neters			
Minimum erf size	Iinimum F.A.R. Cov		overage	Height	Height Build		Side Setback	Rear Setback
	N/A		N/A	1	N/A		N/A	N/A
			Additi	ional Comm	ents		1	

# 7.9.18. **Special Zone 2: Service and Maintenance**

Colour								
Zone: Special	Zone 2:	Service a	ınd Mainter	nance				
Statement of Intent	of DFA Special Zone 2: Service and Maintenance							
Primary Consent Precluded						ed		
Administration Municipal Services and I General Main	Infrastru	ıcture	-			includ	ings and land led in the pri al consent co	imary and
			Developr	nent Parame	eters			
Minimum erf size	F.A.R	a. C	overage	Height	Building Line		Side Setback	Rear Setback
	N/A		N/A	1	N/A		N/A	N/A
			Additio	onal Commer	nts			
		e permit 4 June 20		n on approve	ed layout p	olan No	o. Thuk01-0	6Rev

#### 7.9.19. **Special Zone 2: Nursery**

Colour	

**Zone:** Special Zone 2: Nursery

Statement of Intent DFA Special Zone 2 Nursery

Primary	Consent	Precluded
Agricultural Building Agricultural Land Shop (limited to 200m <sup>2</sup> for uses incidental to a nursery)	-	Buildings and land uses not included in the primary and special consent columns

#### **Development Parameters**

Minimum erf size	F.A.R.	Coverage	Height	Building Line	Side Setback	Rear Setback
	N/A	10	1	10	4.5	4.5

- I. For general parking requirements see clause 6.1 of the Tugela Mouth Planning Scheme Clauses.
- II. Loading and unloading facilities shall be provided in accordance with clause 6.2 of the Tugela Mouth Planning Scheme clauses.

#### 7.9.20. **Special Zone 2: Private Roads**

Colour			P2				
Zone: Specia	Zone: Special Zone 2: Private Roads						
Statement of	Statement of Intent DFA Special Zone 2 Private Roads						
Pri	Primary			Consent Precluded			ded
Private Road	Private Road					Buildings and la included in the special consent	primary and
	Development Parameters						
Minimum erf size	F.A.R.	C	Coverage	Height	Buildir Line	ng Side Setback	Rear Setback
	N/A		N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A
Additional Comments							
<ul><li>I. All roads shall be private roads</li><li>II. A Gatehouse may be erected within the road reserve.</li></ul>							

#### 7.9.21. **Special Zone 2: Explainatory Notes:**

- I. HOA Home Owners Association
- II. Additional Land Use Definitions:
  - a. Medium Density Housing: means a group of two or more attached and / or detached dwelling units, together with such outbuildings as are ancillary thereto, with each dwelling unit having direct access to common land, the whole development having been designed as a harmonious entity. Such development may include duplex flats, semi-detached houses, terrace houses, maisonettes or dwelling houses.
  - b. Duet House: means a building designed or constructed or adapted to contain self-contained dwelling units separated horizontally and with individual access..

# 7.10.1. **Traditional Authority Agriculture**

Colour							
Zone: Rural Agriculture							
Statement of Intent	<b>Statement of Intent</b> To provide, preserve and/or use land or buildings for small-scale						
	agricultural and ancillary activities in association with Homestead						
	and other related uses in Traditional Council areas and may						
	include, market gardening, grazing and production of small areas of						
		r cane, poultry ai	~ ~	-			
		ing with the rura					
Primary			Consent		Prec	luded	
Agricultural Building		Abbatoir					
Crèche		Agricultural Indu	ıstrv		Buildings a	nd land uses	
Community Gardens		Arts and Craft Wo			not include		
Conservation area		Bed and Breakfas		inic	primary an	d special	
Day care facilities		Community hall			consent col		
Dwelling House		<b>Educational Build</b>	ding Factory	7			
Forestry		Flea market					
Home business		Guest House					
Homestead/umuzi		Hospital					
Horticulture		Lodge	. 101	CTAT 1			
Institution animal welfare		Municipal/Gover	nment Place	e of Worship			
Nature Reserve		Public Office	ina				
Private Building Private Recreational Area		Residential Building					
Tuck Shop		Shop Tavern					
Veterinary clinic		Tavern Undefined use					
vecernary ennie		Development	Paramete	rc			
Minimum erf size	F.A.F		Height	Building	Side	Rear	
	1 12 112	doverage	noight	Line	Setback	Setback	
				Line	Betbuch	betbuck	
2ha Sub division is	0.2	20%	2	7.5m	3m	2ha	
permissible with the		, ,					
consent of the							
Traditional Council							
		Additional	Comments	<u> </u>			
I. BTTS shall mean Ba	se Tele						
II. Development deper					e and waste	water	
disposal to the satis			1	, , , , , , ,			
III. Shop limited to pro			eeds of the l	ocal communi	ity		
IV. All applications are						al	
legislations such as	water	use licenses					
V. The sub-division or				cultural produ	ction is subj	ect to the	
Sub-division of Agr							
VI. Parking requirement							
requirements of the					n of the Direc	ctor:	
Economic Developr							
VII. A Site Development	Plan r	nay be required or	n request by	the municipa	lity.		

#### 7.10.2. **Traditional Authority Umuzi**

Colour								
Zone: Reside	ential Umuzi			·				
Statement o	f Intent T	o prov	vide, pres	erve and man	age the tr	aditi	onal residenti	ial
	Se	ettlem	ents und	er the Manage	ement of t	he T	raditional Cou	ıncils and
	A	dmini	stration o	of the area. Th	is is prim	arily	for housing in	ncluding
							lings) and incl	
	b	ased e	economic	activities and	associate	ed tra	ditional land	uses such as
						-	vides for activ	rities that
	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	re in k	eeping of	f the rural cha	racter of	the a		
	rimary			Consent			Preclud	
Agricultural				l Craft Worksl	•		ldings and land	
Agriculture l			Bed and Breakfast Facility included in the primary a					
Civic and soc			Educational Building			special consent columns		
Community (	Gardens		Place of Worship					
Crèche	1		Tavern					
Day care faci								
Dwelling Ho	use							
Forestry								
Home busine	ess							
Horticulture								
Shop								
Tuck Shop			Dovolo	pment Parai	motorc			
Minimum	F.A.R.	Co	verage	Height	Buildi	nσ	Side	Rear
erf size	r.A.K.	Co	verage	neight	Line	_	Setback	Setback
600m <sup>2</sup>	0.3		30%	N/A	N/A		N/A	600m <sup>2</sup>
			Addi	tional Comm	ents			
I. BTT								
II. Traditional Councils can allocate residential sites and uses in terms of customary law								

- II. Traditional Councils can allocate residential sites and uses in terms of customary law with due regard for environmental considerations, space between buildings, adequate site size where on-site sewerage disposal is used and there is suitable access for vehicles and services.
- III. This land use zone includes Administration facilities for Traditional Authorities. All application are subject to the approval of any applicable national and provincial legislation such as NEMA and water use licenses.
- IV. The sub-division of land for Imizi located within the registered boundaries of Traditional Council is subject to the Ingonyama Trust and is not subject to the Subdivision of Agricultural Land Act (Act No 70 of 1970).
- V. Parking requirements for the proposed development to be provided in terms of the parking requirements of the scheme for the proposed use, or to the satisfaction of the Director: Economic Development, Planning and Human Settlements.
- VI. A Site Development Plan may be required on request by the municipality.

#### 7.10.3. Traditional Authority Environmental

Colour					
Zone: Traditional Environmental					
Statement of Intent	A zone that provides for, protects and maintains the natural environment, biodiversity assets, flora and fauna or any part thereof.				
	Environmental services include conservation areas; nature reserves;				

public and private open spaces (both active and passive); and the beachfront and seashore as defined by NEMA: Integrated Coastal Management Act (No. 24 of 2008). These environmental services may form part of the sustainable open space system that includes independent or linked open space areas.
Only limited and specific low impact developments are permitted to support the primary function of preservation and low impact uses to support recreational facilities - where such use is permitted.

Primary	Consent	Precluded
Ablution facilities	Arts and Craft Workshop	Buildings and land uses not
Conservation area	BTTS	included in the primary and
Dwelling unit	Dwelling unit	special consent columns
Life Guard Hut	Educational Building	
Nature Reserve	Flea market	
Private Recreation area	Horticulture	
	Lodge	
	Municipal/Government	
	Residential Building	
	Restaurant	
	Shop	
	Tuck shop	
	Undefined use	
	Waste transfer and recycling	
	centre	

Development Parameters

Minimum erf size	F.A.R.	Coverage	Height	Building Line	Side Setback	Rear Setback
		Public a	nd private oper	ı space		
N/A	0.15	15%	2	7,5m	3	N/A
		Conservat	tion and Nature	Reserve		
N/A	N/A	10%	1	N/A	N/A	N/A
		Sea	shore and Bead	ch	1	1
N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A

- I. BTTS shall mean Base Telecommunications Transmission Station.
- II. Dwelling unit and residential building restricted to staff accommodation
- III. Educational building limited to environmental education, conservation awareness, research facilities
- IV. Municipal and government limited to uses necessary for the functioning of the primary use- environmental education, conservation awareness, and research facilities.
- V. Shop limited to the sale of take away commodities refreshments, curios and commodities associated with tourism, recreation, environment and conservation.
- VI. Ancillary buildings and uses are restricted to those complimentary and necessary functioning of the primary use with the primary aim of conservation of the natural environment. This includes maintenance building and office building.
- VII. An outbuilding may be permitted on this Zone, provided it is used in conjunction with a dwelling unit(s), and includes a storeroom, laundry, and workroom. An outbuilding shall be restricted to a maximum floor area of 30 square meters
- VIII. The erection of any building within conservation areas shall be subject to environmental appraisal or EIA application.

- IX. In addition, any application located adjacent to / in the designated seashore area will have to take cognizance of the requirements of Coastal Management Programme of the area in terms of the NEMA: Integrated Coastal Management Act (No. 24 of 2008).
- X. The development and use of land located in the seashore area shall comply with the requirements of the NEMA: Integrated Coastal Management Act (No. 24 of 2008).
- XI. Land registered under the ownership of the municipality preserved as open space for the use and enjoyment of the public, to the requirements and satisfaction of the local authority.
- XII. Any land use and activities on municipal preserved land such as flea markets or musical entertainment require municipal permission which is at the sole discretion of council.
- XIII. The sub-division of land for uses other than agricultural production is subject to the Sub-division of Agricultural Land Act (No. 70 of 1970)
- XIV. Any work undertaken shall be done in accordance with a Site Development Plan as required on request by the municipality.
- XV. No indigenous flora, fauna or any naturally occurring material shall be disturbed or removed.
- XVI. No landscaping or planting of any vegetation shall be permitted, unless it is a requirement for the rehabilitation of the environment in terms of a management plan agreed with the Municipality.
- XVII. Except where picnic areas and footpaths through the vegetation have been specially demarcated, the public shall not be admitted in conservation areas.
- VIII. Parking requirements for the proposed development to be provided in terms of the parking requirements of the scheme for the proposed use, or to the satisfaction of the Director: Economic Development, Planning and Human Settlements.
- XIX. Development parameters may be approved on the sole discretion of Council in accordance with an approved Site Development Plan.

#### 7.10.4. **Traditional Authority Rural Industry**

Colour						
Zone: Traditional Rural Industry						
Statement of Intent	To provide	To provide, preserve or use land or buildings for a mix of industrial				
	activities, l	business or commercial bu	siness or re	elated activities in a		
	manner th	at will not detract from th	e amenity o	r cause nuisance to		
	other prop	erties within the zone or t	o the gener	al public.		
	Commercia	al activities such as factory	shop, who	lesale and shops are		
	permitted	at the discretion of the Mu	nicipality.			
		serve as an interface to hig	•			
	_	ent entities. Extractive and	noxious inc	lustrial activities are		
	prohibited on this zone.					
Primary		Consent		Precluded		
<b>Primary</b> Arts and craft Worksho	p	<b>Consent</b> Abattoir		Buildings and land		
	p	1	ricultural	Buildings and land uses not included in		
Arts and craft Worksho	•	Abattoir	ricultural	Buildings and land uses not included in the primary and		
Arts and craft Worksho Agricultural Industry	•	Abattoir Agricultural Building Ag	ricultural	Buildings and land uses not included in the primary and special consent		
Arts and craft Worksho Agricultural Industry Commercial Workshop Conservation area Dwelling unit	•	Abattoir Agricultural Building Ag Industry	ricultural	Buildings and land uses not included in the primary and		
Arts and craft Worksho Agricultural Industry Commercial Workshop Conservation area	•	Abattoir Agricultural Building Ag Industry Agricultural land	ricultural	Buildings and land uses not included in the primary and special consent		
Arts and craft Worksho Agricultural Industry Commercial Workshop Conservation area Dwelling unit	•	Abattoir Agricultural Building Ag Industry Agricultural land Bus and Taxi rank	ricultural	Buildings and land uses not included in the primary and special consent		
Arts and craft Worksho Agricultural Industry Commercial Workshop Conservation area Dwelling unit Industry - service Launderette Motor garage	•	Abattoir Agricultural Building Ag Industry Agricultural land Bus and Taxi rank BTTS	ricultural	Buildings and land uses not included in the primary and special consent		
Arts and craft Worksho Agricultural Industry Commercial Workshop Conservation area Dwelling unit Industry - service Launderette	•	Abattoir Agricultural Building Ag Industry Agricultural land Bus and Taxi rank BTTS Car Wash	ricultural	Buildings and land uses not included in the primary and special consent		

Public open space	Industry light	
Shop	Institution	
Tuck Shop	Parking garage	
Utilities and services	Petrol Filling Station	
Vehicle Testing Station	Place of Entertainment	
	Place of public assembly Private	
	open space	
	Scrapyard	
	Truck Stop	
	Restricted Building	
	Undefined use	
	Wholesale warehouse	

**Development Parameters** 

Development i di dimetel s						
Minimum erf size	F.A.R.	Coverage	Height	Building Line	Side Setback	Rear Setback
N/A At the discretion of the Traditional Council and approval of Local Authority	0.2	60%	3	7.5m	3m	N/A

- I. BTTS shall mean Base Telecommunications Transmission Station.
- II. Development subject to provision of adequate water, sewerage and waste water disposal to the satisfaction of the Council
- III. Shops and restaurants limited to provide for the day-to-day needs of the workers in the zone.
- IV. A Dwelling House may be permitted to accommodate a manager, caretaker or security personnel.
- V. All applications are subject to the approval of any applicable national and provincial legislation such as licenses in terms of minerals and water use
- VI. All applications need to comply with the requirements of the National Environmental Management Act, as applicable.
- VII. The sub-division of land for uses other than agricultural production is subject to the Sub-division of Agricultural Land Act (No. 70 of 1970).
- VIII. A Site Development Plan may be required on request by the municipality.
  - IX. Parking requirements for the proposed development to be provided in terms of the parking requirements of the scheme for the proposed use, or to the satisfaction of the Director: Economic Development, Planning and Human Settlements
  - X. All landscaping at the discretion of the Mandeni Municipality.

- XI. The municipality has the right to require details regarding safety measures, fencing, notices, access control, and lighting to ensure that the potential dangers associated with the activity are minimized
- XII. The municipality may request a strategy to address the monitoring and control of any operation to minimize amenity disturbance by way of dust, noise, pollution, heavy vehicles, hours of operation and any remedial programme should the activity cease

# 7.10.5. **Traditional Authority Civic and Social**

Colour						
Zone: Traditiona	l Civic ar	nd Social				
Statement of Intent To provide, preserve land, use or buildings for: Municipal,						
		provincial o	or local governr	ment use. This zone provides for the full		
		range of ed	ucational, healt	h, social and	d welfare fa	cilities. Provision
		is made for	Places of Wors	hip of all de	nominatio	ns. A wide range of
		social and o	civic services to	serve the c	ommunity,	to the discretion
		of the Mand	deni Municipali	ty, and in su	ich a manne	er that the use
		does not af	fect the amenity	y of the trad	itional area	<b>a.</b>
Primary		Co	nsent		Preclu	ded
Apartment Build	ing	Agricultura	l Land	_		not included in the
Boarding house		BTTS1		primary an	d special cor	nsent columns
Bus and Taxi ran	k	Community	garden			
Clinic		Conference	facility			
Community hall		Community	hall			
Conservation are	a	Horticultur	e			
Crèche		Informal tr	ade area			
Day care facilities	S	Institution				
Dwelling House		Mortuary				
Educational Build	ding	Municipal/	Government			
Fire station		Place of Pu	blic Assembly			
Health facility		Office				
Hospital		Residential	Building			
Medium density		Restricted 1	Building			
housing		Shop				
Municipal/Gover	nment	Special Bui	lding			
Place of Worship		Undefined	use			
Police station		Utilities Fac	cility			
Private Open Spa	ice					
Public Office						
Public Open Spac	e					
Residential Build	ing					
Tuck Shop						
		_	Parameters			
At the discretion	1		_ • •			
Minimum erf	F.A.R.	Coverage	Height	Building	Side	Rear Setback
size				Line	Setback	
10 000m <sup>2</sup>	0.5	70%	3	7.5m	4.5m	4.5m
I DEED 1 11			lditional Comn			
			unications Trans lities for Traditio			
III. Provided t	there is ac	lequate water	, sewerage and w	vaste water d	isposal to th	e satisfaction of the
Council.						

- IV. Prior to the approval of any development proposal, the norms and standard of any affected Municipal, Provincial and National entity must be complied with and written consent in terms of its policy/legislation must be submitted along with the development application for consideration such as National Environmental Management Act (NEMA).
- V. The sub-division or change in land fuses other than agricultural production is subject to the Sub-division of Agricultural Land Act (No. 70 of 1970).
- VI. All applications for change of land use are subject to the relevant requirements of the governing department Health/Education/ Welfare or the likes.
- VII. No Place of Public Worship shall be established or used on a site except with the approval of the Council.
- VIII. Approval of an application for the establishment of a Place of Public Worship shall include measures to address noise control.
- IX. A Dwelling House may be permitted to accommodate a manager, foreman, caretaker or security personnel.
- X. An outbuilding may be permitted on this Zone, provided it is used in conjunction with a dwelling unit(s), and includes a storeroom, laundry, and workroom.
- XI. Parking requirements for the proposed development to be provided in terms of the parking requirements of the scheme for the proposed use, or to the satisfaction of the Director: Economic Development, Planning and Human Settlements.
- **XII.** A Site Development Plan may be required on request by the municipality

#### 7.10.6. **Traditional Authority Utilities and Services**

#### Colour

#### **Zone:** TA Utilities and Services

# Statement of Intent

To designate and manage land set aside for uses for infrastructure and ancillary buildings required for the functioning of private and public entities within the municipal jurisdiction. This includes, but is not limited to, substations, waterworks, reservoirs, filtration beds, sewerage works, refuse disposal works and ancillary and necessary infrastructure required for the provision of electrical, water and sanitation services to the municipal area.

This zone also provides for all land uses related to the provision of transportation infrastructure and facilities, including parking, drop off and collection of passengers, by road, rail or air travel, by public and private services.

This includes both above and below ground development.

Primary	Consent	Precluded
Ablution facilities	Alternative energy- for	Buildings and land uses not
Bus and Taxi Rank	example, solar, wind turbines	included in the primary and
Electrical grid/substation	BTTS	special consent columns
Intermodal Facility	Municipal/Government	
Maintenance Building	Parking Garage	
Pipelines - gas/fuel	Petrol Filling Station	
Rail infrastructure	Police Station	
Railway Station	Undefined Use	
Reservoir		
Road Infrastructure		
Office		
Waste water desalination		
plant		
Waste Transfer and/or		
Recycling center		
Waste water package plant		

**Development Parameters** 

Minimum erf size	F.A.R.	Coverage	Height	Building Line	Side Setback	Rear Setback
-	-	-	-	-	-	-

- I. BTTS shall mean Base Telecommunications Transmission Station
- *II.* Office limited to site office.
- III. Development subject to the provision of adequate water, sewerage and waste water disposal to the satisfaction of the Council.
- IV. Prior to the approval of any development proposal, the norms and standard of any affected Municipal, Provincial and National entity must be complied with and written

- consent in terms of its policy/legislation must be submitted along with the development application for consideration such as National Environmental Management Act (NEMA).
- V. An application for a refuse site or landfill will need to have an approved Environmental Impact Assessment approved by the Department of Agriculture, Forestry and Fisheries (DAFF).
- VI. The sub-division or change of land uses other than agricultural production is subject to the Sub-division of Agricultural Land Act (No. 70 of 1970).
- VII. Parking requirements for the proposed development to be provided in terms of the parking requirements of the scheme for the proposed use, or to the satisfaction of the Director: Economic Development, Planning and Human Settlements.
- VIII. A Site Development Plan may be required on request by the municipality.
- IX. The Site Development Plan shall have due consideration for any relevant regulations and any related legislation as may be laid down from time to time by the relevant Minister or any other responsible authority, for the proposed use.
- X. Other land uses and works ancillary to the function of the primary use are subject to agreement being reached on the permissible floor area ratio, coverage and height restrictions, the placing of buildings on the site, on-site parking requirements and/or any other related matters by way of a site development plan.
- XI. The application shall provide details regarding safety measures, fencing, notices, access control, and lighting to ensure that the potential dangers associated with the activity are minimized.
- XII. Where relevant, the application will need to address issues of noise, dust, the control of and safe storage and disposal of waste on site.
- XIII. All land uses specified in the table above are permitted in traditional areas at Council's sole discretion, and with the approval of the Traditional Authority

#### 8. GENERAL CONTROLS

#### 8.1. SITE DEVELOPMENT PLANS

- I. Council may from time-to-time for the purpose of the coordinated allocation of land use rights and restrictions as contemplated in this Land Use Scheme and as a requisite for development, instruct prospective owners/developers to submit within a specified period of time to Council site development plans in respect of a specific area.
- II. The Site Development plans shall amongst others provide for but not be limited to:
  - a) A to-scale drawing of the site/s, building lines applicable, town planning bulk factors and controls (Floor Area Ratio, Coverage and Height factors), existing services, existing and proposed servitudes, etc.
  - b) the design and layout of proposals including details as to the functioning thereof;
  - c) a programme of development;
  - d) an Environmental Management Plan;
  - e) landscaping proposals;
  - f) details of and programme for the provision of essential services including storm water, sewerage disposal, pollution control, electricity and solid waste disposal;
  - g) traffic engineering details on the vehicular and pedestrian elements thereof, their implementation and management;
  - h) details as to the project management ownership, mechanisms, control and monitoring through construction phases till project completion.

#### 8.2. EXTERNAL APPEARANCES OF BUILDINGS

- I. The character, design and external appearance of buildings, and boundary walls, including the material used in their construction, shall be subject to the approval of the Council, and no building may be erected without the approval of the Municipality.
  - II. In considering any application, it shall be the duty of the Municipality to ensure, wherever it is considered appropriate, that adequate provision is made for solar access, the use of solar or other alternative energy sources and energy and water efficiency measures, the preservation of indigenous flora, the planting or replacement of trees and the protection of water-courses, etc.

III. Any person intending to alter, extend or erect a building shall submit such drawing as required by the Municipality.

#### 8.3. DEPOSITING OF WASTE MATERIAL

No land in any use zone may be used for the purpose of the deposit or disposal of waste material or refuse, tipping, dumping, scrap yard, motor graveyard or any other similar purpose until the owner of his/her duly authorised representative has applied for and received the written approval of the Municipality.

#### 8.4. FLOODLINE AREAS

The Council may prohibit or restrict the erection or use of any building or the development or use of any land, where the site is situated below the 1 in 100 year flood line. Development of such site may further be subject to approval and/or restrictions in terms of the National Water Act (Act No. 36 of 1998) and its Regulations, as amended.

#### 8.5. UNSERVICED AREAS

The Council may prohibit or restrict, whether wholly or partially and either indefinitely or for a period to be determined by the Council, the erection of any building or the development or use of any land in any undeveloped part or parts of the area of the Scheme pending the extension thereto of streets, sewer, water, electricity or other essential public services.

#### 8.6. TRAFFIC GENERATING SITES

- I. For new or proposed developments, Council may, at its sole discretion, request the submission of a Traffic Impact Assessment to determine the impact that a development may have on the existing and future road networks.
- II. The outcomes of such assessment may be implemented at the Developer's cost.

#### 8.7. PROVISION OF PUBLIC FACILITES

The Council may direct a developer to provide any public facilities it may deem necessary for the development as informed by:

a) Engineering Standards

- b) Plans developed by the Municipality
- c) Provincial guidelines on Human Settlements and community facilities.

#### 8.8. PERMANENT CLOSURE OF STREETS AND PUBLIC PLACES

- a) An applicant may apply to Council for the permanent closure of a public place or public street.
- b) In respect of an application for the permanent closure of a public place, the Council may direct an applicant to undertake an assessment of the likely impact that such permanent closure may have on access to public places, i.e. an assessment of the "Guidelines for Human Settlement Planning and Design, published by the CSIR (the "Red Book" guidelines).
- c) In respect of an application for the permanent closure of a public place, the Council may direct an applicant to replace a public place and/or pay compensation to Council in order to develop existing open spaces and/or replace the public place.
- d) An application must be lodged by the responsible person to Mandeni Municipality not less than ten days before the intended event.

#### 8.9. WELLS AND BOREHOLES

No wells or boreholes shall be sunk on any land within the area of the Scheme or municipal jurisdiction, nor any subterranean water extracted therefrom without the consent from Mandeni Local Municipality.

#### 8.10. ADVERTISING

Any person wishing to display an advertisement must first submit a written application to the Council for consideration and approval in terms of the Municipality's Advertising Sign Bylaws.

#### 9. ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT

#### 9.1. ENVIRONMENTALLY SENSITIVE AREAS

- I. The iLembe Environmental Management Framework (EMF) was developed as a planning tool in order to protect sensitive areas and to retain ecological functioning of an area. The Council may therefore prohibit or restrict the destruction of environmentally sensitive areas identified in terms of the aforementioned plan, whether such transformation is authorized by another sphere of government or not.
- II. Notwithstanding the provisions of this Scheme, the Municipality, shall at its discretion, request an applicant to provide an Environmental Screening Report for any development or land use activity on any site or portion thereof which it considers to be an environmentally sensitive area or in an area identified as being critical for biodiversity conservation.
- III. The Environmental Screening Report must be undertaken by a person that has the necessary knowledge and experience in environmental management, natural resources or ecology, and should include:
  - a. Information about the project including the spatial extent, timing, frequency and duration of the project;
  - The identification of relevant environmental legislation, regulations, policies and plans relevant to the proposed development and identify those activities that require licensing or authorisation before they can proceed;
  - c. An understanding of the ecological context based on existing ecological information, data gathering, literature searches, site visits and preliminary ecological surveys, and any baseline studies already carried out;
  - d. Identify project activities likely to cause damage, stress, disturbance or impact on ecosystems processes;
  - e. Identify the factors affecting the integrity of the relevant ecosystems and the conservation status of relevant habitats and species; and, ecological features likely to be significantly affected and therefore requiring further study;

- f. Identify other significant activities, e.g. access roads, associated with the project/proposal that could result in significant cumulative effects; and,
- g. Potential strategies to avoid and/or minimise any negative environmental impacts and the identification of opportunities for enhancing biodiversity and promoting Provincial biodiversity objectives
- IV. Approval of any development is subject to the provisions of any affected National, Provincial, Local Legislation and associated regulatoins/by-laws. This includes, but not limited to the:
  - a. National Environmental Management Act, 1998 (Act No. 107 of 1998) (as amended).
  - b. Forestry Act 1998, (No.84 of 1998) as amended.
  - c. Water Act 1998 (Act No. 36 of 1998) which requires that consideration be given to the maximum level likely to be reached by flood eater every 100 years.
  - d. NEMA: Integrated Coastal Management Act (Act No. 24 of 2008).
  - e. District and Local Management Plans. Mangament Plans include, but are not limited to:
    - i. The Bio-diversity sector plan
    - ii. Coatal Management Plan.
  - V. In considering any application, it shall be the duty of the Municipality to ensure wherever it is considered appropriate, that adequate provision be made for protection of environmentally sensitive areas, by means of conditions for approval of such development. Where possible, areas are to be set aside for conservation purposes, such areas being clearly indicated on a site plan.
  - VI. An area may be considered environmental sensitive should it contains unique or threatended landscape or wildlife (flora and fauna) or historic value. Examples include natural water sources and associated wetlands; coastal areas; biodiversity areas; ecosystens; typography (such as upland ridges); high-agriculture potential; protected areas; conservation areas and nature reserves; air quality management areas, important bird areas; marine life etc.

#### 9.2. THE BIODOVERSITY SECTOR PLAN

The iLembe Biodiversity Sector Plan (BSP) is a precursor to a bioregional plan, developed by the Ezemvelo KZN Wildlife, which aims to provide information on the biodiversity priorities, by identifying the Critical Biodiversity Areas and Ecological Support Areas. Critical Biodiversity Areas, are those areas of natural or near-natural features, habitats or landscapes that include terrestrial, aquatic and marine areas. Ecological Support Areas, are those area required to support and sustain the ecological functioning of the critical biodiversity areas.

Council may prohibit or restrict any development in a critical biodiversity or ecological support area.

#### 9.3. MARINE PROTECTED AREAS

The Tugela Marine Protected Area (MPA) has been proposed along the iLembe District coastline with an intention to protect the living marine resources and other areas of particular importance within the coastal waters. The Tugela Banks area contains unprotected pelagic and seabed habitats, such as Natal shelf muds and gravels and submarine canyons, warrant protection in this area which has complex sedimentary patterns. The area along the Tugela Banks is highly productive and serves a nursery area for many species and support a large commercial prawn fishery.

Any land use development and management decision, relating to the coastal and estuarine areas, must align with this, or any subsequent management plans applicable to the area.

#### 9.4. NATIONAL ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT BIODIVERSITY ACT

- I. NEM: Biodiversity Act provides for the management and conservation of South Africa's biodiversity within the framework of the National Environmental Management Act 1998. Section 76 (2).
- II. All organs of state in all spheres of government must prepare an invasive Species monitoring, control and eradication plan for land under their control, as part of their environmental plans.

III. Once the Mandeni Alien invasive control plan is in existence, property owners will be held responsible for the alien invasive species occurring on their properties.

#### 9.5. COASTAL MANAGEMENT PLAN

The Mandeni Municipality has finalised the Municipal Coastal Management Programme (CMP) in order to achieve the objectives of the Integrated Coastal Management Act of promoting integrated management of coastal resources. Integrated Coastal Management refers to the management of a coastal area using an integrated and inclusive approach, taking cognisance of all aspects of the coastal zone, including geographical and political boundaries, in an attempt to achieve sustainable coastal development.

#### 9.6. WETLANDS

Where an erf may have a wetland, the Municpality may require the owner / applicant to appoint an independent wetland specialist to delineate the extent of the wetland, establish appropriate buffers and, to indicate the delineation and buffers on the site plan submitted with the development application.

No building or infrastructure shall be erected on any portion of land which, in the opinion of the Municipality, is a wetland or watercourse, unless Environmental Authorisation has been issued for such activities.

#### 9.7. DEVELOPMENT BUFFERS

- I. A buffer of no less than 500m shall be maintained around all sites zoned as a landfill/refuse site.
- II. Such buffer may be applicable to a waste transfer / recycle centre depending on the proposed material to be accommodated on the site.
- III. The coastal buffer zone is 100m in width measured from the high water mark.
- IV. A 25-metre non-building buffer to the Environmental (Conservation) and Nature Reserve Zone may be instituted at the discretion of the Municipalty, with the sole purposed of protecting the integrity of the area from the proposed development.
- v. Should the proposed development be considered high impact, this buffer may be increased.

- VI. In the absence of formally delineated buffer areas, consultation with the relevant national and provincial departments must take place.
- VII. Identified areas where a buffer is required include, but are not limited to:
  - a. Amatikulu Nature Reserve: For the protection of riparian vegetation to ensure water quality and quantity into the reserve. The protection of the estuarine function zone (EFZ) of Nyoni and Amatigulu in terms of vegetation cover (noted that sugarcane is already intruding into the EFZ). Protection of the contiguous habitat such as the dune vegetation and the estuarine vegetation. Low density rural development to protect sense of place. No afforestation adjacent to reserve to protect grassland from shading. Firebreak management would be necessary.
  - b. Meycol: To protect the riparian vegetation to ensure water quality and quantity into the reserve and for the protection of the estuarine function zone (EFZ) of the Uthukela estuary.
  - c. Harold Johnson: In order to protect the riparian vegetation to ensure water quality and quantity into the reserve. The protection of estuarine function zone (EFZ) of Uthukela estuary and the protection of contiguous habitat such as the natural forest areas and linked open space/corridor areas.
  - d. Uthukela Banks Marine Protection Areas: Protection of riparian vegetation to ensure water quality and quantity into the reserve. The protection of the estuarine function zone (EFZ) of Uthukela estuary and the protection of adjacent coastal vegetation. A stormwater / effluent management plans for development adjacent to coastal areas may be required.
- VIII. Adjoinging land uses may be limited to low-density ancillary land use types, such as low-intensity agriculture, low density and traditional residential and the kind of land uses related to daily employment and service needs.
  - IX. All development in and adjacent to an environmental area shall be at the discretion of the Municipality, providing that the use shall honour the intent of the zone.

#### 9.8. LAND USE MANAGEMENT IN AREAS UNDER TRADITIONAL AUTHORITY

I. In general, most municipalities are not involved in the land allocation process with traditional council areas. However, the implication of SPLUMA requires municipalities to provide an effective role in spatial planning and land use management.

- II. At the outset, interested and affected parties must conform to the processes on obtaining a lease as stipulated by ITB as follows;

  The client is allocated a site by a local Traditional Council and completes the Tenure Option Application form (ITB1 Form), after completion of this form the client must get a Traditional Consent form (ITB2 form) this form proves that the client has received the relevant consent from the concerned Traditional Council.
- III. Forms are available on the Mandeni Local Municipality's website and from Traditional Councils.
- IV. Forms, together with the applicant's Identity Document are are submitted to Ingonyama Trust Board and packaged for approval subject to the following actions performed.
- V. A land survey is done and land cross referenced to existing database to ensure there are no duplications;
- VI. Terms and conditions of the lease are proposed and submitted with ITB1 & ITB2 forms for board approval.
- VII. On approval client is notified of the details and the following actions are performed.
- VIII. Lease document is presented to client with the terms such as, the Rental Amount, Duration of the Lease;
  - IX. On agreement Client Deposits the rental amount to Ingonyama Trust Board
    Bank account. Signing of the Lease agreement takes place between
    representatives of Ingonyama Trust Board and the applicant.
  - X. Planning approval or consent shall be sourced subsequent to the lease agreement. However, "pre-application" meetings ar encouraged prior to the lease agreement; to evaluate the probability of approval.

AmaKhosi shall remain as the custodians of land under traditional authority however; land allocations must be done in accordance to the Mandeni Land Use Management Scheme.

# Annexure 1 Register of Amendments to the Mandeni Land Use Management Scheme

APPLICATION REFERENCE NO.	FILE NO.	PROPEORTY DESCRIPTION	DETAILS OF AMENDMENT	DATE OF DECISION	REMARK

## Annexure 2

# Register of Development Applications Lodged with the Mandeni Municipality

APPLICATION REFERENCE NO.	FILE NO.	PROPERTY DESCRIPTION	DETAILS OF APPLICATION	DATE OF DECISON	REMARK

Annexure 3
Register of Management Overlays to the Scheme

REFERENCE NO.	FILE NO.	DETAILS OF OVERLAY	DATE OF DECISON	REMARK